
SELECTMEN’S MEETING AGENDA 

Griffin Room, Town Hall 

Executive Session 6:00 P.M. 

Regular Meeting 6:30 P.M. 

Tuesday, September 6, 2016 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(3), to discuss strategy with respect to 
collective bargaining if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the 
Board and the Chair declares so – Dispatchers Union; Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a)(6), to consider 
the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real estate if the Chair declares that an open meeting may 
have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the public body – 397 Route 28 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. WEEKLY BRIEFING 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT/ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approve Minutes 

 1.  July 25, 2016 – Regular Session 
 2.  August 8, 2016 – Regular Session 
 3.  August 22, 2016 – Executive Session 

B. Approve request by The Sampson Fund to waive $50 Food Service Permit Fee for Health 
Department for their event of May 20, 2017 at Community Center 

C. Approve the recommendation of the Town Administrator to approve the Eversource petition to 
install underground conduit to supply service to 51 Ocean Avenue 

D. Approve request by Democratic Town Committee to add two additional election workers as 
recommended 

E. Approve request by Republican Town Committee to amend election worker list as recommended 
F. Approve 1-day Special License application for wine and malt for Harwich Cranberry Festival for 

event to be held on Saturday, September 17, 2016 from 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at Brooks Park 
G. Approve 1-day Entertainment License for wedding at private residence on September 10, 2016 
H. Approve Chapter 90 Project Request for Resurfacing Various Roads in the amount of $414,645.70 

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PRESENTATIONS (Not earlier than 6:30 P.M.) 
 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Request by Engineering Department to move to Albro House – discussion & possible vote 
B. Confirm Community Center Room Use Fees as recommended by Facilities Committee – 

discussion & possible vote 

C. Update on design and bid process for Library historic restoration – Sean Libby 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Road Safety Audit for Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road – discussion & possible vote 
B. Wastewater Implementation Committee next steps – discussion & possible vote 
C. Overview DEP & Cape Cod Commission approval of CWMP next steps – discussion & possible 

vote 

D. Contract overview for services from CDM Smith – discussion & possible vote 
E. Community Rating System Annual Recertification – vote to authorize Chair to sign 

 

X. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

A. Designer Selection Review Committee for Saquatucket Harbor professional services 
 

XI. SELECTMEN’S REPORT 
 

A. Town Administrator’s Evaluation Form 

B. Action Item Register 
C. Committee Vacancies 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

*Per the Attorney General’s Office: The Board of Selectmen may hold an open session for topics not reasonably 

anticipated by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting following “New Business.” If you are deaf or hard of 

hearing or a person with a disability who requires an accommodation contact the Selectmen’s Office at 508-430-7513. 

 

Authorized Posting Officer:    Posted by:      

       Town Clerk 
 
_________________________________   Date:   September 1, 2016  
Ann Steidel, Admin. Secretary      



MINUTES 
SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

GRIFFIN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
MONDAY, JULY 25, 2016 

6:30 P.M. 

SELECTMEN PRESENT: Brown, Hughes, Kavanagh, LaMantia, MacAskill 

OTHERS PRESENT: Town Administrator Christopher Clark, Assistant Town Administrator 
Charleen Greenhalgh, Lincoln Hooper, Ginny Hewitt, Sharon Heger, and others. 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 6:30 p.m. by Chairman MacAskill. 

WEEKLY BRIEFING 

Library Director Ginny Hewitt briefed the Board on a problem with the emergency light inverter 
system at the library. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes — 
1. June 5, 2016 Wastewater Subcommittee/Board of Selectmen Regular Session 
2. June 6, 2016 Regular Session 
3. June 13, 2016 Regular Session 

B. Approve application for Fair at Pilgrim Congregational Church for August 5 & 6, 
2016 

C. Approve Election Officers as recommended by the Democratic and Republican Town 
Committees 

D. Accept resignation of Mayla Secola from the Harwich Housing Committee 
E. Award contract for Catch Basin Replacement and Installation to GFM Enterprises Inc. 

in the amount of $281,300 
F. Award contract for replacement of the DPW building siding to Architectural 

Consulting Group in the amount of $97,500 
G. Approve Caleb Chase Fund Request in the amount of $614.82 
H. Vote to sign a letter of support for the CWMP for the Cape Cod Commission Hearing 

Ms. Kavanagh moved approval of the Consent Agenda with the exception of Item C. Mr. Hughes 
seconded the motion. Mr. Hooper answered questions from Ms. Brown on Item E. The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote. Mr. Hughes recused himself on Item C. Ms. Kavanagh moved 
approval of Item C. Mr. LaMantia seconded the motion and the motion carried by a unanimous 
vote. 

OLD BUSINESS 

A. License Recognition Program at Landfill update — Lincoln Hooper 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	1 
July 25, 2016 



Mr. Hooper gave an update on the License Recognition Program noting that the system has far 
exceeded his expectations and everyone is extremely enthusiastic about it. He discussed the 
mechanics of how the system works. Mr. Hughes congratulated Mr. Hooper and his team for 
getting this done. Mr. Danya Mahota of Bonsai Logic and Mr. Hooper took questions regarding 
the operation of the system. 

B. Status report on Saquatucket Harbor Waterside RFP Process — John Rendon 

Mr. Clark outlined the following update from Mr. Rendon dated July 14, 2016: 

A quick update on the status of the project. We are still waiting for permit approval from 
the Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) for the proposed dredging and reconfiguration of 
the harbor. The application from Bourne Engineering was submitted to ACOE and 
applicable state agencies back in March. Dredge samples of the harbor have been taken 
and chemistry testing has been completed and passed on to ACOE for review. We are 
waiting for a Suitability Determination on disposal of the material, we are hoping that 
results of the chemistry testing are sufficient, and approval is granted for offshore disposal 
at the Cape Cod Bay disposal site. If the ACOE determines that additional biological 
testing is required, this will case a significant delay, and may prohibit us from dredging 
this coming winter. We should have a decision from ACOE within a week or so. We are 
also waiting for the combined Chapter 91 License / 401 Water Quality permit from the 
state (DEP). Approval from Coastal Zone Management (CZM) also is pending. 

The engineering design of the new docks and services is in its final review phase. Bourne 
Engineering is prepared to go out to bid as soon as we have approval/permit from ACOE. 
They do not recommend going out to bid prior to ACOE approval, as there may be 
conditions that are placed on the permit, or worst case the permit is not approved. We 
really need to go out to bid no later than mid-August in order to give sufficient time for 
the docks to be constructed and a dredge contractor selected and scheduled. We are in 
regular engagement with the ACOE project manager and state officials, stressing the need 
to get permits approved as soon as possible. 

C. OPEB Investment Policy Statement Amendment — discussion and possible vote 

At Mr. Clark's recommendation, Mr. Hughes moved to adopt the Investment Policy Amendment 
as proposed by the Town Treasurer to exclude OPEB funds from the Investment Policy. Mr. 
LaMantia seconded the motion and the motion carried by a unanimous vote. Mr. Hughes moved 
to adopt the Town of Harwich OPEB Liability Trust Investment Policy statement. Ms. Kavanagh 
seconded the motion and the motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

D. Transfer Station & Beach Sticker Sales update — discussion 

Chairman MacAskill noted that we have not changed our policy on the sale of these stickers but 
are rather enforcing a policy that has been on the books. Mr. Clark outlined Treasurer Amy 
Bullock's email of July 18, 2016 regarding sticker sales (attached). 

E. Library Exterior Preservation Project — discussion and possible vote 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	 2 
July 25, 2016 



The Board discussed Library Director Ginny Hewitt's letter of July 12, 2016 (attached). No action 
was taken on this item as it was agreed to wait to select a vendor in the interest of getting the best 
value for the taxpayers. 

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Letter from Sandra Hall regarding Harwich Home Rule Charter — discussion and 
possible vote 

The Board discussed the letter from Sandra Hall dated June 26, 2016 regarding the Home Rule 
Charter. Mr. LaMantia disputed some of the statements in the letter including that he has not 
witnessed any Selectmen going directly to department heads. Mr. Hughes stated that they should 
ask Ms. Hall if she knows of any particular instances. He added that there needs to be somewhere 
employees can go to if they know of this going on, perhaps to an ombudsman or the Town 
Administrator. Mr. LaMantia stated that there is an unbelievable amount of mistakes in the letter 
and it is a dangerous document. He said they need to sit down with Ms. Hall and go through each 
item line by line. He gave further examples of mistakes in the letter. Mr. Hughes said this should 
be given to the Moderator and Finance Committee to get their feedback as they are mentioned 
several times in the letter. He suggested that Mr. LaMantia and Mr. MacAskill sit down with Ms. 
Hall and figure out if these are issues or non-issues and bring this back. Mr. LaMantia asked that 
he meet with the Town Administrator and Ms. Hall instead and the Board agreed. Mr. Clark said 
he would send to the Finance Committee and Moderator as well. 

B. Board of Selectmen FY17 Goals and Objectives — discussion and possible vote 

Mr. MacAskill stated that he has received comments from Ms. Brown, Mr. Hughes and Mr. 
LaMantia and he has met with Ms. Greenhalgh on this. Mr. LaMantia suggested that there be 3 or 
4 goals for the Town Administrator and 3 or 4 goals for the Board. He stated that all these goals 
cannot be done in a year and we could just have a spreadsheet as to the status of the projects. Ms. 
Kavanagh commented that the document is a helpful tool but some of these are ongoing projects. 
Ms. Brown moved to accept these Goals and Objectives as written. Ms. Kavanagh seconded the 
motion. Mr. LaMantia said this should not be used as part of the evaluation of the Town 
Administrator but they could vote for the list and then take 3 or 4 items from it to be done between 
now and April. Chairman MacAskill pointed out that they are voting on the Board's goals and 
objectives and Mr. Clark still has to come back to us with his goals. Mr. Hughes said they should 
be going through each item and discussing before they vote. He suggested the Board do this at a 
single Board meeting. Mr. Clark said there should be guidance as to prioritization of these goals 
and there should be a Selectman liaison for each one. Mr. MacAskill stated that the goals and 
objectives can be changed at any time and added that the list can certainly be prioritized. Ms. 
Kavanagh said this is a way to move forward and she doesn't see this as a debilitating document. 
The motion carried by a 3-2-0 vote with Mr. LaMantia and Mr. Hughes in opposition. 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

A. Upcoming CCMHG Updated Agreement 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	3 
July 25, 2016 



Mr. Clark informed the Board that the Cape Cod Municipal Health Group's Joint Purchase 
Agreement is in the process of being updated and he will be bringing back a draft for the Board to 
consider. 

B. Update on new Public Records Law 

Mr. Clark noted that Town Counsel has provided us with an update on the new Public Records 
Law and we will be scheduling an informational meeting on it. He added that the Town Clerk, 
who is identified as keeper of the records by State law, should service in the capacity of Records 
Access Officer. He said he would bring back a formal recommendation for the Town Clerk to 
serve in that role. 

C. Modular buildings behind the Middle School 

Mr. Clark reported that the Police Department had an interest in having the 2 trailers for storage 
but the quote to move them was $35,000. He said we would get together a bid to dispose of the 
buildings. He added that they would be getting a quote to fix the hot water system at the Middle 
School. 

D. FEMA - Letter of Map Revision 

Mr. Clark reported that FEMA sent a letter looking for a map revision now that Muddy Creek is a 
bridge system. He said he would check with the Town Engineer to see what we have to do. 

E. KP — Prevailing Wage Law for Volunteers and Inmates 

Mr. Clark reported that Town Counsel has given us a legal opinion on prevailing wage law and as 
long as volunteers and inmates follow their own direction we do not have to follow prevailing 
wage law. 

F. Non Resident Taxpayers meeting — August 8, 2016 

Mr. Clark announced the upcoming Non Resident Taxpayers meeting and the topics to be 
discussed. 

SELECTMEN'S REPORT 

A. Chatham/Harwich Wastewater Subcommittee Meeting — update 

Mr. Clark reported that both subcommittees met on the IMA and there are still issues to work out. 
Mr. Hughes noted that they worked through the entire marked up IMA with the exception of costs 
and they will be reviewing the cost material with Bob Duncanson on Thursday. He stated that it 
was a very positive meeting and suggested that once we get the numbers that he, Mr. LaMantia 
and Mr. Clark sit down and come up with a strategy and justification as to what we think the value 
is to Harwich and bring back to the Board for consideration. He added that they should discuss 
details such as depreciation and interest and he noted that there is another meeting set for August 
17, 2016. 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	4 
July 25, 2016 



B. Committee vacancy advertising — discussion and possible vote 

Chairman. MacAskill stated that it is in the Charter that we have to advertise the committee 
vacancies weekly and we should discuss if we want to send a letter to the By-Law Charter Review 
Committee to discuss changing that requirement. Mr. Hughes said we should find out if this is 
strictly imposed by Charter or does it have something to do with State law. The Board discussed 
the expense involved with advertising every week and also the need to take advantage of current 
information technology including social media, website and online advertising. The consensus of 
the Board was that Mr. LaMantia, as liaison to the By-Law Charter Review Committee, would 
send a note to the Committee asking them to review this. 

C. General discussion on Committees — discussion and possible vote 
1. Vacancies 
2. Charge updates 
3. Members being sworn in 

Chairman MacAskill said we should start reviewing committee charges and frequency of 
committee meetings prior to the upcoming annual meetings. He noted that some committees meet 
infrequently and some committee members haven't been sworn in or taken the ethics test. He 
asked the liaisons to gather as much information as possible and speak to their chairmen and he 
would schedule this on an agenda in 4-6 weeks. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Hughes moved to adjourn at 8:44 p.m. Mr. LaMantia seconded the motion and the motion 
carried by a unanimous vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ann Steidel 
Recording Secretary 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	5 
July 25, 2016 



MINUTES 
SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

GRIFFIN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2016 

6:30 P.M. 

SELECTMEN PRESENT: Brown, LaMantia, MacAskill 

OTHERS PRESENT: Town Administrator Christopher Clark, Assistant Town Administrator 
Charleen Greenhalgh, Chief Clarke, Deputy Chief LeBlanc, Chief Guillemette, Deputy Chief 
Gagnon, Lincoln Hooper, Amy Usowski, Heinz Proft, John Rendon, Ginny Hewitt, Andy Gould, 
and others. 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 6:30 p.m. by Chairman MacAskill. 

WEEKLY BRIEFING 

A. Recognition of Police and Fire Department employees and citizens 

Chief Guillemette, Deputy Chief Gagnon, Chief Clarke and Deputy Chief LeBlanc recognized 
Officer Joseph LaBelle, Officer Phillip Southworth, Captain Craig Thornton, Firefighter Bruce 
Young, Firefighter Brad Willis, Firefighter Paul Finn, Firefighter Eric Elliott, and Firefighter Jim 
Clarke who were involved in the successful resuscitation and lifesaving efforts of a resident who 
suffered cardiac arrest on July 17th  on Riverside Drive. Deputy Chief LeBlanc further 
recognized Firefighter Shaun Piche for his efforts in recovering a couple's lost wedding rings at 
the beach. Chairman MacAskill thanked them all for their efforts on ehalf of the Board of 
Selectmen and the Town of Harwich. 

B. Introduction of new Police Officer Patrick J. Foley 

Chief Guillemette introduced his recommendation for new Police Officer, Patrick J. Foley and 
provided background information on Mr. Foley. The Board welcomed him aboard. 

Ms. Hewitt noted that the Library will be back open for full services tomorrow. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes of June 27, 2016 
B. Approve Road Race Application from The Open Doorway of Cape Cod Inc. for 2nd 

Annual Run for Recovery Flag Relay for September 24 & 25, 2016 including 
placement of flag on Police Department lawn 

C. Approve Road Race Application from American Lung Association for 32nd Annual 
Autumn Escape Bicycle Trek on September 24, 2016 

D. Approve and sign State Primary Warrant 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	1 
August 8, 2016 



E. Approve request of Channel 18 Director for disbursement from Cable Fund in the 
amount of $28,400 for the purchase of new equipment in the Channel 18 Master 
Control Unit at Community Center 

F. Approve schedule of annual meetings with Committees 
G. Confirm appointment of Patrick J. Foley as Full-time Regular Police Officer as 

recommended 
H. Approve request by Harwich Conservation Trust to waive permit fees for two tents 

at Wildlands Music & Art Stroll 
I. Accept gift of $10,852 from the Ora Gaylord Arooth Trust for the Community 

Center and authorize Chair to sign acceptance letter 

Ms. Brown moved approval of the Consent Agenda. Mr. LaMantia seconded the motion and the 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

NON-RESIDENT TAXPAYER'S MEETING 

The following topics were covered by the speakers as indicated reviewing the progress in the 
past year: 

1. Introduction of new Police Officers — Chief Guillemette 

Chief Guillemette introduced new Officers Ron Ruggiero and Ryan Fazzino 

2. Report on Safety and New Door to Door Sales By-Law — Chief Guillemette 
3. Report from the Highway Director — Lincoln Hooper 
4. Report from the Harbormaster — John Rendon 
5. Report from the Recreation Director — Eric Beebe 
6. Report from Water Superintendent — Dan Pelletier 
7. Report from Channel 18 Director on accessing live broadcasts — Jamie Goodwin 
8. Wastewater Issues — Heinz Prof t, Angelo LaMantia 
9. Overall Financial Position of the Town — Andy Gould 

Mr. Ed Costello presented a video pertaining to Grey Neck Road beach nourishment and thanked 
the Town employees for their efforts. He commented that they did a magnificent job restoring 
the beach and asked that it be done on an as needed basis with the Harbormaster determining 
when it is necessary. 

Mr. Martin Smith of 6 Seaport Lane questioned the need for a café at Saquatucket Harbor as 
recommended by the Harbormaster as it would be in direct competition with Brax Landing, a 
well-established business. Mr. Rendon stated that the committee is recommending to lease 
space for a café to provide breakfast and lunch. He said it would not be a late night facility and 
would not be in competition with Brax Landing. He commented that it is a much needed service 
that would tie the waterfront experience into the boardwalk. 

Ms. Gail Caridi expressed concerns about pedestrian safety as it is related to the Harbor project. 
Mr. Rendon responded that the Town Administrator has put in a request to MassDOT to have 
sidewalks installed from Harwich Port to Saquatucket Harbor. 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	2 
August 8, 2016 



Ms. Christine Byron expressed concern about water contamination in Nantucket Sound from the 
seal population. Mr. Proft explained that the Town does water sampling in our bathing areas, as 
well as other areas, and the coliform counts would have to exceed 100 for a beach to be closed 
for swimming. He noted that occasionally beaches have closed for this reason over the years. 
Ms. Byron asked for an update on the former Stone Horse Motel and Ms. Greenhalgh responded 
that it is now owned by Outer Cape Health. 

Mr. Bob Nickerson stated that he lives close to Ember Restaurant and it has been fairly loud 
there until up to 12:00 at night. He said he did not receive notification about this change in 
operation. Ch i aanian MacAskill responded that there was a hearing and Ms. Greenhalgh noted 
that the required notification was done. She added that issues of noise should be reported to the 
Police Department. Mr. Nickerson asked if there is any intention to put a left turn signal from 
Route 124 to Queen Anne Road and Mr. Hooper responded that the intersection was designed by 
VHB and a full traffic study was done prior to implementing it. He said he could have the Cape 
Cod Commission look at it under a safety audit but he doesn't think there is evidence to support 
a left turn signal there. 

OLD BUSINESS 

A. Award of design contract for painting of Brooks Free Library — discussion & 
possible vote 

Chairman MacAskill stated that they would hold on this item until there was a full Board. 

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

A. Town Administrator's Self Evaluation 

Chairman MacAskill acknowledged receipt of the Town Administrator's self-evaluation and 
updated goals and said they would take them up on the next agenda. 

SELECTMEN'S REPORT 

A. Announcement of Committee Vacancies 

Ms. Brown read the committee vacancy list. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman MacAskill adjourned the meeting at 8:12 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ann Steidel 
Recording Secretary 

Board of Selectmen minutes 	3 
August 8, 2016 



SELECTMEN I 
ADMiNiSTRATOR'S 

4-1  \ 	OFFICE .0" 

000 

lliE SAMPSON FUND 
*For  Yet.,,.,,  Cu.* 

P.O. fig.x 1756 

Odeuac, MA 02653 

508 24 0 PETS 

August 24, 2016 

Board of Selectmen 

Town Hall 

732 Main Street 

Harwich, MA 02645 

Sick cS Injured Annuals A New Leash On Life 

Dear Board Members: 

The Sampson Fund For Veterinary Care is an all-volunteer nonprofit that provides financial assistance for 

emergency and critical veterinary treatment for Cape Cod dogs and cats whose owners cannot afford it 

on their own (brochure enclosed). The Fund owns no buildings and has no paid employees. We rely on 

donations and fundraising events to support our cause. 

One of our biggest events has been our Plants For Pets Garden Sale, which is to be held for the first time 

at the Harwich Community Center on May 20, 2017. We made the change after six years in Dennis to 

Harwich because a Survey Monkey questionnaire revealed most of our customer base is here. 

The Harwich Board of Health requires a temporary food service (single event) payment of $50, unless 

this payment is waived by the Board of Selectmen. 

It was explained to me that the Board will waive this payment if money raised at the event goes back to 

the community. Although the funds do not go back directly to residents, Harwich residents certainly use 

our nearby Sampson Fund-affiliated veterinary hospitals, VCA Pleasant Bay Animal Hospital in East 

Harwich, Brewster Veterinary Hospital and the emergency care facility, Cape Cod Veterinary Specialists 

in South Dennis. 

It is our hope that you will waive this payment. Thank you for considering this request. 

Sincerely, 

Irene Cooper 

Chairperson, Plants For Pets 2017 

40 Cottonwood Road 

Harwich, MA 02645 

irenecooper@comcast.net  

508-430-6105 

www.SampsonEmd.org  



Phone (508) 430-7513 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 	 Fax (508) 432-5039 

Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 	732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

MEMO 

TO: 	Board of Selectmen 

FROM: 	Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 

RE: 	Utility Hearing — 51 Ocean Avenue 

DATE: 	August 26, 2016 

On Thursday, August 25, 2016 a Utility Hearing was held per the request of Eversource Energy. 
The request was to install approximately 35' of conduit and cable to provide service to 51 Ocean 
Avenue. The homeowner was present. As no abutters were in attendance and there were no 
concerns by department heads, I recommend that the Board approve the Eversource petition. 



MINUTES 
Utility Hearing 

51 Ocean Avenue 
Thursday, August 25, 2016 

Town Hall Library 
11:00 A.M. 

Those present included: Jessica Elder, Right-of-Way Agent — Eversource Energy, Christopher 
Clark, Town Administrator, Anne Marie Dooley — Homeowner, Ann Steidel - Administrative 
Secretary 

Mr. Clark opened the hearing at 11:00 a.m. and read the hearing notice. Ms. Elder explained that 
this is a petition to install approximately 35' of conduit under the Town road to supply service to 
51 Ocean Avenue. She noted that the cable will go from the hand hole at the side of the road to 
the hand hole on the homeowner's property and they will likely not need to trench as they intend 
to do directional drilling. 

No abutters attended the Hearing. Mr. Clark stated that the cobblestones should be replaced if 
they are disturbed and the boxes should be flush mounted. He further noted that there were no 
objections from Town departments and that he would be recommending that the Board of 
Selectmen approve the application. 

There was a discussion regarding the timing of the work to be scheduled. 

Mr. Clark closed the hearing at 11:08 a.m. 

Submitted by: 

Ann Steidel 
Administrative Secretary 



	

EVERSeURCE 	484 Willow Street 

	

ENERGY 
	

W. Yarmouth, Massachusetts 02673 

July 26, 2016 

Town Administrators 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02653 

Dear Board Members: 

Enclosed is a petition to install approximately 35 feet of conduit/cable under the Public Roadway in Ocean Ave, 
Harwich. 

This proposed location (s) is necessary to provide electrical service to customer at 51 Ocean Avenue. This 
petition will require a notice to abutters and a hearing. 

Will you please present this petition before the Board for customary action and approval? 

If you have any questions please call me at 508-790-9022. 

egards, 

Jessica Elder 
Right of Way Agent 
NSTAR Electric 
d/b/a Eversource Energy 

Enc. 



PETITION FOR 
UNDERGROUND CABLE AND CONDUIT LOCATIONS 

WO#2139469 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 	 July 23, 2016 
To the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Harwich, Massachusetts. 

NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY dlbla EVERSOURCE ENERGY 

request permission to locate underground cables, conduits and manholes, including the 
necessary sustaining and protecting fixtures, in, under, along and across the following public 
way or ways: 

51 Ocean Ave, Harwich 
To install 35' of conduit and cable and 1 handhole. 

Wherefore it prays that after due notice and hearing as provided by law, it be granted a 
location for and permission to install and maintain underground cables, conduits, and 
manholes, together with such sustaining and protecting fixtures as it may find necessary, said 
underground cables, conduits, and manholes to be installed in accordance with the plan files 
herewith marked Plan No. 103920 Dated June 7, 2016. 

NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY d/b/a Eversource Energy 

By 	 
Right of Way Agent 

Jessica S. Elder 



#53 

13-Z17-A-0 
53 OCEAN AV 
JAZWINSKI A_EX 
53 OCEAN AV 
HARWICH PORT, MA 02646 

13- 
49 CEAN A 
B•'.IERI MI 
B A RBIERI ALL 
1 6 BELLECAIRE 
L NOMEADOW, M 

RT, MA 02646 

13-Z3-3 
47 OCEAN AV 
CARLOZZI M 
PO BOX 63 
HARWICH P 

H Y ELIZ 

HAEL J TRS ET 
M TRS 

VE 
01106 

#49 

22/H2A 

1-4" SHED 80 CONDUIT 
fL=35'± 

OCEAN AVE 

13-Y20-0 
51 OCEAN AV 
DOOLEY-TRABUCCO AN 
OCEAN AVENUE REAL 
492 MAIN ST 
HARWICH, MA 02645 

E MARIE T 
TRUST. 

22/I-12B 

22/2 

N:ISHARED-mmas-v102\CIMAGEIBASELINSISOUTHIHAR\OCI 
Plan to accompany petition of EVERSOURCE ENERGY 

To install approximately 35'± of underground cable & conduit under 
town roa.d from 22/H2A to 22/H2B 

to provide electric service for customer at #51 OCEAN AVE.. 

.LEGEND 
ei  Proposed Hand Hole 

€13 Exiting Hand Hole 

Proposed Conduit 

Exiting Conduit 

e  Proposed Pole 

Pole with Riser 
• Exiting Pole 

BY YOUR USE OF THE INFORMATION coNTANEO IN 'DRS 10. YOU AGREE THAT NO WARRANTY OF ANY 
KIM EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IS GIVEN WITH RESPECT TO THE INTORLIACON. HEINER !STAR ELECTRIC 
COMPANY, NOR CAS COAPANY NCH ITS PARENTS, AFTILATEs, OFFICERS, SHOOTERS, SHAREHOLDERS, 
EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS (COLLECTIVELY THE 'NSW. MILES") SHALL BE Lusa FOR ANY LOSS OR 
INJURY CAUSED IN }BICLE DR IN PART BY USE Of MS ,NFERNAILON OR IN RELIANCE UPON LE TO 
THE 511514U11 ErENT ALLOWED BY Ulf YOU AGREE BY SOUR ACCEPTANCE CF THE INFoRimroN TO 
RELEASE, INDEMNIFY AND WO NE WAR BOWS HARMLESS EACH Orr SUCH LASS OR INJURY. 

THE IllORIAAIION BAY NOT REPRESENT A SURVEY. MAY HOT BE THE MOST COMPLETE AND B SUBJECT 
TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. NO LABILITY IS ASSUMED FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORIATION, 
DRYER EXPRESSED OR DAPLED, UNALITHERI2EE AEILUPTS TO LIODIFY THE INFORMATION OR USE THE 
INTONATION FOR OTHER THAN 115 INTERRED PURPOSES ARE PROHIBITED 

Plan # 	103920 
Ward # 
Work Order # 2139469 

Surveyed by: 

Research by: 

Plotted by: TL 

AqtAZ EVERS "IJRCE 
d/b/a 

1165 LIA,,,,HUSETIS AVE DORCHESTER, MASS. 02125 

Plan of #51 OCEAN AVE 

HARWICH 

Showing PROPOSED HAND HOLE AND CONDUIT LOACATIONS 

0 	20 
	

40 

SCALE IN FEET 

MASS. LAW 
REQUIRES 72 HOURS ADVANCE NOTICE TO UTILITY COMPANIES 
BEFORE DIGGING BY ANYONE. CALL DIG-SAFE 1-888-344-7233 

Proposed Structures: TL 

Approved: 	A DEBENEDICTIS 

P# 

1"=20' 	Date JUNE 7, 2016 
SHEET 	1 of 1 
Scale 



RE011-,i 

'AUG 23 20Th 
'TOWN O1.81AK 
Tom of Hamloth 

Mass. 

Raymond Gottwald, Chairman 
Democratic Town Committee 

38 Huckleberry Path 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Board of Registrars 
Town Hall 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

RE: Additional Elections Workers 

Due to the large turnout expected for the November 2016 Presidential Election a 
request for an additional two names be added to the list of election workers to be 
appointed. The names are as follows: 

Marilyn Schlansky 
	

Paul Schlansky 
28 Glenwood Drive 
	28 Glenwood Drive 

Harwich, MA 02645 
	

Harwich, MA 02645 

Respectfully, 

V:27:7.2.4 

Raymond Gottwald, Chairman 
Harwich Democratic Town Committee 



4. 
RECE1VE0 

AUG 2 2 2016 
TOWN CLERK 
Town of Harwich, 

Mass. 

Harwich Republican Town Committee 
PO Box 1374 
Harwich, MA 02645 

M
PUBLJ CALI 

August 19, 2016 

Board of Registrars 
Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Subject: List of Election Workers 

Attached please find the List of Harwich Republican Town 
Committee Workers for 2016, amended August 18, 2016 to 
include Virginia Stark. 

Best regards, 

Peter Hughes, Chairman 
Harwich Republican Town Committee 

Attachment 



8/18/2016 (amended) 

2016 Republican Election Workers 

Ruth Barnett 

David Bassett 

Emily Brutti 

Dorothy Hemmings-Bassett 

Janet Bowers 

Richard Bowers 

Eric Carroll 

Gayle Carroll 

Lee Chase 

Judy Davis 

John Eldredge 

Marjorie Frith 

Richard Gomes 

Jeffrey Hadley 

Sandra Hall 

Donald Howell 

Linda Hughes 

Janet Kaiser 

Ann Kaplan 

Barbara Madson 

Beverly Millar 

MaryAnn Pina 

Deborah Sementa 

Virginia Stark 

Judith Sullivan 

Pat Switchenko 

Lou Urbano 

Sally Urbano 

18 Rainbow Way, Harwich 
	

432-3648 

8 Moody Road, Harwich Port 
	

237-1514 

28 Hillcrest Drive, Harwich 

8 Moody Road, Harwich Port 
	

237-1514 

142 Kendrick Rd, Harwich 
	

432-8895 

P 0 Box 244, Harwich 
	

432-8895 

434 Lower County Road, Harwich Port 
	

432-9316 

434 Lower County Road, Harwich Port 
	

432-9316 

2 Robbins Road, Harwich Port 
	

432-2236 

170 Gorham Rd, Harwich Port 
	

432-9312 

9 Forsythia Rd, Harwich 
	

432-0965 

231 Route 28 23, West Harwich 
	

430-1104 

15 Ridgevale Rd, South Harwich 
	

432-1431 

29 Scotlin Way, Harwich 
	

432-3124 

24 Intervale Ln, Box 426, South Harwich 432-1963 

14 Haskell Lane, Harwich 
	

430-1672 

41 Martha Ln, Box 54, South Harwich 
	

432-7512 

4 Spring Tide Lane, Harwich 
	

432-3277 

154 Clearwater Dr, Harwich 
	

432-9886 

247 Church St, Harwich 
	

432-2945 

11 Carriage Lane, Harwich 
	

432-3142 

3 Frances Road, Harwich 
	

432-8455 

1 Captain Bearse Rd, Harwich 
	

432-6147 

4 Paddock Road, Harwich 
	

432-5526 

3 Riley Road, Harwich 
	

432-2458 

152 Riverside Drive, West Harwich 
	

858-922-4212 

152 Riverside Drive, West Harwich 
	

425-583-8494 

105 Uncle Venies Road, P 0 Box, South Harwich 



NM Harwich Cranberry Festival Inc. 

508527-7620 	P.O. Box 555 	Harwich Port, Massachusetts 02646 

 

Nr.  

F. 2nyi 

1/, 

August 23, 2016 

Michael MacAskill 

Board of Selectmen 

Town of Harwich 

732 Main Street 

Harwich, MA 02645 

Dear Chairman MacAskill and Selectmen, 

The Harwich Cranberry Festival, Inc., celebrating its 40th anniversary, would like to request 

a charity fundraising special liquor license for serving wine at the 2016 Cranberry Jam, 

held in cooperation with the Harwich Youth and Rec Commission during the Harwich 

Cranberry Arts and Music Festival, on the weekend of September 17 and 18, 2016. The 

Cranberry Jam concert will be held on Saturday, September 17 from Noon to 8 P.M. 

The wine will be sold within the fenced enclosure of the music performance area at Brooks 

Park, 9 Oak Street, Harwich, MA. An appropriate wrist band will be required for the 

purchase of the wine and the servers are certified professional bartenders. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

Edward McManus, President 

Harwich Cranberry Festival 

Enclosures (2): Commonwealth Of Massachusetts, Certificate for Solicitation; 

Commonwealth Of Massachusetts, Certificate of Exemption 



Jio  

e\ - 

• rl 

SSD 	AUG 2 ? 2916 
;:;EL FCTMEN / 

ACitvlitiiinTRATOR'S 

OFFICE 

UM Harwich Cranberry Festival Inc. 

508-527-7620 	P.O. Box 555 	Harwich Port, Massachusetts 02646 

August 23, 2016 

Michael MacAskill 

Board of Selectmen 

Town of Harwich 

732 Main Street 

Harwich, MA 02645 

Dear Chairman MacAskill and Selectmen, 

The Harwich Cranberry Festival, Inc., celebrating its 40th anniversary, would like to request 

a charity fundraising special liquor license for serving beer at the 2016 Cranberry Jam, 

held in cooperation with the Harwich Youth and Rec Commission during the Harwich 

Cranberry Arts and Music Festival, on the weekend of September 17 and 18, 2016. The 

Cranberry Jam concert will be held on Saturday, September 17 from Noon to 8 P.M. 

twill The wow will be sold within the fenced enclosure of the music performance area at Brooks 

Park, 9 Oak Street, Harwich, MA. An appropriate wrist band will be required for the 

purchase of the beer and the servers are certified professional bartenders. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

Edgard McManus, President 

Harwich Cranberry Festival 

Enclosures (2): Commonwealth Of Massachusetts, Certificate for Solicitation; 

Commonwealth Of Massachusetts, Certificate of Exemption 



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
FFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

ONE ASHB URTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02 1 0 8 

MAURA HEALEY 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

(617) 727-2200 
(617) 727-4765 TTY 
www.mass.goviago 

HARWICH CRANBERRY FESTIVAL, INC. 
P.O. Box 555 
Harwichport, MA 02646 

Certificate for Solicitation 

This certificate has been issued to the organization listed below because it is current in its filings with 
the Attorney General's Division of Non-Profit Organizations/Public Charities. This registration in no manner 
constitutes endorsement or approval by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts of the named organization. 

Name of organization: 	HARWICH CRANBERRY FESTIVAL, INC. 

Certificate End Date: 	05/15/2017 

Attorney General's Account Number: 022605 

Issued By 
The Division of Non-Profit Organizations/Public Charities 
Business and Labor Bureau 



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 
PO BOX 7044 
BOSTON, MA 02204-7044 
CONTACT CENTER 
(617) 857-6367 

Letter ID: L0793560064 
Notice Date: August 1, 2016 

MA Taxpayer ID: 10205554 

  

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION 

   

   

   

   

1141/1111111/1htulphhitlylpilliqinliiirl019111111 

HARWICH CRANBERRY FESTIVAL INC 
2C DOANE RD 
HARWICH PORT MA 026464514 

Attached below is your Certificate of Exemption (Form ST-2). Cut along the dotted line and display at 
your• Place of business. You must report any change of name or address to us so that—a revised ST-2 can 
be issued. 

    

DETACH HERE 

     

MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 	Form ST-2 

Certificate of Exemption 

HARWICH CRANBERRY FESTIVAL 1NC 
	

MA Taxpayer ID: 10205554 
2C DOANE RD 
	

Certificate Number: 1192505344 
HARWICH PORT MA 02646-1514 

This certifies that the organization named above is an exempt purchaser under Chapter 6411, section 6(d) or (e) of the 
Massachusetts General Laws. All purchases of tangible personal property by this organization are exempt from taxation to the 
extent that such property is used in the conduct of the business of the purchaser. Misuse of this certificate by any tax-exempt 
organization or unauthorized use of this certificate by any individual will lead to revocation. Willful misuse of this certificate is 
subject to criminal sanctions of up to one year in prison and $10,000 ($50,000 for corporations) in fines. This certificate is non-
transferable and may be suspended or revoked for failure to comply with state laws and regulations. 

Effective Date: September 8, 2016 	Expiration Date: September 7, 2026 



 

OFFICE OF THE SELECTMEN 
732 MAIN STREET 
HARWICH, MA 02645 
508-430-7513 

APPLICATION FOR ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 

	Weekday Entertainment ($75)  /  1 day ($25) 	New application 	 
	 Batters Box ($50) 	Renewal 	 
	Go Carts ($50) 	Annual 	 
	 Miniature Golf ($50) 	Seasonal 	 
	Trampolines ($25) 	Opening Date 	 
	Theater ($150 per cinema) 

Automatic Amusement: 
	Juke Box ($100 each) 
	Video Games ($100 each) 	Other 	 

Business Name  Name 	ctro I 110 ,/ 	Phone  -) clY—) qi  
Business Address 

Mailing Address 	\OC)  

Owners Name & Address  d,. 	r(- 0„rA 	n  
Email Address  en in(Dva 	of. Cow)  

Managers Name & Address 	 

TIMES AND DAYS OF WEEK FOR ENTERTAINMENT (Please note this application does not 
cover Sundays. You can obtain a Sunday license application at the Selectmen's Office): 

ENTERTAINMENT TYPE: (Check all appropriate boxes) 

	Concert 	VDance 	Exhibition 	Cabaret 	Public Show 	Other 

	Dancing by Patrons 	)''n 

	Dancing by Entertainers or Performers 	\eeQ  p+ 
	Recorded or Live Music 

	 Jse of Amplification System 

	Theatrical Exhibit, Play or Moving Picture Show 

	A Floor Show of Any Description 

	A Light Show of Any Description 

	Any Other Dynamic Audio or Visual Show, Whether Live or Recorded 



At any time during this concert, dance exhibition, cabaret or public show, will any person(s) be 
permitted to appear on the premises in any manner or attire as to expose to the public view any 
portion of the body as described in Mass. General Laws Chapter 140, Section 183A, Para. 3. 

 

Yes 

  

If Yes, answer questions 1 through 4 below. Attach a separate sheet and/or exhibits if necessary: 

1. Describe in complete detail the extent of exposure during the performance and the nature of 

the entertainment: 

2. Furnish additional information concerning the condition of the premises and how they are 

suitable for the proposed entertainment: 	 

3. Fully describe the actions you will take to prevent any adverse effects on public safety, 

health, or order: 	 

4. Identify whether an how you will regulate access by minors to the premises: 	 

Days/Hours of Business Operation  -\Thr1 	)(\Thyy-)47  

Pursuant to MGL, Chapter 62C, Section 49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that I, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, have filed all State tax returns, and have paid all State taxes under the law. 

Signature of applicant & title 	Social Security # or Federal 1.1:11. # 

Signature of individual or corporate name 	Social Security # or Federal I.D. # 

Signature of Manager 	Social Security # or Federal I.D. # 

Signature of Partner 	Social Security # or Federal I.D. # 

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE FORM  
The premises to be licensed as described herein have been inspected and found to be in compliance with 
applicable local codes & regulations, Awi 	ding oning ordinances, health gulations & buildi 	Ire codes. 

 	_onl  
p 63iou nO 

y&) 	AAllitgaj 
Building Commissioner 	:oa d of Heal 	epartment 

------  comments: 
Police Departmen 	c4i)/ 

Required signatures to be obtained by the applicant prior to submission of new applications. 



CHAPTER 90 PROJECT REQUEST 

CONTRACT ID # 50829A 
CLASSIFICATION: 	Primary Road 

CITY/TOWN 	HARWICH 

Local Road PROJECT # 

 

   

PROJECT: 	RESURFACE VARIOUS ROADS  

LOCATION: 	SEE ATTACHED 	LENGTH 	 WIDTH: 	 

PROJECT TYPE: 	Construction 	Reconstruction 	X Resurfacing 	Improvement 

Other: 

TYPICAL SECTION DETAILS: State depths, special treatments, etc... 

Include sketch for Construction/Improvement Projects and Resurfacing/Rehabilitation Schedule 

Surface: 

Base Course: 

Foundation: 

Shoulders/Sidewalks: 

Scope of Work: (Attach additional sheets if necessary to completely describe project) 

TO RESURFACE VARIOUS ROADS THROUGHOUT TOWN (SEE ATTACHED LIST) 

Work to be done: Force Account 	Advertised Contract 	Other: 	COUNTY BID 

Estimated Cost (Attach estimate and list funding sources) 

  

414,645.70 

      

CERTIFICATION  

The design, engineering, construction, and future performance of the project, including maintenance, 
is the responsibility of the Municipality. The proposed work will conform to recognized engineering practices 
and construction methods. 

I/We certify to the following: that the project is on a public way, and has a recorded layout; that all materials 
will comply with approved established specifications; that all weights and quantities will be accurate; that 
equipment rental rates are those established by the M.H.D. or the advertised low bid; that all documentation 

for expenditures will be for items incorporated into this project; that the documentation will be checked for 
accuracy, and will be endorsed in accordance with municipal procedures for accountability. 

Prepared by: Signed: 

 

    

(Highway Official) 

(Duly Authorized Municipal Official(s)) 

Reviewed by: 	Approved by: 
(State Aid Engineer) 	(District Highway Director) 

Approved for: 	@  	Date: 



CHAPTER 90 ENVIRONMENTAL PUNCH LIST 

City/Town 	 HARWICH 

MassHighway District # 	5 

Proposed Work 	Construction 	Resurfacing ✓ 	Improvement 	Other: 

NOTE: ALL ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS / APPROVALS MUST BE OBTAINED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 

1.  Will the pavement width increase 4 ft. or more for an aggregate length of 1000 ft. or more? Yes No ✓ 

2.  Will the bank or terrain (other than alteration required for installation of equipment or 

structures) be altered at a distance exceeding 10 ft. from the pavement? Yes No ✓ 

3.  Will the removal of 5 or more trees with diameters of 14 inches or more be required? Yes No ✓ 

4.  Will more than 300 ft. of stone wall be removed or altered? Yes No ✓ 

5.  Will the project involve construction of a parking lot with capacity of 50 cars or more? Yes No ✓ 

6.  Are any other MEPA review thresholds exceeded (see 301 CMR 11.00)? Yes No ✓ 

If your answer is YES to any of questions 1-6, you must file an Environmental Notification Form (ENF).* 

7.  Will the project be on a "Scenic Road" (Acts of 1973, C. 67)? Yes No ✓ 

If your answer is YES, your Planning Board or Selectmen / City Council must give written consent 

for cutting / removal of trees or changes to stone walls. 

8.  Have all necessary takings, easements, rights of entry, etc. been completed? Yes ✓ No 

If a County Hearing is required, it must be held prior to starting work. 

9.  Are archaeological, anthropological, historical, etc. problems / impacts anticipated?* Yes No 

10.  Is any work proposed in or within 100 ft. of a wetland (stream, pond, swamp, etc.)?* 

If your answer is YES, you must file the project with your local Conservation Commission prior to starting 

Yes ✓ No 

work. 

11.  If work is proposed in a wetland or water resource, a permit may be required from the Yes No ✓ 

Department of Environmental Protection, Corps of Engineers, etc.. Verify with agencies.* 

* See Appendix K fora List of Environmental Agencies. 

Validation 

It is recognized that the purpose of this information is to assist the MassDOT in approving the Chapter 90 Project 

Request Form (of which this is a part). Accordingly, the information provided here is intended to be complete and correct 

with no intentional errors or material omissions. Any action taken by Mass. Highway on the basis of this information 

shall not legally or financially obligate Mass. Highway to support or defend the municipality, and the municipality 

shall save harmless MassDOT for any action. 

Prepared by: 	Signed: 	 
(Highway Official) 

Date: 	8/29/16 

(Duly Authorized Municipal Official(s)) 



PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE - CHAPTER 90 FORCE ACCOUNT 

TOWN 	 HARWICH 

STATION 	ROUTE 28 

STATION 

ALLOTMENT 

ROAD 	DEPOT ROAD WEST  

TO STATION 	DENNIS TOWN LINE 	LENGTH 	3,700 	FT. 

TO STATION 

August 29, 2016 20 DATE 

QUANTITY UNIT KIND OF WORK PRICE AMOUNT 

1,525 TONS BITUMINOUS CONCRETE (1.5 LEVEL/1.5"" TOP) $84.80 $ 	129,320.00 

150 TONS BITUMINOUS CONCRETE (HANDWORK) $84.80 $ 	12,720.00 

160 HOURS POLICE DETAILS $50.00 $ 	8,000.00 

3,700 L.F. DOUBLE YELLOW CENTERLINES - THERMOPLASTIC $0.74 $ 	2,738.00 

7,400 L.F. SINGLE WHITE EDGELINES - THERMOPLASTIC $0.37 $ 	2,738.00 

50 L.F. 12" THERMOPLASTIC LINES $1.39 $ 	69.50 

25 EACH DRAINAGE STRUCTURES ADJUSTED $285.00 $ 	7,125.00 

22,200 SQ. FT. HYDROSEED $0.11 $ 	2,442.00 

TOTAL $ 	165,152.50 



PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE - CHAPTER 90 FORCE ACCOUNT 

TOWN 	HARWICH 	ROAD 	CHATHAM ROAD  

STATION 	MELLO LANE 	TO STATION 	ROUTE 28 	LENGTH 	5,355 	FT. 

STATION 	TO STATION 

20 

 

ALLOTMENT 

 

DATE August 29, 2016 

      

      

QUANTITY UNIT KIND OF WORK PRICE AMOUNT 

2,400 TONS BITUMINOUS CONCRETE (1.5 LEVEL/1.5"" TOP) $84.80 $ 	203,520.00 

180 TONS BITUMINOUS CONCRETE (HANDWORK) $84.80 $ 	15,264.00 

224 HOURS POLICE DETAILS $50.00 $ 	11,200.00 

5,355 L.F. DOUBLE YELLOW CENTERLINES - THERMOPLASTIC $0.74 $ 	3,962.70 

10,710 L.F. SINGLE WHITE EDGELINES - THERMOPLASTIC $0.37 $ 	3,962.70 

50 L.F. 12" THERMOPLASTIC LINES $1.39 $ 	69.50 

28 EACH DRAINAGE STRUCTURES ADJUSTED $285.00 $ 	7,980.00 

32,130 SQ. FT. HYDROSEED $0.11 $ 	3,534.30 

TOTAL $ 	249,493.20 



To: 	Christopher Clark, Town Manager 

From: Robert Cafarelli, Town Engineer //-

Paul Sweetser, Town Surveyor 

Date: July 8, 2016 

Re: 	Albro House Office Space 

Engineering 
Department 

REcrIvEll 

JUL 8 -2018 
SELECTME4 

AVAMS7,10,1TEMI rik,fs f  
rwipa 

)„ 

Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

e mo 

It has been recognized that the second floor has limited space for the operation 
of the Community Development Departments and Engineering Department. The 
Engineering Department was moved to what was originally designed as a file 
room during the last re-organization. 

Paul and I feel that moving the Engineering Department to the first floor of the 
Albro House would give the Engineering Department more appropriate space for 
our operation, and release more space for Community Development operations. 

We have been talking to Foster regarding purchasing a large scale copier/printer 
to replace the aging copier and printer we are currently using. If we can 
purchase that, we can leave the current large scale copier for the Community 
Development team on the second floor. 

Let me know if you need any additional information on this. 



Harwich Community Center Room Use Fee Updates for FY 2016 — 2017 

Room use fees at the Community Center have remained unchanged since 2011, 
yet the costs associated with operating the building continue to rise. To reconcile these 
differences between revenue taken in and costs to run the building, we are looking to 
update our room use fees. The updates are meant to function in a manner that balances 
the financial sustainability of the building with our commitment to ensuring the 
accessibility of Center space and resources for all in our community. 

The vast majority of groups that reserve space at the Community Center are either 
Town Departments which use the building at no charge, or are local non-profit groups. 
These entities are given top priority when scheduling available rooms at the Community 
Center. 

When space is available after accommodating Town Departments and non-profit 
organizations, we open our rooms to for-profit groups that are consistent with the 
Community Center mission and values. Further, all for-profit groups are required to get 
Facilities Committee approval to host their meetings or events at the Community Center 
when making their initial reservation request. 

Updates to Non-profit Room Use Fees for FY 17 

Community Center Director Carolyn Carey and the Community Center Facilities 
Committee have sought and received input on increases in room use fees for non-profit 
groups for FY 17 since January 2016. Input was received from members and organizers 
of non-profit groups and events, as well as from many Center patrons. The proposed 
changes are defined in the table below and provided the starting point for discussion and 
feedback from affected and interested parties. 

Room 
Current 

Fee 
Proposed Fee 

Percent 
Increase 

Activity Rooms 
Single Use $35 $40 14.3% 

Yearly (104 max uses) $150 $165 10.0% 

Multipurpose Room 
Single Use $50 $60 20.0% 

Yearly (104 max uses) $250 $275 10.0% 

Gymnasium 
Single Use $100 $125 25.0% 

Yearly (104 max uses) $400 $450 12.5% 
Average Percent Increase: 15.3% 



There was universal support for the changes stated in the table above. These changes 
were passed unanimously in a vote by the Facilities Committee on February 12, 2016. 

Updates to For-profit Room Use Fees for FY 17 

It has been Community Center policy to charge for-profit groups that have been approved 
by the Facilities Committee a rate that is double that paid by non-profit groups when 
space is available. 

The proposal for FY 17 is largely consistent with past practice with several notable 
alterations defined here. The proposed changes have been informed by feedback from 
patrons and townspeople, members of the Facilities Committee, and affected Department 
Heads operating from within the Community Center. 

1. We propose to differentiate between fitness classes which have previously fallen 
under the for-profit umbrella from other for-profit groups and organizations. 
Details for this distinction are as follows: 

A. Fitness and athletic classes can be sponsored by the Recreation 
Department, the Council on Aging, or the Community Center. This 
sponsorship is subject to Facilities Committee approval. 

B. Sponsored classes will pay the non-profit fee for room reservations as well 
as a fee of $5 per person per class session into the Town general fund. The 
remainder of the collected class fees less the $5 per person per session is 
processed through the revolving fund and subsequently paid to the 
instructor. All funds processed through the revolving fund are signed off 
on my both the Community Center and Recreation Department Directors. 

C. This sponsorship of fitness classes will allow the Recreation Department, 
Council on Aging, and Community Center Department Directors to meet 
the ongoing needs of their patrons and constituents and to offer these 
highly requested services at rates lower than would be offered by private 
businesses. 

2. We propose to eliminate the yearly fee option for for-profit groups. We have 
received feedback indicating a concern that the yearly fee option for for-profit 
groups does not adequately differentiate between non-profit and for-profit groups 
when broken down into a price per single use analysis. Therefore, we propose to 
reserve rooms to for-profit groups on a single use basis only. The single-use fee 
will continue to be twice the rate charged to non-profit groups. For FY 17, the 
proposed fee for for-profit groups is $80 per single use of an Activity Room, 
$120 per single use of the Multi-purpose Room, and $250 per single use of the 
Gymnasium. 

3. 	We propose to add a time limit of three hours for any single use of the building by 
for-profit groups. This proposal is also based on feedback we have received since 
beginning the process of reviewing and updating our room use fees. 



Weight Room Fees and Services 

Residents of Harwich are eligible to the join the Community Center Weight Room 
and have several different membership options including daily, weekly, monthly, yearly, 
and seasonal types. The fees for these membership types have not increased for FY 17. 

The Community Center has hired a certified personal trainer to work in the 
Weight Room on Monday mornings from 9:15 AM to 11:15 AM. The trainer is paid 
through the weight room revolving fund account. Individuals who have purchased a 
membership for the Weight Room are able to meet with this trainer at no additional cost; 
access to her services and expertise is included in their membership fee. 

There is currently an evening position open for another certified personal trainer 
to hold hours in the Center Weight Room. The trainer hired to fill this position will also 
be paid through the weight room revolving account. Adding another trainer with evening 
hours will work to ensure that Weight Room members have equal access to a professional 
for assistance and consultation regarding exercise plans and goals as well as proper use of 
weight room equipment regardless of their preferred time to use the Weight Room. 



HARWICH 
Admission fees 

Admission fees shall not be charged without prior 
written approval of the Community Center Facilities 
Committee or its designee, 

Loss of Personal Property 
The Community Center assumes no responsibility for 
the personal property of individuals or groups utilizing 
the facilities and/or property. 

CENTER 
100 Oak Street, Harwich, MA 02645 

508-430-7568 

User Fees 
Each Club, organization, or individual is required to pay 
to the town of Harwich the designated amount for the 
room use on a yearly or one-time basis. Fee waivers 
will only be granted to those individuals groups and 
organizations whose contributions to the Harwich 
Community Center are greater than the monetary value 
of the room fee. 

Use Policy 

 

 

  

Harwich Community Center 
Mission Statement 

The mission of the Harwich Community Center is to 
provide facilities for the residents (permanent residents 
and nonresident taxpayers) of Harwich to engage in 
recreational, social, educational, cultural, community 
service, civic, and governmental activities. The Center 
should provide opportunities for persons of all ages to 
participate in a wide range of programs that educate and 
stimulate the public, enhance self-confidence, and 
promote mental and physical health. 

The primary responsibility for the program and activity 
development lies with the Council on Aging and the 
Recreation and Youth Department. 	However, the 
Community Center Facilities Committee and the 
Community Center Manger may develop and/or promote 
social, cultural, community service, or governmental 
activities in keeping with this mission statement and the 
policies outlined in this Use Policy brochure. 

 

  

  

The Harwich Community Center Use Policy 
was developed by the 

Community Center Facilities Committee 
and approved by the 

Harwich Board of Selectmen 
on October 15, 2001 
and revised on 2008 

HARWICH 
Community 
CENTER 

100 Oak Street, Harwich, MA 02645 

 

HARWICH COMMUNITY CENTER MANAGER " 
Carolyn B. Carey 



Introduction 
This policy prescribes the rules and regulations under 
which non-Council on Aging and non-Recreation and 
Youth departments may make the Harwich Community 
Center facilities and equipment available for use. 
Community groups wishing to use the Community 
Center must make application each year for the ensuing 
year. Applications will be accepted each May from 
Harwich-based groups for the following July through 
June. Questions concerning the interpretation of this 
policy will be referred to the Community Center 
Manager. 

Administration 
Administration of this policy/agreement shall be the 
responsibility of the Community Center Manager. The 
Community Center Facilities Committee shall approve 
exceptions to the policy. 

Protocol for Policy Administration 
The Community Center Manager is responsible for 
approving use of the building. If the Manager denies 
use, the proposed user may appeal to the Facilities 
Committee, which meets the second Friday of each 
month at 8:30 am. If the Committee denies the request, 
the user may appeal to the Board of Selectmen. The 
Community Center Manager may turn a request over to 
the Facilities Committee for their review at any time. 
When this occurs, the Committee will approve or deny 
the request. 

Primary Use 
The facilities and equipment of the Community Center 
are first and foremost for the use of residents of the 
Town of Harwich (as defined in the Mission Statement) 
through the regularly scheduled programs of the Council 
on Aging and the Recreation and Youth Department. 
When these facilities are not in use by participants in 
these activities, Harwich-based social, educational, 
hobby, civic, cultural, and community service groups 
may reserve them. 

The Community Center will make its facilities and 
equipment available to Harwich residents and/or groups 
whose membership and activities provide services of 
concern for residents of Harwich, in accordance with the 
rules and regulations of the Community Center Facilities 
Committee. The use of the facilities for personal or 
corporate profit is prohibited. 

Supervision 
All groups will be required to designate an individual, 21 
years of age or older, who will be responsible for the 
conduct of the group. This designated group leader must 
meet with the Community Center Manager prior to the 
anticipated use to review this policy, rules, and 
regulations and be oriented regarding the facility and/or 
equipment to be used. The Community Center will 
require a minimum ratio of adult supervisors (21 years of 
age or older) as follows: 

• 1 adult to 8 children, age 48 months to 60 months, no 
more than 16 per group. 

• 1 adult to 12 children, age 60 months to 72 months, no 
more than 24 per group. 

• 1 adult to 12 children, age 72 months to 108 months, 
no more than 24 per group. 

• 1 adult to 15 children, age 108 months to 144 month's, 
no more than 24 per group. 

• 1 adult to 15 children, age 12 to 15 years of age, no 
more than 25 per group. 

• 1 adult to 20 youth, age 15 to 19 years of age, no more 
than 30 per group. 

This ratio may be achieved by the use of additional 
qualified volunteers of the group and/or Recreation and 
Youth Staff. The Community Center reserves the right to 
assign the appropriate number of staff necessary to 
supervise any function with the cost assessed to the 
group. 

Dances and teenage parties must be supervised by a 
minimum of one adult for every 15 youth participants. 
Names and addresses of said chaperones must be 
submitted to the Community Center Manager at least 72 
hours prior to the event. 

The Community Center reserves the right to require 
police supervision to be paid for by the organization 
using the facilities. The Community Center Manager 
shall determine the need for such supervision at the time 
of application approval. 

Standards of Conduct 

Smoking, consumption of alcohol, and the use or sale 
of illegal drugs is specifically prohibited anywhere on 
the Community Center property or in the facilities. 
The Community Center reserves the right to dismiss 
any individual and/or group that does not maintain the 
Standards of Conduct. 



Exercise Room 
Individuals must sign a "Hold Harmless" agreement 
prior to using the Exercise Room equipment and use the 
equipment at their own risk. Individuals using the 
Exercise Room must be Harwich residents (see Mission 
Statement for definition). 

After completing the paperwork, an ID card is issued 
and must be shown each time the equipment is used. 

Exercise Room use requirements include: 

• Every individual must fill out an emergency card 
before using the room. 

• Persons younger than 16 years of age will not be 
allowed in the room. 

• Persons aged 16 — 18 must have a permission slip 
signed by parent or legal guardian before using the 
room. 

• The room is available on a first-come-first-serve 
basis. 

• A minimum of two (2) people and a maximum of 
twenty (20) people are allowed in the room at the 
same time. 

• A time limit of 15 minutes per machine with a 
maximum workout time of one (1) hour is 
established. 

• Each user is responsible for cleaning the equipment 
after each use. 

• To ensure a safe and pleasant workout environment, 
participants are reminded that horseplay is not 
allowed. 

• Individuals wishing to bring in audio equipment 
must use headphones. 

• No eating or drinking, other than water in plastic 
bottles, is permitted in the room. 

• Sport shoes, shorts, and shirt must be worn in the 
room at all times. 

Game Room 
The Game Room is open from 8:30 to 6:00 pm for use 
by all age groups except when scheduled by the 
Recreation and Youth Department or other community 
group. Additional hours may be available upon request 
to the Community Center Manager. 

Children under ten years of age must have adult and/or 
parent supervision present in the Game Room at all 
times. 

Play Room 
The Play Room is scheduled each morning, Monday-
Thursday, to the following programs. 

• Massachusetts Family Network-Harwich 
Community Partnership Council for Early 
Childhood: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday mornings. 

• Town Nurse: Wednesday mornings. 

Groups and individuals use of the room may be 
scheduled for children's play groups provided parents are 
present. 

Other usage may be scheduled through the Community 
Center Manager if a certified childcare provider is present 
and age appropriate supervision is maintained. 

Food & Entertainment 

Use of the caterer and/or entertainment shall be subject to 
the approval of the Community Center Manager and the 
Board of Selectmen. Musical entertainment shall cease 
no later than 11:00 pm. 

Caterers and community groups serving refreshments and 
light meals who need the use of the Community Center 
kitchen will require prior approval of the Community 
Center Manager. A $50 fee is required for maintenance 
and cleanup. Prior to use by any group and/or staff, the 
KITCHEN USER is required to read, become 
knowledgeable concerning the KITCHEN HANDBOOK, 
and sign off on the form provided by the Community 
Center Manager. 

Priority kitchen use will be for the Community Meals on 
Wheels Program and programs established by the 
Council on Aging and the Recreation and Youth 
Department. 

Access to the kitchen must be arranged with the 
Community Center Manager or designee. 

Only one side of the refrigerator may be used by the 
occasional users for the temporary storage of food prior 
to its service. Leftover food must be removed from the 
premises by the caterer or event organizer immediately 
after the close of the event. 

Utensils and serving supplies must be thoroughly cleaned 
and put away in proper places. Counters and tables must 
be washed and all equipment cleaned to Board of Health 
Standards (posted in the kitchen). 

Custodians will open, close, monitor, and report violation 
of improper use and/or cleanliness. 



Certificate of Insurance 
When applicable, all groups will be requested to provide 
a Certificate of Insurance in the amount of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) naming the Town of Harwich 
"Additional Insured" prior to use of the Community 
Center. Vendors related to groups using the facilities 
and/or equipment shall also provide a Certificate of 
Insurance to the Community Center Manager. 

The size of the group, scope of meeting, time involved 
and element of risk determined by the Community Center 
Manager will determine applicability. 

Responsibility for Damage 
The group using the Community Center and/or its leader 
shall be liable for all damage to the building, property, 
and/or equipment caused by the group. Thereafter, a 
security deposit may be required. The group will be 
notified within 36 hours of the damage and provided with 
an itemized list of damages and estimated cost of repairs. 
Payment will be required in 30 days. Failure to make 
payment may result in suspension of further use of the 
Community Center. Multiple or consecutive damage by 
a group or individual may result in barring Community 
Center participation. 

Educational — Informational 
Seminars, Workshops, Classes 

Activities of many dimensions are encouraged for 
educational, information, and/or service to Harwich 
residents. Individuals and groups may be recruited or 
offer their services as instructors. When a stipend is 
required, payment will be provided through appropriate 
accounting procedures and in accordance with the 
applicable tax code (Fee for Service or Independent 
Contractor Agreement). Under no conditions may the 
facilities be used to conduct business and/or to sell 
products for personal or corporate profit. 

Art Shows, Displays 
Art shows and displays may be scheduled when time and 
facilities permit. It is the intent of the Community 
Center to make space available for organizations and 
groups to share their talent, skill, and expertise for the 
benefit of all members of the community. The sale of 
goods and services for personal profit is prohibited. 

Benefits 
Benefits for "Not for Profit" or "Community" 
organizations may be conducted from time to time. The 
Community Center Facilities Committee or its designee 
must approve the purpose and benefits. 

Decorations 
Decorations for any event may be used only upon prior 
approval of the Community Center Manager. Only 
POSTER PUTTY may be used to adhere decorations or 
signs to the walls. The room must be left in the condition 
in which it was found, with decorations and signs 
removed by the group. The community Center Custodian 
should be consulted on cleanup before the group leaves 
the building. 

Posting of Notices 
Posting of any community event or activity within the 
Town of Harwich is permitted at the Community Center 
with a maximum of three (3) posters. Events may be 
posted three (3) weeks prior to the event date. 

Posting of signs or notices must be approved by the 
Community Center staff in designated areas. 

Equipment 
When utilizing craft materials of any kind, tables and 
floors must be covered at all times. Requests for special 
craft tables should be made when scheduling the room or 
24 hours in advance of use. 

The Community Center has a TV and VCR, a large 
screen (that must remain in the Multipurpose Room), 
and three podiums with microphones that are available 
for groups and activities. Prior arrangements must be 
made with the Community Center Manager 24 hours in 
advance of requested use. A $25 (check only) deposit is 
required for use of any audio-visual equipment. 

Custodians may not set up audio-visual equipment 
without prior, written instruction by the Community 
Center Manager. 



Phone (508) 430-7513 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
	

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 	732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

MEMO 
To: 	Board of Selectmen 

From: Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 

Re: 	McGinley Kalsow & Associates Architectural Services 

Date: 	August 3, 2016 

The Board had requested a breakdown of costs related to architectural services for the painting of the 
library pursuant to the CPC funded article at this past Annual Town Meeting. During the meeting, I 
indicated that the $25,000 Board requested limit would be related specifically to design and that 
contract administration would be separate. The Facilities Manager has received the material and is 
requesting that the details not be presented at a public meeting in case the need to go out to bid occurs. 

The summary of the total costs breakdown as follows: 

Total Architectural Services: 	$41,540 
Design Estimated 	$27,956 
Contract Administration $13,584 

Historical Paint Analysis 	$ 6,292 
Reimbursable Expenses 	$ 2,060  

Grand total 	$49,892 

The original estimated cost for the design portion of the project was $64,000 which included some 
design related to sidewalk and landscape features. Based upon the above, this amount is over the 
$25,000 design estimated limit. I believe with its breakdown it is close to the total but the Board should 
approve the proposal as submitted. The time and additional expense to bid this project as well as the 
question of obtaining an architect that has already invested considerable time and energy in the original 
feasibility study does not appear to be warranted in my mind. 



MK 
&_A 

McGinley Kalsow 
& Associates, Inc. 
ARCHITECTS & PRESERVATION PLANNERS 

July 27, 2016 

Mr. Sean Libby 
Facilities Manager 
Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 

Re: 	Brooks Free Library 
Architectural Services 

Dear Mr. Libby, 

McGinley Kalsow and Associates, Inc. (MKA) is pleased to make this proposal to you for 
architectural services for the Brooks Free Library. 

This proposal includes Design Development, Contract Documents, Bidding Assistance and 
Contract Administration services. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Design Development 
MKA will visit site to undertake a hands on inspection in an effort to fully identify wood 
deterioration, and take detailed field measurements. We estimate that this will require two days 
for two people at the library plus one separate meeting. MKA will also prepare Design 
Development Drawings and specifications. We anticipate the need for assistance for one day 
from DPW with ladder or lift. 

Historic Paint Analysis  
Historic paint analysis involving the analysis of samples taken from the library under visible and 
ultraviolet light to determine layering sequences and recommendation of corresponding chips in 
a commercial paint line. 

Contract Documents 
MKA will visit site for final review of site conditions, and prepare final drawings, specifications 
and project manual. MKA will also prepare cost estimate and development of alternates. We 
anticipate the need for assistance for half-day from DPW with ladder or lift. We will schedule a 
meeting with the town prior to advertising and public bidding of project. 

Bidding Assistance 
MKA will conduct a Prebid Conference at the library, answer Requests For Information (RFI's) 
and issue any addenda. MKA will attend bid opening. 

Contract Administration  
MKA will review submittals, RFI's, applications for payment, change order requests, and other 
contract administration items. MKA will also conduct regular site visits to review progress of 
the work. We estimate 10 site visits will be required. 

324 Broadway • PO Box 45248 • Somerville, MA 02145 • 617-625-8901 • Fax 617-625-8902 



McGinley Kalsow & Associates, Inc. 

  

   

PROPOSED COMPENSATION 

Compensation for Historic Preservation Consulting Services will be invoiced hourly based on the 
following estimated time; See attached breakdown of personnel and anticipated level of effort. 

Professional Services 
Total Architectural Services 	$41,540 
Total Historic Paint Analysis 	$6,292* 

Professional Services Subtotal: 	$47,832 

Reimbursable Expenses 
Mileage 	$1,560 
General Reimbursable Expenses 	$500 

Reimbursable Expenses Subtotal: $2,060 

TOTAL: $49,892 

*Limited to height of 18' ladder. Lift access for heights above 18' is not included in this 
proposal. 

Plan distribution will be handled by a plan service like BidDocs. At this time, we recommend 
bidding the project in January for an early Spring start of work. 

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you on this significant project. Please don't 
hesitate to call me with any questions or comments. 

Best Regards, 

Wendall C. Kalsow AIA, LEED GA 
President/Principal 

324 Broadway • PO Box 45248 • So► nerville, MA 02145 • 617-625-8901 • Fax 617-625-8902 	2 



MX 
&A 

McGinley Kalsow 
& Associates, Inc. 
ARCHITECTS & PRESERVATION PLANNERS 

Phase Principal-In-Charge Project Manager CAD 
Total 

 
(by Phase) 

Design Development 8 40 48 96 
Construction Documents 6 40 48 94 
Bidding Assistance 4 24 4 32 
Contract Administration 8 92 8 108 

Total Hours 26 196 108 330 
Rate $210 $140 $80 -- 

Total 
(by Team Member) $5460 $27,440 $8,640 $41,540 

Phase Site Visits & Harwich Meetings 

Design Development 3 
Construction Documents 2 
Bidding Assistance 2 
Contract Administration 10 

Total 17 

324 Broadway 	PO Box 45248 • Somerville, MA 02145 • 617-625-8901 • Fax 617-625-8902 



 

 

 
 

 

  

Town of Harwich 

Road Safety Audit 
Route 39 (Orleans Road) at 
Pleasant Bay Road 
 
July 29, 2016 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by the Cape Cod Commission in cooperation with the Town of Harwich and 
MassDOT Highway Division, Traffic Safety, and District 5 Offices. 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 i 

Table of Contents 

 

Background .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Road Safety Audit Multidisciplinary Team ........................................................................ 2 

Project Location and Description .......................................................................................  3 

Project Data ........................................................................................................................  6 

Road Safety Audit Observations and Potential Improvements ...........................................7 

Safety Issue #1. Obstructions ..........................................................................................  8 

Safety Issue #2. Pavement Markings & Signage ............................................................  12 

Safety Issue #3. Speed ................................................................ .................................... 15 

Safety Issue #4. Pavement Condition and Drainage .....................................................  16 

Safety Issue #5. Intersection Control ............................................................................. 17 

Safety Issue #6. Multi-modal Accommodation ............................................................. 18 

Summary of Road Safety Audit ..........................................................................................  19 

 

Appendices: 

A – Road Safety Audit Meeting Agenda 

B – Road Safety Audit Team Contact List 

C – Collision Diagram & Crash Report Summary 

D – Traffic Data 

E – Harwich Board of Selectmen Traffic Rule – Speed Reduction Markings  

 

  



 

 

ii Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 - View from Pleasant Bay Road looking east, showing LED stop sign ................. 3 

Figure 2 – Locus Map ......................................................................................................... 4 

Figure 3 – Close Aerial View of Intersection ...................................................................... 5 

Figure 4 - View looking south, showing newly installed painted median ...........................7 

Figure 5  - View looking north from Route 39 approximately 360 feet south of the 
intersection (intersection circled in red) ............................................................................ 8 

Figure 6  - View looking south down Route 39 from the Pleasant Bay Road eastbound ... 9 

Figure 7  - View looking south down Route 39 from the Pleasant Bay Road westbound .10 

Figure 8 – Pleasant Bay Road westbound approach showing partially obscured stop sign
............................................................................................................................................ 11 

Figure 9 – Looking south on Route 39, showing stop line placement on Pleasant Bay 
Road ................................................................................................................................... 12 

Figure 10 – Tilted speed limit sign on Route 39 ................................................................ 13 

Figure 11 – Looking east on Pleasant Bay Road, showing LED stop sign ......................... 13 

Figure 12 – Looking north on Route 39, showing current signage ................................... 14 

Figure 13 - Looking west, showing ponding during heavy rain event ............................... 16 

Figure 14 – Northeast corner of intersection, showing vehicle tracks over corner ........... 16 

Figure 15 – Bicyclist traveling north on Route 39 ............................................................. 18 

 

 

List of Tables 

Table 1 - Potential Safety Enhancement Summary ............................................................. 1 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 1 

Background 

All levels of government— local, regional, state, and federal—have been considering 
locations where crashes are most severe for many years.  Several years ago the national 
consensus was that there should be goals to reduce crashes, and in the 2005 federal 
legislation:  Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act:  A Legacy 
for Users (SAFETEA-LU), there was more emphasis on improving highway safety along 
with a dedicated funding program—the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP).   
The latest federal legislation:  Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST), signed 
into law on December 4, 2015, retains the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 
as one of its core highway programs. 

In an effort to reduce the number of crash-related fatalities and incapacitating injuries, 
Massachusetts developed a Strategic Highway Safety Plan in 2006. The mission of the 
Safety Plan is to “Develop, promote, implement, and evaluate data-driven, 
multidisciplinary strategies to maximize safety for users of the roadway system.”  One of 
the many strategies noted in the Safety Plan is to “conduct Road Safety Audits at high-
crash locations throughout the Commonwealth.”  MassDOT incorporated the Road 
Safety Audit as a requirement for securing Federal funding (Highway Safety 
Improvement Program [HSIP] funds) for safety projects.   

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) defines a Road Safety Audit as the formal 
safety examination of an existing or future road or intersection by an independent, 
multidisciplinary team. The purpose of a Road Safety Audit is to identify potential safety 
issues and possible opportunities for safety improvements while considering all roadway 
users. 

The Cape Cod Commission (CCC), serving as the regional planning agency for the fifteen 
towns on Cape Cod, has reviewed many transportation locations over the years during 
various processes, including the Regional Transportation Plan, the Transportation 
Improvement Program, and Developments of Regional Impact, considering the existing 
safety issues and potential improvements.  In addition, the CCC began looking at specific 
safety locations annually through safety studies and Road Safety Audits.  A portion of the 
federal HSIP funds are allocated for improvements to the region’s highest crash 
locations. 

This RSA evaluates the intersection of Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road in 
Harwich, MA as shown in Figure 1. 

  



 

 

2 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Road Safety Audit Multidisciplinary Team 

The Road Safety Audit was scheduled with representatives of the Massachusetts 
Department of Transportation (MassDOT), town officials, and representatives of other 
stakeholders.  The Road Safety Audit meeting was held on June 1, 2016, beginning at 
1:00 p.m., at the Harwich Town Hall.  The multidisciplinary team also visited the site 
during the Road Safety Audit meeting, and then reconvened at the Town Hall. 

Audit Team Member Agency / Affiliation 

Aram Goshgarian Harwich Police Department 

Dave LeBlanc  Harwich Fire Department 

Christopher Clark Harwich Administration 

Lincoln Hooper Harwich Department of Public Works 

Bob Cafarelli Harwich Engineering 

Jerry Beltis Harwich Traffic Safety Committee 

Jerry Scannell Harwich Traffic Safety Committee 

Robert Gregory MassDOT Highway Division– District 5 Traffic 

Jason Walters MassDOT Highway Division– District 5 Projects 

Lisa Schletzbaum MassDOT Highway Division/Safety 

Steven Tupper Cape Cod Commission 

 

  



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 3 

Project Location and Description 

Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road in Harwich is a four-way unsignalized 
intersection shown on the locus map in Figure 2. The intersection serves both regional 
and local traffic. The location of the intersection makes it important for commercial and 
non-commercial trips between the towns of Harwich, Brewster, Orleans, and Chatham. 

Figure 3 shows a close-up view of the intersection (imaergy from May 2015). All four 
approaches cosistet of a single multi-purpose lane. The westbound and eastbound 
Pleasant Bay Road approaches are stop controlled. There are no dedicated pedestrian or 
bicyclist accommodation.  

A number of physical changes to the intersection have been made over the years to 
address on-going safety issues. These changes include the installation of flashing-LED 
stop signs with “Cross Traffic Does Not Stop” plaques, installation of stop ahead signs, 
installation of “Dangerous Intersection Ahead” signs, tree removal, vegitation trimming, 
and installation of a painted median. 

 

Figure 1 - View from Pleasant Bay Road looking east, showing LED stop sign 



Sources: Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, Intermap, iPC, NRCAN, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong
Kong), Esri (Thailand), TomTom, 2013

The information depicted on these maps is for planning purposes only. It is not adequate for legal boundary definition, regulatory 
interpretation, or parcel level analysis. It should not substitute for actual on-site survey, or supersede deed research.

Figure 2 – Locus Map

User: stupper Date: 7/1/2016

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1

Miles

t

_̂



The information depicted on these maps is for planning purposes only. It is not adequate for legal boundary definition, regulatory 
interpretation, or parcel level analysis. It should not substitute for actual on-site survey, or supersede deed research.

Figure 3 – Close Aerial View  of Intersection
User: stupper Date: 7/1/2016

0 20 40 60 80 100

Feet (1 in = 40 ft)

t

Imagery (C) Google



 

 

6 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Project Data 

Crash reports were requested from the Town of Harwich for this Road Safety Audit and 
were supplied by the Harwich Police Department.  The crash data were reviewed and a 
collision diagram was developed. The reported crashes were analyzed based on year, 
month, day of week, crash time, collision severity, collision type, ambient light condition, 
weather condition, road surface condition, driver contributing code noted on the crash 
report. 

From the reports provided by Harwich Police Department, 31 crashes occurred at the 
location between 2013 and 2015 with 16 property-damage-only crashes, 15 injury 
crashes, and no fatal crashes.  The resulting Equivalent Property Damage Only (EPDO) 
crash count is 91.  EPDO is an indicator of overall severity; Property Damage Only 
crashes are scored with a value of 1, Injury crashes are scored with a value of 5, and 
Fatality crashes are scored with a value of 10. There was a fatal crash at this location in 
2006. 

No clear trends were evident in terms of year, month, day of week, or crash time. The 
safety issue appears to be a year-round problem not particularly sensitive to traffic 
volume fluctuations. 

Of the 31 crashes, the vast majority (84%) were angle crashes; the remainder were either 
single vehicle (10%) or rear-end (6%) crashes. 

Analysis of ambient conditions at the time of the crash (lighting, weather, and road 
surface) did not indicate a clear influence of these factors on crashes. 

The most frequent driver contributing code noted on the crash reports was “failure to 
yield right of way” with several instances of inattention also noted. 

Cape Cod Commission staff also prepared reports of the traffic volume data at the 
intersection.  

The collision diagram, an analysis of crash factors, and the traffic count data are included 
in the Appendix A. 

  



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 7 

Road Safety Audit Observations and 
Potential Improvements 

On Wednesday, June 1, 2016 the Road Safety Audit Team met at the Harwich Town Hall 
for a discussion of the existing conditions, visited the site for field observations, and 
returned to discuss the safety issues at the location. The summary crash data, a collision 
diagram, and traffic volume reports were brought to the Road Safety Audit team 
meeting, and are included in Appendix A.  

 

Figure 4 - View looking south, showing newly installed painted median 

The following safety issues were identified through the site visit and discussions with the 
Road Safety Audit team.  

  



 

 

8 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Safety Issue #1. Obstructions 

A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets (2011), prepared by the 
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, is the definitive 
reference manual on roadway design. The manual states that “each quadrant of an 
intersection should contain a triangular area free of obstructions that might block an 
approaching driver’s view of potentially conflicting vehicles.” This clear sight triangle is 
also needed to provide “sight distance for a stopped vehicle on a minor-road approach 
to depart from the intersection and enter or cross the major road.”  

Observations: 

Team members observed several trees and hedges obstructing the sight lines for drivers 
approaching the intersection. While it was noted that Town staff and home owners have 
made efforts to keep vegetation well-trimmed, sight distance obstructions remain. These 
obstructions are limiting drivers’ ability to see and appropriately react to potential 
hazards. 

Obstructions on the southwest and southeast quadrant of the intersection are restricting 
the ability of drivers traveling north on Route 39 to see vehicles potentially crossing their 
path from Pleasant Bay Road. Figure 5 shows the view of a driver traveling northbound 
on Route 39 approximately 360 feet south of the intersection. This is the approximate 
distance required for a driver traveling 45 mph to identify a potential conflict and safely 
stop. Trees on the west side of Route 39 and hedges on the east side of Route 39 are 
limiting drivers’ ability to see potential crossing vehicles. 

 

Figure 5  - View looking north from Route 39 approximately 360 feet south of the 
intersection (intersection circled in red)   



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 9 

Obstructions on the southwest and southeast quadrant of the intersection are also 
restricting the ability of drivers stopped on Pleasant Bay Road to view vehicles 
approaching from the south on Route 39.  

Figure 6 shows the view of a driver traveling westbound on Pleasant Bay Road looking 
south on Route 39. The hedges on the east side of Route 39 obstruct the view of 
oncoming traffic. Assuming vehicles on Route 39 are traveling 45 mph, a driver turning 
left out of Pleasant Bay Road should be provided clear sight lines to see vehicles 500 feet 
south down Route 39. The current available sight distance is less than 500 feet. 

 

Figure 6  - View looking south down Route 39 from the Pleasant Bay Road eastbound 

  



 

 

10 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Figure 7 shows the view of a driver traveling eastbound on Pleasant Bay Road looking 
south on Route 39. The trees on the west side of Route 39 obstruct the view of oncoming 
traffic. Assuming vehicles on Route 39 are traveling 45 mph, a driver turning left out of 
Pleasant Bay Road should be provided clear sight lines to see vehicles 500 feet south 
down Route 39.  

 

Figure 7  - View looking south down Route 39 from the Pleasant Bay Road westbound 

  



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 11 

Another obstruction noted was a tree on the north side of the westbound Pleasant Bay 
Road approach partially blocking the view of the LED stop sign as shown in Figure 8. 
This obstruction partially obscures the LED stop sign when drivers are more than 300 
feet from the intersection. From 300 feet in, the LED stop sign is fully visible. The 
advanced stop signage is visible from well beyond 500 feet of the intersection. 

Given that the sign is visible well advanced of the intersection, censuses was that 
removing this tree would not have a significant safety benefit. Adding a supplemental 
stop sign on the left sign of the road, as discussed in the next section of the report, would 
likely have a greater safety benefit.  

 

Figure 8 – Pleasant Bay Road westbound approach showing partially obscured stop 
sign 

Potential Enhancements: 

Remove trees and hedges to the south of the intersection that are currently obstructing 
sight lines 

  



 

 

12 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Safety Issue #2. Pavement Markings & Signage 

The traffic control devices, including pavement markings and signs, are critical for the 
safety of all roadway users. The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 
sets minimum standards and provides guidance to ensure uniformity of traffic control 
devices across the nation. 

Observations 

The placement of stop lines and stops signs at both Pleasant Bay Road approaches was 
discussed extensively by team members. Moving the stop lines closer to Route 39 
encourages drivers to stop closer to Route 39 providing for better sight lines. However, 
moving the vehicles closer to Route 39 also presents issues for vehicles, particularly large 
trucks, turning onto Pleasant Bay Road.  

Proper placement depends in large part on the degree to which vegetation is removed 
within the intersection sight triangles. As such, the placement of the stop lines and stop 
signs should be reassessed after such changes to the intersection are made. 

 

Figure 9 – Looking south on Route 39, showing stop line placement on Pleasant Bay 
Road 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 13 

A team member noted a speed limit sign on Route 39, approximately ½ mile north of the 
intersection, was currently tilted as shown in Figure 10. Their where also questions about 
the spacing of the sign with other in the area, the condition of the sign, and whether or 
not it is an appropriate location for the sign. A review of speed limit signs along the 
corridor, beyond the area of this project, may be warranted. 

 

Figure 10 – Tilted speed limit sign on Route 39 

Team members discussed making improvements to the Pleasant Bay approaches to 
ensure drivers are aware that they will be required to stop at the intersection. 
Improvements to, that end that have been completed by Town staff to date, include the 
installation of stop ahead signage and flashing LED stop signs as shown in Figure 11. 
Additional potential improvements discussed include installing a secondary (left side) 
stop sign eastbound approach and installing “Stop Ahead” pavement markings on both 
Pleasant Bay Rd approaches. It was noted that any pavement markings placed in the 
travel lanes should use an application technique designed to maintain skid resistance, 
particularly in consideration of motorcyclist and bicyclists. 

 

Figure 11 – Looking east on Pleasant Bay Road, showing LED stop sign 



 

 

14 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 

Team members discussed making improvements to Route 39 to improve advanced 
warning of the intersection. Figure 12 shows the current signage approaching the 
intersection from the south. Potential improvements discussed include installation of a 
cross road ahead sign (W2-1) on Route 39 northbound and adding street names to 
intersection ahead signs on both Route 39 approaches. 

 

Figure 12 – Looking north on Route 39, showing current signage 

Team members also discussed the recently installed painted median, as shown in Figure 
4 and Figure 9, and potential adjustments to it. Town staff noted that early feedback on 
the painted median (installed in November 2015) has been positive. 

The installation of the painted median seems to give drivers on Pleasant Bay Road an 
impression that they are crossing a major road and that they should proceed with care. 
The effect on Route 39 drivers is less clear. While it certainly makes drivers take note of 
the intersection, it is unclear if it has slowed vehicle speeds. 

One potential adjustment to the painted median would be to narrow the painted median 
and move the edge lines in, increasing the shoulder width. This would push Route 39 
drivers away from the edge of roadway, allowing drivers on Pleasant Bay Road to stop a 
bit closer to Route 39 and improving sight lines. 

The Board of Selectmen previously approved installation of transverse speed reduction 
markings on both Route 39 approaches to the intersection as shown Traffic Rule in 
Appendix E. A schematic of these marking is also included  in Appendix E.  These 
MUTCD-approved markings are to “be placed in advance of an unexpectedly severe 
horizontal or vertical curve or other roadway feature where drivers need to decelerate 
prior to reaching the feature and where the desired reduction in speeds has not been 
achieved by the installation of warning signs and/or other traffic control devices.” (2010 
MUTCD) 

Potential Enhancements 

Review stop sign and stop line placement 

Review speed limit signs placed along the Route 39 corridor 

Install secondary (left side) stop signs on Pleasant Bay Rd westbound approach 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 15 

Install “Stop Ahead” pavement marking on both Pleasant Bay Rd approaches 

Install cross road ahead sign (W2-1) on Rte 39 northbound and remove the damaged 
intersection ahead speed limit sign 

Add street names tabs to intersection ahead signs 

Move edge lines in and narrow painted median 

Install transverse speed reduction markings 

Safety Issue #3. Speed 

The distance required for a driver traveling 30 mph (advisory speed limit) to identify a 
potential conflict and safety stop is approximately 200 feet. This distance increases to 
360 feet if the vehicle is traveling at 45 mph (posted speed limit). 

Observations 

Team members noted that speeds of vehicles on Route 39 pose a hazard at this location. 
Based on the crash reports and observations of local team members, high vehicle speeds 
increase the frequency and severity of crashes at this intersection. It was noted that the 
momentum involved in many of these crashes pushed the impacted vehicle across the 
intersection and into a third vehicle. 

Efforts to reduce speed were discussed to help avoid crashes and, in the event they occur, 
reduce their severity. As a first step, team members suggested measurements of existing 
speeds on Route 39 be made. Depending on these measurements, the appropriateness of 
the posted speed limit could be evaluated. Based on the trends of the speed 
measurements, the police department could consider speed enforcement targeted to the 
worst times of the day. 

Beyond speed limit review and enforcement activities, team members discussed 
potential physical changes to the roadway to affect vehicle speeds. One potential 
improvement discussed was installing radar-based “Your Speed Is” signs on Route 39. As 
a more long-term consideration, there was discussion of converting the painted median 
to a mountable, raised median. Full access would need to be maintained for all vehicles.  

Potential Enhancements 

Review posted speed limit and update as appropriate 

Continue assessment and focus periodic enforcement 

Install “Your Speed Is” signs on Rte 39 

Replace painted median with mountable, raised median (maintain full access) 



 

 

16 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Safety Issue #4. Pavement Condition and Drainage 

Observations 

While the intersection appeared to generally be well-designed for drainage, a team 
member noted seeing some ponding during a recent heavy rain event. This ponding is 
shown in Figure 13. 

 

Figure 13 - Looking west, showing ponding during heavy rain event 

Team members observed vehicles tracking over the corners of the intersection as shown 
in Figure 14. This could cause damage to the edge of pavement and, potentially, the 
adjacent catch basin. 

 

 

Figure 14 – Northeast corner of intersection, showing vehicle tracks over corner 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 17 

While the pavement in the vicinity of the intersection was observed to be generally 
serviceable, a milling and repaving of Route 39 will be required in the future.  

Potential Enhancements 

Clean/repair catch basin as necessary 

Repair/reinforce corner 

Mill and repave full width of Route 39 

Safety Issue #5. Intersection Control 

Conversion of a two-way stop controlled intersection to a roundabout has been shown to 
reduce injury and fatal crashes by 82% (Federal Highway Administration, National 
Cooperative Highway Research Program Report 672). 

Observations 

Given the crash history of location conversion of this two-way stop-controlled 
intersection to a higher level of traffic control was discussed. It was noted that courtesy is 
often extended to side street vehicles by drivers on Route 39, at times, resulting in 
confusion about who has the right of way. 

Conversion to a four-way stop-controlled was discussed but eliminated from 
consideration given the traffic volumes present at this location. Conversion to a 
roundabout or a traffic signal was discussed as possible alternatives. While a roundabout 
was seen as more in character with the area than a traffic signal, it was acknowledged 
that significant public outreach would be required before considering either of these 
alternatives. 

There was also discussion of installing a flashing beacon over the intersection. The 
beacon would not change the level of control at the intersection, but would rather 
reinforce the existing control. The Route 39 approaches would see a flashing yellow 
indication while the Pleasant Bay Road approaches would see a flashing red indication. It 
was acknowledged that these installations typically have a relatively low safety payoff 
and can be seen as a nuisance by neighbors. Furthermore, the tree canopy, particularly 
on the Pleasant Bay Road approaches, would likely restrict drivers’ ability to see the 
beacon. Significant tree trimming and or removal would be required for any safety 
benefit to be realized from this potential enhancement.  

Potential Enhancements 

Install flashing beacon 

Install roundabout 

Install traffic signal 



 

 

18 Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Safety Issue #6. Multi-modal Accommodation 

Observations 

While this intersection does not typically experience a high level of pedestrian or bicyclist 
activity, it was acknowledged that it is an important route for some non-motorists. 
Figure 15 shows a bicyclist traveling north on Route 39. 

 

Figure 15 – Bicyclist traveling north on Route 39 

There is no dedicated accommodation for pedestrians or bicyclists at the intersection 
and very little shoulder on the approaching roadways. While many team members 
expressed a desire to safely accommodate non-motorists, they recognized that isolated 
improvements at this intersection may not be of particular value. In the event that a 
geometric change is made to this intersection, consideration should be given to 
improving bicycle and pedestrian accommodation. 

Potential Enhancements 

Consider improved bicycle/pedestrian accommodation if any geometry change are 
considered 

 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 19 

Summary of Road Safety Audit 

The summary list of the Road Safety Audit observations and enhancements is provided 
in Table 1 to assist in the design and/or implementation of potential improvements 
elicited during the process.  It is also recommended that any design process for more 
involved geometric changes include further analysis and public input.  

Safety payoff estimates are subjective judgement of the potential effectiveness of the 
potential enhancement. Where available, documented crash reduction factors where 
used to develop these safety payoff estimates. 

The time frame is categorized as short-term (<1 year), medium-term (1 to 3 years), or 
long-term (>3 years).  The costs are categorized as low (<$10,000), medium ($10,001 to 
$50,000), or high (>$50,000). 

 

 





 

 

  

Table 1 - Potential Safety Enhancement Summary 

Safety Issue Potential Safety Enhancement Safety Payoff Time Frame Cost 
Responsible 

Agency 

Obstructions 
Remove trees and hedges to the south of the intersection 
that are currently obstructing sight lines 

Medium-
High 

Short             
. 

Low                   

 
Town 

Pavement 
markings & 
signage 

Review stop sign and stop line placement 

Review speed limit signs placed along the Route 39 corridor 

Install secondary (left side) stop signs on Pleasant Bay Rd 
westbound approach 

Install “Stop Ahead” pavement marking on both Pleasant 
Bay Rd approaches 

Install cross road ahead sign (W2-1) on Rte 39 northbound 
and remove the damaged intersection ahead speed limit sign 

Add street names tabs to intersection ahead signs 

Move edge lines in and narrow painted median 

Install transverse speed reduction markings 

Medium 

Low 

Low                 
. 

Low                 
. 

Low                
.. 

Low 

Low         

Low 

Short  

Short 

Medium       
. 

Medium         
. 

Medium      
. 

Medium                   

Medium 

Medium 

Low 

Low 

Low                  
. 

Low                  
. 

Low                  
. 

Low 

Medium-High 

Low                   

Town 

Speed 

Review posted speed limit and update as appropriate 

Continue assessment and focus periodic enforcement 

Install “Your Speed Is” signs on Rte 39 

Replace painted median with mountable, raised median 
(maintain full access) 

Low-Medium 

Low 

Low 

Medium 

Medium 

Medium 

Medium 

Medium 

Low 

Low 

Medium 

High 

Town 

Pavement 
conditions & 
drainage 

Clean/repair catch basin as necessary 

Repair/reinforce corner 

Mill and repave full width of Rte 39 

Low 

Low 

Low 

Short 

Short 

Long 

Low 

Low 

High 

Town 

Intersection 
control 

Install flashing beacon 

Install roundabout 

Install signal 

Low 

High 

High 

Medium 

Long 

Long 

Medium-High 

High 

High 

Town 

Multi-modal 
accommodation 

Consider improved bicycle/pedestrian accommodation if 
any geometry change are considered 

Medium Long High Town 





 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Road Safety Audit Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 

  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Road Safety Audit (RSA) Meeting 
 
Harwich: Intersection of Route 39 (Orleans Road) at 
Pleasant Bay Road 
 
Date: June 1, 2016 
 
Location: Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645 
 
 
1:00 p.m. Welcome and Introductions 
 
1:10 p.m. Review of Site-Specific Material 

 Crash and Traffic Volume Summaries 
 Existing Geometries and Conditions 

 
1:30 p.m. Visit the Site (Group) 

 Assemble as a group at the site for observation of conditions 
 As a group, identify areas for improvement 

 
2:15 p.m.  Post-Visit Discussion at Meeting Room / Completion of RSA 

 Discuss observations and finalize on-site findings 
 Discuss potential improvements and draft recommendations 

 
3:00 p.m. Adjourn 
 
Next Steps:  After the RSA meeting, CCC staff will prepare a draft document 
and circulate it to participants.  Participants will be asked to comment and 
respond to the draft document to assure that it is reflective of the RSA 
completed by the multidisciplinary team.  With comments submitted, a final 
document is then produced; the final document is expected to be available within 
three weeks of the RSA. 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

Appendix B 

Road Safety Audit Team Contact List 

 

 

 

  



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 
Participating Audit Team Members 
 
 

Audit Team 
Member 

Agency / Affiliation Email Address 

Aram Goshgarian Harwich Police Department agoshgarian@harwichpolice.com 

Dave LeBlanc  Harwich Fire Department dleblanc@harwichfire.com 

Christopher Clark Harwich Administration cclark@town.harwich.ma.us 

Lincoln Hooper Harwich Department of Public Works highway@cape.com 

Bob Cafarelli Harwich Engineering rcafarelli@town.harwich.ma.us 

Jerry Beltis Harwich Traffic Safety Committee jbeltis@comcast.net 

Jerry Scannell Harwich Traffic Safety Committee maxflex2@gmail.com 

Robert Gregory 
MassDOT Highway Division– District 5 
Traffic 

robert.gregory@state.ma.us 

Jason Walters 
MassDOT Highway Division– District 5 
Projects 

jason.walters@state.ma.us 

Lisa Schletzbaum MassDOT Highway Division/Safety lisa.schletzbaum@state.ma.us 

Steven Tupper Cape Cod Commission stupper@capecodcommission.org 

 
 

 

  



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 

 

Appendix C 

Collision Diagram & Crash Report Summary 

 
  



COLLISION DIAGRAM 

Location: Orleans Road (Route 39) at Pleasant Bay Road 

Town: Harwich 

Dates of Crash Data: 2013-2015 

Total Crashes: 31  Injury Crashes: 15  Fatal Crashes: 0 

SYMBOLS 
Moving Vehicle 

Backing Vehicle 

Lane Change 

Turning Vehicle 

Out of Control 

Indirectly Involved 

Vehicle 

Bicycle 

Pedestrian 

Parked Vehicle 

Fixed Object 

Analysis prepared April 2016. 

MANNER OF COLLISION 

Single Vehicle Crash 

Rear-end 

Angle 

Sideswipe 

Head on 

Rear to Rear 

SEVERITY 

Injury Crash 

Fatal Crash 

NOTES 
See reverse for details on each crash. 
 
*A third vehicle waiting across the intersection was 
struck as by the colliding vehicles. 
 
**The colliding vehicles stuck and injured a pedestrian 
standing at the corner. 

N
am

e:
  _

R
o

u
te

 3
9

 (
O

rl
ea

n
s 

R
d

.)
 

Name:  Pleasant Bay Road 

3 

4  5  6  13  25 

8  9 

2   7*  10 16  31* 

18  27 

28** 

22  29 

1  11*  12  15  17  19  20  21  23*  26*  30 

N
am

e:
  _

R
o

u
te

 3
9

 (
O

rl
ea

n
s 

R
d

.)
 

Name:  Pleasant Bay Road 

To Route 137 

To Orleans 

14  24 



Source: Town of Harwich Police Department Crash Records and Massachusetts Department of Transportation Registry of Motor Vehciles Online Crash Database; http://services.massdot.state.ma.us/crashportal/

# Crash Date Crash Time Crash Severity
# 

Vehicle

# 

Injured

Manner of 

Collision
Ambient Light

Weather 

Condition

Road 

Surface
Driver Contributing Codes Notes

1 1/11/2013 10:04 PM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle
Dark - lighted 

roadway
Rain Wet D1:(Distracted) D2:(No improper driving) D1 unfamilar with area, distracted by GPS, did not stop at stop sign

2 1/24/2013 9:48 AM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Cloudy Dry D1:(No improper driving) D2:(Failed to yield right of way) D2 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

3 1/29/2013 7:38 AM Property damage only (none injured) 1 0 Single vehicle crash Daylight Cloudy Slush D1:(No improper driving) Lost control due to slippery road conditions

4 5/23/2013 7:04 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Rain Wet D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

5 6/5/2013 5:48 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Inattention) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic assuming 

it was a 4-way stop

6 6/24/2013 1:40 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

7 6/27/2013 4:02 PM Non-fatal injury 3 2 Angle Daylight Cloudy Dry
D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D2 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic; third 

vehicle opposite of intersection struck.

8 6/28/2013 4:35 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Cloudy Wet D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stated not seeing opposing vehicle

9 7/22/2013 3:13 PM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Cloudy Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stated not seeing opposing vehicle

10 8/6/2013 4:18 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:() D2:(Failed to yield right of way)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic assuming 

it was a 4-way stop

11 10/12/2013 3:31 PM Property damage only (none injured) 3 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic; third 

vehicle opposite of intersection struck.

12 10/22/2013 2:15 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Inattention),(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

13 10/27/2013 8:51 AM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Disregarded traffic signs, signals, road markings) D2:(No improper 

driving)
Witness stated D1 did not stop at stop sign

14 1/3/2014 8:43 AM Non-fatal injury 1 1 Single vehicle crash Daylight

Snow/Blowi

ng sand, 

snow

Snow D1:(Driving too fast for conditions) Tractor trailer unit lost control due to snowy conditions

15 3/20/2014 10:06 AM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Cloudy Wet D1:(Inattention),(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic assuming 

it was a 4-way stop

16 4/4/2014 11:59 AM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

17 7/2/2014 12:52 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic noting 

they did not see the other vehicle

18 8/9/2014 4:58 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic

19 8/19/2014 8:49 AM Non-fatal injury 2 2 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Other improper action),(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper 

driving)
D1 failed to stop at stop sign

20 8/23/2014 12:10 PM Non-fatal injury 2 4 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Disregarded traffic signs, signals, road markings),(Inattention) D2:(No 

improper driving)
D1 failed to stop at stop sign

21 2/18/2015 11:07 AM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Cloudy Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way),(Distracted) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic noting 

they did not see the other vehicle

22 2/21/2015 11:45 PM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Rear-end

Dark - 

unknown 

roadway 

lighting

Rain Wet

D1:(Operating vehicle in erratic, reckless, careless, negligent or aggressive 

manner),(Failure to keep in proper lane or running off road) D2:(No 

improper driving)

D2 passed vehicle 2 then slowed casusing the rear-end collision

23 3/12/2015 1:35 PM Non-fatal injury 3 1 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(No improper driving) D2:(Failed to yield right of way) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic noting 

they did not see the other vehicle; third vehicle opposite of intersection 

struck

24 3/18/2015 Non-fatal injury 1 1 Single vehicle crash
Dark - lighted 

roadway
Clear Dry D1:(Other improper action),(Exceeded authorized speed limit) Run off the road crash; struck fence and tree

25 3/24/2015 4:14 PM Property damage only (none injured) 3 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic; third 

vehicle opposite of intersection struck

26 5/10/2015 5:42 PM Non-fatal injury 3 2 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic; third 

vehicle opposite of intersection struck

27 6/26/2015 10:55 AM Property damage only (none injured) 2 0 Angle Daylight Cloudy Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffice

28 7/3/2015 9:42 AM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 mistakenly thought D2 was taking a left affording a gap in traffic; 

pedestrian on corner struck as colliding vehicles left the roadway

29 8/11/2015 2:18 PM Non-fatal injury 2 2 Rear-end Daylight Rain Wet D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(Followed too closely)
D2 stopped on Rte 39 for a vehicle turning onto Pleasant Bay and was struck 

from behind

30 9/6/2015 11:54 AM Non-fatal injury 2 1 Angle Daylight Clear Dry D1:(Inattention) D2:(No improper driving)
D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic noting 

they did not see the other vehicle

31 9/17/2015 10:03 AM Property damage only (none injured) 3 0 Angle Daylight Clear Dry
D1:(Failed to yield right of way) D2:(No improper driving) D3:(No improper 

driving)

D1 stopped then proceeded without appropropriate gap in traffic noting 

they did not see the other vehicle

Total 65 22

Crash Data Summary Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road, Harwich



Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road 2013-2015 Crash Analysis

Location

Town

Source

Date Range

Boneyard

Crash Year

2013

2014

2015

Total

Average

Month of Crash

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Total

Day of Week

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

Total

6% 

19% 

13% 

19% 19% 

13% 

10% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

Crash Day of Week 

13 

7 

11 

2013 2014 2015

Crashes by Year 

13% 

6% 

13% 

3% 

6% 

16% 

10% 

16% 

6% 

10% 

0% 0% 
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

Crash Month 



Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road 2013-2015 Crash Analysis

Crash Time

12AM - 3AM

3AM - 6AM

6AM - 9AM

9AM - 12PM

12PM - 3PM

3PM - 6PM

6PM - 9PM

9PM - 12AM

Total

Severity

Fatal

Non-fatal injury

Property damage only

Unknown

Not Reported

Total

Collision Type

Angle

Head-on

Rear-end

Sideswipe

Single vehicle crash

Unknown/Not reported

Total

84% 

0% 
6% 

0% 

10% 

0% 
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

Angle Head-on Rear-end Sideswipe Single vehicle
crash

Unknown/Not
reported

Collison Type 

0% 

48% 
52% 

0% 0% 
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Fatal Non-fatal injury Property damage only Unknown Not Reported

Collison Severity 

3% 

0% 

13% 

26% 

19% 

29% 

3% 

6% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

12AM - 3AM 3AM - 6AM 6AM - 9AM 9AM - 12PM 12PM - 3PM 3PM - 6PM 6PM - 9PM 9PM - 12AM

Crash Time 



Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road 2013-2015 Crash Analysis

Ambient Light

Daylight

Dawn

Dusk

Dark - lighted roadway

Dark - roadway not lighted

Dark - unknown roadway lighting

Other/Unknown

Total

Weather Condition

Clear

Cloudy

Rain

Snow

Sleet, Hail, Freezing rain

Fog, Smog, Smoke

Severe Crosswinds

Blowing Sand, Snow

Other/Unknown

Total

Road Surface

Dry

Wet

Snow

Ice

Sand, mud, dirt, oil, gravel

Water (standing, moving)

Slush

Other/Unknown

Total

90% 

0% 0% 
6% 

0% 3% 0% 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Ambient Light 

60% 

27% 

13% 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

Weather Condition 

74% 

19% 

3% 0% 0% 0% 3% 0% 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

Road Surface 



Route 39 (Orleans Road) at Pleasant Bay Road 2013-2015 Crash Analysis

Age of Driver - Youngest Known

16-20

21-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

>84

Total

Age of Driver - Oldest Known

16-20

21-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

>84

Total

3% 

10% 

23% 

16% 

29% 

6% 

10% 

3% 

0% 
0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

16-20 21-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 >84

Age of Driver - Youngest Know 

0% 0% 

11% 

4% 

18% 

29% 29% 

11% 

0% 
0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

16-20 21-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 >84

Age of Driver - Oldest Known 



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

Traffic Data 

  



Cape Cod Commission 

Rt 39 @ Pleasant Bay Rd 
Town: Harwich 
Counted by:SMT 
Counters: 6 

Rt39 
From North 

Start Time Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. ro1a1 

07:00AM 4 28 9 0 41 
07:15 AM 0 28 10 0 38 
07:30AM 5 24 22 0 51 
07:45AM 3 47 19 0 69 

Total 12 127 60 0 199 

08:00AM 4 52 16 0 72 
08:15 AM 5 43 14 1 63 
08:30AM 5 42 23 0 70 
08:45 AM 3 45 19 1 68 

-'j> Total 17 182 72 2 273 

Grand Total 29 309 132 2 472 
Apprch 0/o 6.1 65.5 28 0.4 

Total 0/o 2 21.5 9.2 0.1 32.8 
Cars 25 289 128 2 444 

o/o Cars 86.2 93.5 97 100 94.1 
Tucks 4 20 4 0 28 

o/o Tucks 13.8 6.5 3 0 5.9 

-E] o~ z.,... (") <() m 
0 <O <O 
f-

§m 

~o 

3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02632 
www.capecodcommission.org 

G rouos p. d c nnte - ars - T k UC S 

Pleasant Bay Rd Rt39 

File Name 
Site Code 
Start Date 
Page No 

: 2512 08072014 
: 00232323 
: 8/7/2014 
: 1 

Pleasant Bay Rd 
From East From South From West 

Left l Thru l Right l Peds I App. Total Left I Thru l Right I Peds I App. ro1a1 Left 1 Thru l Right I Peds I App. Total 

6 8 1 
1 11 2 
0 11 5 
2 12 5 
9 42 13 

3 18 8 
2 14 2 
5 15 3 
4 23 5 

14 70 18 

23 112 31 
13.8 67.1 18.6 

1.6 7.8 2.2 
22 105 29 

95.7 93.8 93.5 
1 7 2 

4.3 6.2 6.5 

~imJ 
~ 

m, 
o"---> 
"'!' 

~-" • a_ 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1 
0 
0 
0 
1 

1 
0.6 
0.1 

1 
100 

0 
0 

128 
4 

132 
Right 

~ 

15 5 35 
14 4 40 
16 3 61 
19 3 34 
64 15 170 

30 4 41 
18 6 33 
23 7 60 
32 5 52 

103 22 186 

167 37 356 
8.6 82.8 

11.6 2.6 24.8 
157 33 322 
94 89.2 90.4 
10 4 34 
6 10.8 9.6 

Total 

biil 
25 2 
4 0 

29 2 
Left Peds 

4 

T 
North 

8/7/2014 07:00 AM 
8/7/2014 08:45 AM 

Cars 
Tucks 

~ T ,. 
Left Thru Ri ht Peds 

33 322 32 2 
4 34 3 0 

37 356 35 2 

3 0 43 17 20 2 0 39 
2 0 46 5 22 3 0 30 
5 1 70 9 22 9 0 40 
5 0 42 11 27 13 0 51 

15 1 201 42 91 27 0 160 

7 1 53 8 26 8 1 43 
2 0 41 18 27 10 0 55 
5 0 72 15 32 7 0 54 
6 0 63 12 33 12 0 57 

20 1 229 53 118 37 1 209 

35 2 430 95 209 64 1 369 
8.1 0.5 25.7 56.6 17.3 0.3 
2.4 0.1 29.9 6.6 14.5 4.5 0.1 25.7 
32 2 389 90 200 62 1 353 

91.4 100 90.5 94.7 95.7 96.9 100 95.7 
3 0 41 5 9 2 0 16 

8.6 0 9.5 5.3 4.3 3.1 0 4.3 

w 
" w "' ~"' <O 

r 

+!!> tl _. ~ 

ltl~tli " il. 
·~ o~ 

Int. Total l 
138 
128 
177 
181 
624 

198 
177 
219 
220 
814 

1438 

1343 
93.4 

95 
6.6 



Cape Cod Commission 

Rt 39 @ Pleasant Bay Rd 
Town: Harwich 
Counted by:SMT 
Counters: 6 

Rt39 
From North 

3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02632 
www.capccodcommission.org 

Pleasant Bay Rd Rt39 
From East From South I 

File Name 
Site Code 
Start Date 
Page No 

: 2512 08072014 
: 00232323 
: 8/7/2014 
:2 

Pleasant Bay Rd 
From West 

Start Time Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total I Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total lnt. Total I 
Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1 
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at OS·OO AM + 

08:00AM 4 52 16 0 72 3 18 
08:15AM 5 43 14 1 63 2 14 
08:30AM 5 42 23 0 70 5 15 
08:45AM 3 45 19 1 68 4 23 

Total Volume 17 182 72 2 273 14 70 
%App. Total 6.2 66.7 26.4 0.7 13.6 68 

PHF .850 .875 .783 .500 .948 .700 .761 

~~ ,__ ~~_t 

"", 
~ .2-----t ,__ 
,__ 
M~ 

@'l,. 

-· ~ • a_ 

8 
2 
3 
5 

18 
17.5 
.563 

1 30 4 41 
0 18 6 33 
0 23 7 60 
0 32 5 52 
1 103 22 186 
1 9.6 81.2 

.250 .805 .786 .775 

Out In Total 
cmJ 273 ~ 

72 182 17 2 
Right Thru Left Peds 

~ l 4 

Peak Hour Data 

T 
North 

Peak Holl'" Begins at 08:00 AM 

Cars 
Tucks 

~ T I' 
Left Thru Ri ht Peds 

22 186 20 1 

~ 229 ~ 
Out In Total 

Rt39 

7 1 53 8 26 8 1 43 198 
2 0 41 18 27 10 0 55 177 
5 0 72 15 32 7 0 54 219 
6 0 63 12 33 12 0 57 220 

20 1 229 53 118 37 1 209 814 
8.7 0.4 25.4 56.5 17.7 0.5 

.714 .250 .795 .736 .894 .771 .250 .917 .925 

~ ~o ~-_., s 
~ 

--l m f--2 ....i • • 0 
~ 5';::?. 

r w 
-l! ~~:;: 

~i ,, 
• a_ 

·~ 



Cape Cod Commission 

Rt 39 @ Pleasant Bay Rd 
Town: Harwich 
Counted by:SMT 
Counters: 6 

Rt39 
From North 

Start Time Left ] Thru ] Right ] Peds ] App. Total 

07:00AM 4 26 9 0 39 
07:15AM 0 27 9 0 36 
07:30AM 5 22 22 0 49 
07:45AM 2 46 16 o 64 

Total 11 121 56 0 188 

08:00AM 3 47 16 0 66 
08:15AM 4 40 14 1 59 
08:30AM 5 41 23 o 69 
08:45 AM 2 40 19 1 62 

Total 14 168 72 2 256 

Grand Total I 25 289 128 2 
4441 Apprch 0/o 5.6 65.1 28.8 0.5 

Total% 1.9 21.5 9.5 0.1 33.1 

-~ g~_t s~ 
o'° 
I- --l 

o, 
~.E-----t 

I-

N-
w~ u 
-· ~ • a. 

3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02632 
www.capecodcommission.org 

Groups Printed- Cars 
Pleasant Bay Rd Rt39 

From East From South 

File Name 
Site Code 
Start Date 
Page No 

:2512 08072014 
: 00232323 
: 8/7/2014 
: 1 

Pleasant Bay Rd 
From West 

Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Int. Total I 
6 8 1 0 15 5 32 3 0 40 16 20 2 0 38 132 
1 9 2 0 12 4 36 2 0 42 5 19 3 0 27 117 
0 11 5 o 16 3 55 4 1 63 9 21 9 o 39 167 
2 11 3 o 16 3 28 5 o 36 11 26 13 o 50 166 
9 39 11 o 59 15 151 14 1 181 41 86 27 o 154 582 

3 17 8 1 29 3 37 6 1 47 7 26 8 1 42 184 
2 14 2 o 18 6 31 2 0 39 17 25 9 0 51 167 
4 14 3 0 21 5 57 4 o 66 13 30 6 o 49 205 
4 21 5 o 30 4 46 6 o 56 12 33 12 0 57 205 

13 66 18 1 98 18 171 18 1 208 49 114 35 1 199 761 

22 105 29 1 
1571 

33 322 32 2 3891 90 200 62 1 
3531 

1343 
14 66.9 18.5 0.6 8.5 82.8 8.2 0.5 25.5 56.7 17.6 0.3 

1.6 7.8 2.2 0.1 11.7 2.5 24 2.4 0.1 29 6.7 14.9 4.6 0.1 26.3 

Out In Total 

~ 444 ~ 

128 289 25 2 :rht Thru Lelt Peds 

l 4 

T w ~o ~"' s. -w 
North 

m --l 
t--~-

~ fil 
2~ 

817/2014 07:00 AM ::r~ 
817/2014 08:45 AM r • .r-~~ ~ 

Cars ~~ ,, 
0 ![ ~ ·-

<-i 
Lelt Peds 

33 2 

Dill ~ 
Out Total 



Cape Cod Commission 

Rt 39 @ Pleasant Bay Rd 
Town: Harwich 
Counted by:SMT 
Counters: 6 

Rt 39 
From North 

Start Time Left ) Thru I Right l Peds l App. Total 

07:00AM 0 2 0 0 2 
07:15AM 0 1 1 0 2 
07:30AM 0 2 0 0 2 
07:45AM 1 1 3 0 5 

Total 1 6 4 0 11 

08:00AM 1 5 0 0 6 
08:15 AM 1 3 0 0 4 
08:30AM 0 1 0 0 1 
08:45AM 1 5 0 0 6 

Total 3 14 0 0 17 

Grand Total I 4 20 4 0 
281 Apprch % 14.3 71.4 14.3 0 

Total o/o 4.2 21.1 4.2 0 29.5 

J[J l.O 'm__j'" 
~ 

m, 
.E--t 
I-

"'" n 
Ow 

" • ~ 

3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02632 
ivvv-iv. Cltpecodcon1n1iss'ion. org 

Groups Printed- Tucks 
Pleasant Bay Rd Rt 39 

From East From South 

File Name 
Site Code 
Start Date 
Page No 

: 2512_08072014 
: 00232323 
: 8/7/2014 
: 1 

Pleasant Bay Rd 
From West 

Left l Thru l Right I Peds ] App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Int. Total I 
0 0 0 
0 2 0 
0 0 0 
0 1 2 
0 3 2 

0 1 0 
0 0 0 
1 1 0 
0 2 0 
1 4 0 

1 7 2 
10 70 20 

1.1 7.4 2.1 

0 0 0 3 
0 2 0 4 
0 0 0 6 
0 3 0 6 
0 5 0 19 

0 1 1 4 
0 0 0 2 
0 2 2 3 
0 2 1 6 
0 5 4 15 

0 4 34 
0 10 I 9.8 82.9 
0 10.5 4.2 35.8 

O<rt In Total 
C3Il 28 ~ 

4 20 4 0 
Right Thru Left Peds 

<-1 l 4 

T 
North 

8/7/2014 07:00 AM 
8/7/2014 08:45 AM 

Tucks 

~ T r 
Left Thru Ri ht Peds 

4 34 3 0 

~ 41 ~ 
Out In Total 

39 

0 0 3 1 0 0 0 1 6 
0 0 4 0 3 0 0 3 11 
1 0 7 0 1 0 0 1 10 
0 0 6 0 1 0 0 1 15 
1 0 20 1 5 0 0 6 42 

1 0 6 1 0 0 0 1 14 
0 0 2 1 2 1 0 4 10 
1 0 6 2 2 1 0 5 14 
0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 15 
2 0 21 4 4 2 0 10 53 

3 0 
41 I 5 

9 2 0 
161 

95 
7.3 0 31.2 56.2 12.5 0 
3.2 0 43.2 5.3 9.5 2.1 0 16.8 

w 
"~ 

-:;! 
2 .... 

r 

~Jl,~ 

~~ " • ![ ~ 
•o 



Cape Cod Commission 

Rt 39 @ Pleasant Bay Rd 
Town: Harwich 
Counted by:SMT 
Counters: 6 

Rt39 
From North 

Start nme Left l Thru l Right l Peds l App. rotat 

*** BREAK *** 
07:30AM 0 
07:45AM 0 

Total O 

*** BREAK *** 
08:30AM I 0 

*** BREAK *** 
Total I 0 

Grand Total I 0 
Apprch 0/o 0 

Total% 0 

0 
3 
3 

4 
100 
80 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

~[J 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
3 
3 

1 I 
1 I 

8: I 

o~_j" 
~ 

02 
!'____. 

~ :E 

n 
Ow 

al a_ 

3225 Main Street 
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02632 

v\11,v vv. ca11ec'oclco111tnii;'Sion. org: 

G P. d "k rouos nnte - 81 es 
Pleasant Bay Rd Rt 39 

From East From South 

File Name 
Site Code 
Start Date 
Page No 

: 2512_08072014 
: 00232323 
: 8/7/2014 
: 1 

Pleasant Bay Rd 
From West 

Left l Thru l Right l Peds l App. Total Left I Thru I Right l Peds l App. Total Left I Thru I Right I Peds I App. Total Int. Total I 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 01 0 0 

0 0 0 0 01 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

:1 
0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

?~ 
I ol 4 ol ol 

T 
North 

an12014 01:00 AM 
an12014 oa:4s AM 

Bikes 

~ T I' 
Left Thru Ri ht Peds 

0 0 0 0 

C=:fil 0 C=:fil 
O<rt In Total 

Rt39 

0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 01 0 

0 0 01 0 

0 0 

:1 
0 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

~ 
:Eo 

-;! 
20 

r 

+m.o 
,, 
1l 
•o 

0 1 
0 0 
0 1 

0 0 

0 0 

0 1 
0 100 
0 20 

~l? -
~ • _, ,_ 

0 • ~ 

~~ 

0 1 
0 0 
0 1 

0 01 

0 01 

0 

2: I 
0 
0 

1 
3 
4 

5 



File Name : 2512_08122014
Site Code : 2512
Start Date : 8/12/2014

Page No : 1

Location:Rt 39 & Pleasant Bay Rd
Town: Harwich
Counted by: Jake Wright
Counters: 5

Groups Printed- Cars - Trucks

Rt. 39
From North

Pleasant Bay Rd
From East

Rt. 39
From South

Pleasant Bay Rd
From West

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total

Int. Total

04:00 PM

10 17 12 0

39

6 67 19 0

92

6 33 4 0

43

11 55 2 0

68

242

04:15 PM

10 12 2 0

24

1 75 19 0

95

2 26 1 0

29

14 55 7 0

76

224

04:30 PM

8 8 10 0

26

3 58 14 0

75

6 29 2 0

37

7 63 5 0

75

213

04:45 PM

6 10 4 0

20

3 78 9 0

90

2 15 4 0

21

8 61 5 0

74 205
Total 34 47 28 0 109 13 278 61 0 352 16 103 11 0 130 40 234 19 0 293

884

05:00 PM

17 15 12 0

44

4 91 15 0

110

7 17 5 0

29

17 62 9 0

88

271

05:15 PM

16 20 5 0

41

3 67 11 0

81

9 21 4 0

34

10 55 11 0

76

232

Grand Total

67 82 45 0

194

20 436 87 0

543

32 141 20 0

193

67 351 39 0

457

1387

Apprch %

34.5 42.3 23.2

0  

3.7 80.3 16

0  

16.6 73.1 10.4

0  

14.7 76.8 8.5

0   

Total % 4.8 5.9 3.2 0

14

1.4 31.4 6.3 0

39.1

2.3 10.2 1.4 0

13.9

4.8 25.3 2.8 0

32.9
Cars 67 82 45 0 194 20 422 82 0 524 32 137 19 0 188 67 345 39 0 451

1357

% Cars

100 100 100 0

100

100 96.8 94.3 0

96.5

100 97.2 95 0

97.4

100 98.3 100 0

98.7 97.8
Trucks 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 5 0 19 0 4 1 0 5 0 6 0 0 6

30

% Trucks

0 0 0 0

0

0 3.2 5.7 0

3.5

0 2.8 5 0

2.6

0 1.7 0 0

1.3 2.2

 Rt. 39 

 P
le

a
s
a

n
t 

B
a

y
 R

d
  P

le
a

s
a

n
t B

a
y
 R

d
 

 Rt. 39 

Right

45 
0 

45 
Thru

82 
0 

82 
Left

67 
0 

67 
Peds

0 
0 
0 

InOut Total
286 194 480 

9 0 9 
295 489 194 

R
ig

h
t

8
2

 
5

 
8

7
 

T
h

ru

4
2

2
 

1
4

 
4

3
6

 
L

e
ft 2

0
 

0
 

2
0

 
P

e
d

s 0
 

0
 

0
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

4
3

1
 

5
2

4
 

9
5

5
 

7
 

1
9

 
2

6
 

4
3

8
 

9
8

1
 

5
4

3
 

Left
32 
0 

32 

Thru
137 

4 
141 

Right
19 
1 

20 

Peds
0 
0 
0 

Out TotalIn

141 188 329 
0 5 5 

141 334 193 

L
e

ft6
7

 
0

 
6

7
 

T
h

ru3
4

5
 

6
 

3
5

1
 

R
ig

h
t

3
9

 
0

 
3

9
 

P
e

d
s0

 
0

 
0

 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

4
9

9
 

4
5

1
 

9
5

0
 

1
4

 
6

 
2

0
 

5
1

3
 

9
7

0
 

4
5

7
 

8/12/2014 04:00 PM
8/12/2014 05:15 PM
 
Cars
Trucks

North

Cape Cod Commission

3225 Main Street
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630
<www.capecodcommission.org>



File Name : 2512_08122014
Site Code : 2512
Start Date : 8/12/2014

Page No : 2

Location:Rt 39 & Pleasant Bay Rd
Town: Harwich
Counted by: Jake Wright
Counters: 5

Rt. 39
From North

Pleasant Bay Rd
From East

Rt. 39
From South

Pleasant Bay Rd
From West

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total

Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:15 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM

8 8 10 0

26

3 58 14 0

75

6
29

2 0

37

7
63

5 0

75

213

04:45 PM

6 10 4 0

20

3 78 9 0

90

2 15 4 0

21

8 61 5 0

74

205

05:00 PM

17
15

12
0

44

4 91 15
0

110

7 17
5

0

29

17
62 9 0

88

271

05:15 PM

16
20

5 0

41

3 67 11 0

81

9
21 4 0

34

10 55
11

0

76 232
Total Volume 47 53 31 0 131 13 294 49 0 356 24 82 15 0 121 42 241 30 0 313 921
% App. Total 35.9 40.5 23.7 0  3.7 82.6 13.8 0  19.8 67.8 12.4 0  13.4 77 9.6 0   

PHF .691 .663 .646 .000 .744 .813 .808 .817 .000 .809 .667 .707 .750 .000 .818 .618 .956 .682 .000 .889 .850

 Rt. 39 

 P
le

a
s
a

n
t 

B
a

y
 R

d
  P

le
a

s
a

n
t B

a
y
 R

d
 

 Rt. 39 

Right
31 

Thru
53 

Left
47 

Peds
0 

InOut Total
173 131 304 

R
ig

h
t

4
9

 
T

h
ru

2
9

4
 

L
e

ft1
3

 
P

e
d

s0
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

3
0

3
 

3
5

6
 

6
5

9
 

Left
24 

Thru
82 

Right
15 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
96 121 217 

L
e

ft4
2

 
T

h
ru2
4

1
 

R
ig

h
t

3
0

 
P

e
d

s0
 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

3
4

9
 

3
1

3
 

6
6

2
 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
 
Cars
Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

Cape Cod Commission

3225 Main Street
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630
<www.capecodcommission.org>



File Name : 2512_08122014
Site Code : 2512
Start Date : 8/12/2014

Page No : 1

Location:Rt 39 & Pleasant Bay Rd
Town: Harwich
Counted by: Jake Wright
Counters: 5

Groups Printed- Cars

Rt. 39
From North

Pleasant Bay Rd
From East

Rt. 39
From South

Pleasant Bay Rd
From West

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total

Int. Total

04:00 PM

10 17 12 0

39

6 64 17 0

87

6 31 4 0

41

11 55 2 0

68

235

04:15 PM

10 12 2 0

24

1 73 18 0

92

2 26 1 0

29

14 53 7 0

74

219

04:30 PM

8 8 10 0

26

3 54 14 0

71

6 29 2 0

37

7 60 5 0

72

206

04:45 PM

6 10 4 0

20

3 76 8 0

87

2 14 4 0

20

8 61 5 0

74 201
Total 34 47 28 0 109 13 267 57 0 337 16 100 11 0 127 40 229 19 0 288

861

05:00 PM

17 15 12 0

44

4 89 15 0

108

7 16 5 0

28

17 62 9 0

88

268

05:15 PM

16 20 5 0

41

3 66 10 0

79

9 21 3 0

33

10 54 11 0

75

228

Grand Total

67 82 45 0

194

20 422 82 0

524

32 137 19 0

188

67 345 39 0

451

1357

Apprch %

34.5 42.3 23.2

0  

3.8 80.5 15.6

0  

17 72.9 10.1

0  

14.9 76.5 8.6

0   

Total % 4.9 6 3.3 0

14.3

1.5 31.1 6 0

38.6

2.4 10.1 1.4 0

13.9

4.9 25.4 2.9 0

33.2

 Rt. 39 

 P
le

a
s
a

n
t 

B
a

y
 R

d
  P

le
a

s
a

n
t B

a
y
 R

d
 

 Rt. 39 

Right
45 

Thru
82 

Left
67 

Peds
0 

InOut Total
286 194 480 

R
ig

h
t

8
2

 
T

h
ru

4
2

2
 

L
e

ft2
0

 
P

e
d

s0
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

4
3

1
 

5
2

4
 

9
5

5
 

Left
32 

Thru
137 

Right
19 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
141 188 329 

L
e

ft6
7

 
T

h
ru3
4

5
 

R
ig

h
t

3
9

 
P

e
d

s0
 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

4
9

9
 

4
5

1
 

9
5

0
 

8/12/2014 04:00 PM
8/12/2014 05:15 PM
 
Cars

North

Cape Cod Commission

3225 Main Street
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630
<www.capecodcommission.org>



File Name : 2512_08122014
Site Code : 2512
Start Date : 8/12/2014

Page No : 1

Location:Rt 39 & Pleasant Bay Rd
Town: Harwich
Counted by: Jake Wright
Counters: 5

Groups Printed- Trucks

Rt. 39
From North

Pleasant Bay Rd
From East

Rt. 39
From South

Pleasant Bay Rd
From West

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total

Int. Total

04:00 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 3 2 0

5

0 2 0 0

2

0 0 0 0

0

7

04:15 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 2 1 0

3

0 0 0 0

0

0 2 0 0

2

5

04:30 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 4 0 0

4

0 0 0 0

0

0 3 0 0

3

7

04:45 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 2 1 0

3

0 1 0 0

1

0 0 0 0

0 4
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 4 0 15 0 3 0 0 3 0 5 0 0 5

23

05:00 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 2 0 0

2

0 1 0 0

1

0 0 0 0

0

3

05:15 PM

0 0 0 0

0

0 1 1 0

2

0 0 1 0

1

0 1 0 0

1

4

Grand Total

0 0 0 0

0

0 14 5 0

19

0 4 1 0

5

0 6 0 0

6

30

Apprch %

0 0 0

0  

0 73.7 26.3

0  

0 80 20

0  

0 100 0

0   

Total % 0 0 0 0

0

0 46.7 16.7 0

63.3

0 13.3 3.3 0

16.7

0 20 0 0

20

 Rt. 39 

 P
le

a
s
a

n
t 

B
a

y
 R

d
  P

le
a

s
a

n
t B

a
y
 R

d
 

 Rt. 39 

Right
0 

Thru
0 

Left
0 

Peds
0 

InOut Total
9 0 9 

R
ig

h
t5
 

T
h

ru1
4

 
L

e
ft0

 
P

e
d

s0
 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

7
 

1
9

 
2

6
 

Left
0 

Thru
4 

Right
1 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
0 5 5 

L
e

ft
0

 
T

h
ru

6
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

P
e

d
s0

 

T
o

ta
l

O
u

t
In

1
4

 
6

 
2

0
 

8/12/2014 04:00 PM
8/12/2014 05:15 PM
 
Trucks

North

Cape Cod Commission

3225 Main Street
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630
<www.capecodcommission.org>



File Name : 2512_08122014
Site Code : 2512
Start Date : 8/12/2014

Page No : 1

Location:Rt 39 & Pleasant Bay Rd
Town: Harwich
Counted by: Jake Wright
Counters: 5

Groups Printed- Bikes

Rt. 39
From North

Pleasant Bay Rd
From East

Rt. 39
From South

Pleasant Bay Rd
From West

Start Time Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total Left Thru Right Peds App. Total

Int. Total

*** BREAK ***

Grand Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

Apprch % 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0   

Total %  

                   

Cape Cod Commission

3225 Main Street
Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630
<www.capecodcommission.org>



 

 

Road Safety Audit: Harwich – Route 39 at Pleasant Bay Road 2016 

 
 

 

 

Appendix E 

Harwich Board of Selectmen Traffic Rule – 
Speed Reduction Markings   



VOTED:

That the Traffic Rules and Orders adopted by the Board of Selectmen July 1, 1940, and subsequent amendments 
thereto, be and hereby amended in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 85, Section 2 of the General Laws 
by adding to Article III, Section 3-5, Schedule R3-5, ADVISORY SIGNS the following  streets designated for 
SPEED REDUCTION MARKINGS as authorized by Section 3B.22, Speed Reduction Markings of the Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices at the location and in the direction indicated:

Northbound on the Route 39 curve approaching Pleasant Bay Road, and
Southbound on the Route 39 curve approaching Pleasant Bay Road.

________________________________________

________________________________________

________________________________________

________________________________________

________________________________________

HARWICH BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Effective Date of passage ___________________

Printed in the Cape Cod Chronicle on ________________ ____
initial

Attest

________________________________________
 Town Clerk



Section 3B.22 Speed Reduction Markings
Support:

01 Speed reduction markings (see Figure 3B-28) are transverse markings that are placed on the 
roadway within a lane (along both edges of the lane) in a pattern of progressively reduced spacing to 
give drivers the impression that their speed is increasing. These markings might be placed in advance 
of an unexpectedly severe horizontal or vertical curve or other roadway feature where drivers need to 
decelerate prior to reaching the feature and where the desired reduction in speeds has not been 
achieved by the installation of warning signs and/or other traffic control devices.

Figure 3B-28 Example of the Application of Speed Reduction Markings

Guidance:

02 If used, speed reduction markings should be reserved for unexpected curves and should not be used 
on long tangent sections of roadway or in areas frequented mainly by local or familiar drivers, (e.g., 
school zones). If used, speed reduction markings should supplement the appropriate warning signs 
and other traffic control devices and should not substitute for these devices.

Standard:

03 If used, speed reduction markings shall be a series of white transverse lines on both sides of the lane 
that are perpendicular to the center line, edge line, or lane line. The longitudinal spacing between the 
markings shall be progressively reduced from the upstream to the downstream end of the marked 
portion of the lane.

Guidance:

04 Speed reduction markings should not be greater than 12 inches in width, and should not extend more 
than 18 inches into the lane.

Standard:

05 Speed reduction markings shall not be used in lanes that do not have a longitudinal line (center line, 
edge line, or lane line) on both sides of the lane.



 

 

 Shank Painter Road - 2011 

 



3225 MAIN STREET •  P.O. BOX 226 
BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 02630 

 

CAPE COD 
COMMISSION (508) 362-3828 • Fax (508) 362-3136 •  www.capecodcommission.org  

DATE: 	, 2 016 

APPLICANT: 	Town of Harwich 
c/o David Young, PE 
CDM Smith 
75 State Street, Suite 701 
Boston, MA 02109 

PROJECT: Development of Regional Impact Decision 
Town of Harwich Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan 
(CCC No. 13004) 

DECISION OF THE CAPE COD COMMISSION 
The Cape Cod Commission (Commission) hereby approves with conditions the Development of 
Regional Impact Application of the Town of Harwich (Town or Applicant) for its Comprehensive 
Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP). This decision is rendered pursuant to a vote of the 
Cape Cod Commission at a public hearing on  	, 2016. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Wastewater management is one of the most significant regional concerns affecting Cape Cod. 
The Commission is actively engaged in the 208 Area Wide Water Quality Management Plan 
Update for Cape Cod (208 Plan Update). The Commission's review of CWMPs is guided, in part, 
by the 208 Plan Updarke. As such, the Commission will be working with towns within Barnstable 
County on the shared challenges of wastewater management to identify efficient and cost-
effective solutions common to the towns. 

The Town of Harwich is pursuing, in its CWMP, a long term, multi-phased wastewater 
management program with regional and centralized treatment to reduce nutrient loading to 
coastal waters and meet total maximum daily loads for estuaries/embayments along Nantucket 
Sound and Pleasant Bay. The CWMP proposes a town-wide wastewater collection and 
treatment system, with' associated sewering work located throughout the Town. Sewer mains 
are proposed in existing paved roads. The Town is recommending a traditional wastewater 
program that includes approximately 92 miles of sewer pipes, 30 pumping stations and two 
centralized treatment facilities. The preferred alternative includes two treatment facilities; the 
existing facility in Chatham and a new facility in at the Harwich landfill. The CWMP also 
includes non-structural alternatives for stormwater management, pond water quality protection 
and restoration, fertilizer education, town-wide land use regulation reviews and two projects 
anticipated to provide some natural nitrogen attenuation. The total plan is projected to be 
phased over 40 years and will develop an adaptive management approach to guide its 
implementation. 



BACKGROUND 
The CWMP is subject to mandatory DRI review pursuant to Section 2(d)(i) of the Commission's 
Enabling Regulations Governing Review of Developments of Regional Impact because the 
CWMP required the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) under the 
Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act. 

The Town requested Joint MEPA/Commission Review of the CWMP pursuant to the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the Commission and the Executive Office of Energy 
and Environmental Affairs — MEPA Unit (MEPA) in March 2013 at the ,same time the Town 
filed its Expanded Environmental Notification Form (EENF) on the CWMP under MEPA. In the 
EENF, the Town requested a Phase 1 Waiver for the Muddy Creek Inlet Widening component of 
the CWMP, which would allow that project to proceed without first undergoing Commission 
Development of Regional Impact (DM) review, and to obtain town approvals and begin 
construction earlier than the other components of the CWMP. The Commission held a Joint 
Review hearing on the EENF April 3, 2013 and subsequently submitted to the MEPA office a 
comment letter on the EENF, which comments included support of the Phase 1 Waiver request 
for the Muddy Creek project. The Secretary of the Massachusetts Executive Office of Energy and 
Environmental Affairs (Secretary) issued Certificates on the EENF April 12, 2013, granting the 
Phase 1 Waiver and allowing the Town to prepare a Single Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) 
for the CWMP. 

In its comment letter, the Commission also suggested that the Town wait to prepare and file its 
SEIR until the Commission had completed the update to its 208 Plan Update, which the Town 
agreed to do. The Commission has since completed the 208 Plan Update, which was approved/ 
certified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, through its Governor, in June 2015 and by 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) in September 2015. In its 
certification of the 208 Plan Update, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts designated the Town 
of Harwich as the Waste Treatment Management Agency (WMA) for those watersheds and 
portions of watersheds located within the Town of Harwich. 

The Town filed its SEIR under MEPA in April 2016. The Commission held a Joint Review 
hearing on the SEIR on April 28, 2016, and provided a comment letter to MEPA on the SEIR on 
May 6, 2016. The Secretary issued a Certificate on the SEIR on May 13, 2016, determining that 
the SEIR adequately and properly complies with MEPA and its implementing regulations. 

The DM— public hearing period on the CWMP was opened by hearing officer on June 27, 2016. A 
subcommittee of the Commission held its first substantive DRI public hearing on the CWMP on 
July 28, 2016, at which it heard comments and presentations, and considered a draft DRI 
decision for the CWMP. At this hearing, [the subcommittee voted to recommend the draft 
decision to the full Commission for adoption, which adoption would approve the CWMP, 
subject to conditions in the decision. The hearing was continued to 	  
	 2016 for the ,full Commission's consideration of the draft decision on the CWMP 
recommended by the subcommittee.] 

FINDINGS 
The Commission hereby finds and determines as follows: 

General 
GF1. The Project is the Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (herein, 'Project', 
`CAATMP') for the Town of Harwich, as described in the Single Environmental Impact Report 

2 



(SEIR) dated March 29, 2016 (including Volume 2/Appendices), prepared by CDM Smith. As 
the CWMP underwent Joint Review between MEPA and the Commission, the SEIR constitutes 
the Town's DRI application to the Commission on the CWMP, 

GF2, The CWMP is a long term (40-year), multi-phased (proposed eight-phase) wastewater 
management program to reduce nutrient loading to coastal waters and meet total maximum 
daily loads (TMDLs) for estuaries and embayments along Nantucket Sound and Pleasant Bay. 
The CWMP proposes wastewater collection and treatment systems in several targeted areas of 
the town that contribute to nitrogen impaired watersheds, as well as non-structural nutrient 
management alternatives including stormwater management, restoration projects, fertilizer 
education, freshwater pond water quality initiatives, review of town wide land use regulations 
and open space acquisition initiatives. 

GF2a. Summary of Plan Phases: 
• Phase 1: Natural attenuation projects 

o Muddy Creek Bridge (MEPA Phase 1 Wo*et) - ConstructiO*.0qmpleted 
o Planning for Cold Brook former cran1S,rry bog network off Banl.Street 

, ,. 	, 	..,,„•.N.A 1 , 
o Design and installation of sewers in ftfe.Pleasaritffdy watershed 
o 	Negotiations with town of Chatham on trOptinent and effluent disposal options 
o Possible Cold Brook natural. attenuation Pipit!et implementation ,... 	,,  

• Phase 3 
0 

Additional sewering in the 'atea uoi•th 	I larwiCE Village Commercial District 
o Water quality monitoring and eyalna ion Of impacts from sewering and the 

Muddy Creek bridge, project 
o Possible implementation of the POtential Seymour Pond restoration project „  
o  Design and constructiOu of the Chatham Wastewater Facility expansion 

4 
!!Sub 7 phase . 	le construcfi' fi'dfiteatinent plant at site HR-12 (landfill site) to 

' treat collected flows from Phases 4, 5 and 6 
o Sub-phaseiiB: construction of sewers to collect wastewater in the northeast 

portion of the _Herring River Watershed, with wastewater pumped to, treated and 
recharged at plant site HR-12 

• Phi:§e 
o Construction"6,Newers to collect wastewater in the northwest portion of the 

Heriing Rivei- Watershed and near site HR-12, with wastewater pumped to, 
treated aid recharged at plant site HR-12 

• Phase 6* 
o Construction of sewers to collect wastewater in the Southeast part of the Herring 

River watershed, and install some of the planned sewers in the Allen and 
Wychmere Harbor watersheds, with wastewater pumped to, treated and 
recharged at plant site HR-12 

o Possible implementation of the potential Bucks and John Joseph Pond 
restoration projects 

• Phase 7* 

• Phase 2 

•... • 

• Phase 

3 



o Expansion of plant site HR-12 and installation of the remaining required sewers 
in the Herring River watershed. 

• Phase 8* 
o Sewer construction in the Saquatucket watershed and the remaining areas of the 

Pleasant Bay watershed. 
o Sewer construction near the Great Sand Lakes and the Campground. 

*The town anticipates that sewer service areas in Phases 5, 6, 7 and 8 may be 
adjusted to meet local needs and feedback from water.,, pay monitoring. 

GF3. There are five watersheds within the Town (Herring River, i'leasant Bay, Wychmere 
Harbor, Saquatucket Harbor, Allen Harbor), encompassing much bilt_not all land area within 
the Town. The Pleasant Bay and Herring River watersheds cue Shared with neighboring towns; 
the Wychmere, Allen and Saquatucket Harbor watersheds are each wholly contained within the 
town's boundaries. All five watersheds have MEP repOq0 'establishing critical .nitrogen 
thresholds. 

GF4. The CWMP is subject to mandatory DRI revieW pursuant to i Section 2(d)(i) of the 
Commission's Enabling Regulations Governing ReVieiv of DeVelopments of Regional Impact 
(`Enabling Regulations') and Section 12(i) of the Cape C.i.0 Commission Act because the CWMP 
required the preparation of an EIR under IYIEPA. 

7j V 

GF7. The CWMP is consistent withDiatict of Crifiqal Planning Concern (DCPC) implementing 
regulations,,as appli c a bl e; the-Town of Harwich,Local Comprehensive Plan (LCP); and 
municipal developMent regulations, subject to obtaining all local permits, licenses and 
approvals' required to .iinplentent. L e constituent components of the CWMP. 

• " 	 r4 	• 

• e Cape-wide Fertilizer Management DCPC was adopted by county ordinance in 2014. 
The Town does not haYe. implementing regulations pursuant to this DCPC (and thus 
consistency with Cape:-wide Fertilizer Management DCPC implementing regulations is 
inapplic4ble); however :the Town has committed to a fertilizer management education 
program in its CWMP; 

• The Six Ponds DCPC in the northeast part of the Town was adopted by county ordinance 
in 2000. The ToWn developed and adopted implementing regulations into its zoning by-
law pursuant to this DCPC. The CWMP includes land within the geographic extent of 
this DCPC designation. The CWMP is consistent with the goals of this DCPC and its 
implementing regulations, as they share the common goal of enhancing water quality 
protection of various water resources. Additionally, the build-out and growth 
assumptions of the CWMP are consistent with permissible and anticipated development 
patterns in the designated DCPC area. 

• The CWMP was developed to be consistent with the Town's LCP. The build-out and 
growth assumptions of the CWMP are consistent with potential development patterns in 
the Town under existing zoning and envisioned under the LCP, providing infrastructure 

GF5. The Secretary issued a Final Certificate on May13, 2016 Stating that the SEIR for the 
CWMP adequately and properly complies With MEPA 	implementing regulations. 

GF6. The Development of 42:eg -icinal Impact 	earing pe od was opened by hearing officer 
at a pro forma hearing,June 27, 2016;,the first SithStantive Development of Regional Impact 
public hearing on th0 CWMP was held by subconnpittee July 28, 2016. 

4 



to support the planned growth outlined in the Town's LCP. Section 2 of the SEIR 
addresses the relationship between the CWMP and LCP. The CWMP cites an 
overarching vision contained in the LCP, to "...enhance vitality of our cultural, 
recreational, and natural assets." Section 13 of the SEIR addresses revised flow 
assumptions for planned growth under the LCP (especially for East Harwich), not 
specifically addressed in MEP reports for the town's estuaries, and not assumed under 
the existing zoning by-law. The SEIR's Executive Summary addresses the relationship 
between growth management, natural resources and economic development, and states 

"Growth and economic development are necessary components of any vibrant 
community. Harwich's preferred approach to growth management is to promote 
planned growth in targeted areas that enhance pedestriati, culture and offer a positive 
experience for residents, business owners, and visitors.'Po4ising growth in 
concentrated areas that include the appropriate supporting infrastructure (utilities, 
transportation, etc.) is a 'smart growth' approach that allows forbetter protection of 
natural resources in Town. As such, Harwichh4 designated three' "villages" in Town 
where planned growth and economic development are desired. TheSe areas are the 
commercial districts known as the East Rarwich Village Center, Harwich Port, and 
Harwich Center. Each of these areas has been undergoing independent planning for 
development and redevelopment appropriatelo the character of the particular area." 

GF8. The probable benefit of the CWMP is. greater than'theprobable detriment of the CWMP. 
Benefits of the CWMP include water quality ,protection anctfestoration; adaptive management 
to minimize and mitigate project costs and project,finpacts; a! Fong term plan to meet applicable 
TMDLs established under MEP; reasonable, provisions for allowing balanced, targeted growth in 
areas appropriate for additional development; comprehensiVe.planning for various water 
resources within the towin.and 'keollaborative planning approkeh with neighboring towns, 
which should economize infrastruWire costs to the town and region. 

GF9. 208 PLAN UP15A., E CONSISTENCY 

The Commission has coins leled' he 208'1:Tan Updafe, which was approved/ certified by the 
Commonwealthin .Time :2015 and by US EPA in September 2015. In its certification of the 208 
Plan Update, the Cominpnwealth of Massachusetts designated the Town of Harwich as the 
WastcTreatment Maniigenient Agency (WMA) for those watersheds and portions of watersheds 
located within the Town of Harwich. Consistency with the 208 Plan Update is required to 
obtain State,Revolving Funcl (SRF) financing, and pursuant to Section 13(1) of the Commission 
Act, CWMPs are required to 4e.consistent with the 208 Plan Update, among other 
requirements 	 i.;:  

A. As detailed bellow,. 	CWMP in concept meets the overall goals of and is consistent 
with the 208 Plan Update; 	the Town of Harwich eligible for SRF funding: .,• 

a. The CWMP's nitrogen reduction planning is conducted on a watershed and 
subembayment basis. 

b. The CWMP accepts responsibility for 100% of nitrogen in the Allen, Saquatucket and 
Wychmere water- or sub- watersheds which are wholly or primarily within the Town of 
Harwich, and accepts responsibility for Harwich's share of nitrogen contributions in the 
shared water- or sub- watersheds of Herring River, Pleasant Bay, and Swan Pond River, 
as allocated in the 208 Plan Update. 

5 



c. The goal of the CWMP is to: a) achieve TMDL compliance for all marine embayments 
wholly within the Town of Harwich; and b) to address the required nitrogen removal 
amounts allocated to the Town of Harwich in the 208 Plan Update to achieve TMDLs in 
shared watersheds. 

d. The CWMP includes a growth management component that proposes to remove 100% 
of nitrogen from new growth within the town. There will be no increase in untreated 
nitrogen within nitrogen sensitive areas. 

e. The CWMP creates an adaptive management program to li4plement nitrogen 
reduction strategies that achieve TMDLs while adapting to;Water quality and 
environmental monitoring results and other changes in 'eirc-Oristances over time. 

f. The CWMP presents a hybrid approach to watershed planning,mcluding current and 
future consideration for alternative nutrient management techniqties.;a. regional 
approach to nutrient management issues; a dl'athsideration of non-:nitrogen collection 
needs in the subject watersheds. 

B. Future 208 Plan Update Consistency 

The validity of this decision over the CW:MP's 40 year tiMe',11Orizon is conditioned on continued 
consistency with the 208 Plan Update. Futtire consistency Wi[ll be measured and certified at 
milestones identified in this decision and Subseqciently through 'the adaptive management 
process in which the Commission will participate with the Town " 

In order to maintain 208 Plai,Ahclate consistency ;'which is required for continued eligibility for 
SRF funding, implementation of the. Harwich'CWMP shall be conducted consistent with the 
process outlined in thtpli68 Plan Update, as diScssed below. Adaptive Management and 208 
Plan Update CertifiC4ion are related, as each are,'integral, ongoing requirements of the long 
term CWMP to ensure`that the QAT* proceeds with, and achieves its fundamental goals over 
time. The process in cludeS ,creation of a Technical Review Panel that includes local, regional 
and state representation to prOide input on the'review and refinement of the CWMP 
through* each Planning and implementation increment. The formation and engagement of 
the pariel as part of the Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) is a requirement of this decision and 
it is recommended that it a requirement of any state permit issued. It should be noted that 
the Commission's future determinations of 208 Plan Update consistency and reviews under the 
AMP will fOcvs on targeted Watershed planning. 

a. Public!ftagemen 

Technical Review Panel recommendations should be discussed with the watershed community 
through a facilitated process to gain consensus for preferred actions going forward. Public 
outreach measures should include engagement of Environment Justice Communities and 
existing watershed associations, among other stakeholders. 

The SEIR identifies the need for a group to track innovative and alternative technologies. Going 
forward, the town should identify how that group would be formed and involved in the AMP, 
and how alternative technologies will be incorporated into the town's wastewater management 
approach. 

6 



The Town of Harwich should consider promoting the formation of new watershed association(s) 
to ensure public support of subsequent phases during implementation. 

The Commission should be represented on CWMP committees. 

b. Planning Approach 

The Town of Harwich should proceed with the CWMP consistent with the nitrogen load 
assumptions contained in the 208 Plan Update, as they may be amended from time to time 
based on best available data. 

The Town should proceed with its hybrid approach to watershe liplaUning, including the • 
consideration for further incorporation of Pilot/ Non-traditional PrOjeCts., as appropriate, and 
continuation of the fresh water pond water quality progragl, 

c. Coordination in Shared Watersheds 

The Town of Harwich should continue to work Ali peighboring towns to pursue shared 
infrastructure to reduce nitrogen in watersheds, and tofacilitate further coordination, the Town 
of Harwich should consult with the Commission on hailer. deVelopment of uncompleted items 
in phase 1, and phases 2 through 8 of the CWMP as part o; the AMP and 208 Plan Update 
certification process hereunder. Future'wate.i.Shed based planning should include the 
development of a hybrid plan in shared watersheds consistent with the Hybrid Watershed 
Scenario planning approach set forth in the 208 	Update and include a range of both 
collection and non-collection,technologies. Planning, ih 'shaed watersheds should be in 
collaboration and cooperatiO.Wfth the Corrithissioh and the towns of Chatham, Orleans, 
Brewster and Dennis. 

The Town of Harwic .should undeitAlte an analySIs of options to provide capacity for 
wastewater treatment'  and disposal by the Town of Dennis 

The Town i)1 Harwich 	e the potential for adopting a Nutrient Trading Program 
with abutting towns tO achieve TMDL compliance. 

Fertilizer and staframtter Nutrient Management Credits 

The Towiibt Harwich should he prepared to respond to the draft small MS4 permit in 
accordance with, permit deadlifies. 

The Town of Harvvich,deelhie -d to adopt a nutrient management bylaw as authorized by the 
Cape—wide Fertilizer Management District of Critical Planning Concern in 2014. The Town 
should develop a detailed plan, including educational initiatives and proposed actions and 
budgets for fertilizer management to support the credit taken for fertilizer reductions in the 
CWMP. 

The Town identifies some strategies for managing turf fertilizer use within the Town in the 
SEIR. The SEIR notes the Town's participation in the Pleasant Bay Alliance as one avenue for 
improving awareness and education about the link between water quality and fertilizer use 
within the Pleasant Bay watershed. The Town also plans to implement town-wide educational 
strategies to improve understanding about fertilizer use. In order that the educational efforts 

7 



prove effective, the town should provide more detail about how and to what extent the Town will 
take on town-wide education, including of residents, seasonal homeowners, and the landscaping 
community. Such detail should also identify specific actions to be undertaken and the parties 
responsible for undertaking such actions. 

e. Capital Project Development and Coordination 

Construction impacts on marine and drinking water resources resulting from deployment of 
infrastructure and Minimum Performance Standards (MPSs) and Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) for siting technologies will be addressed as project plans for specific components of the 
CWMP are submitted pursuant to the Commission's process for requesting issuance of - 
Certificates of Compliance under this decision. 

The Town should outline how it proposes to meet the criteria. ° the S F program to be eligible 
for zero-percent interest SRF loans, including adoption bf local flow neutral regulations or other 
regulatory controls. 

-11 

At the completion of each planning period of the r 1V1P, an evaluation of the performance of 
deployed technologies should be conducted, and thelown should assess whether it has achieved 
desired nutrient removal performance, cost effectiveneSs, and any associated co-benefits. 41-•  

The AMP should address on-going imp OiiiVtatiori of oth'eedapital projects in the Town of 
Harwich alongside the CWMP. 	0:;1. 

Harwich has had an active shellfish program for many3;.417. Th6 SEIR indicates an interest in 
i 

, 	, 
determining whether the shellfiSh program hli§ had an mpact on nitrogen management, but as 
this initiative is not detailed in the SEIR, the OW MP does not indicate, but should going 
forward, whether there is room for additional seeding in the town's water bodies, or 
opportunities for aqua vulture grants,  or other expansion of the program. The town should also 
indicate how it intends tp...rnonitor 	moval.if it seeks credit for an aquaculture 
program. 

onitoring an Data liking 
• : 

The T64iof Harwich should share ambient water quality monitoring results and performance 
monitoririg.re.sults throughout AMP process with the Commission and with the Towns of 
Chatham, Bi•ewster, Dennis and Orleans. 

The Town shall fithyide a,detailed monitoring plan that includes, at a minimum, an assessment 
of downgradient reS0nr  .ceOf sensitive receptors, placement of monitoring stations, parameters 
of evaluation, methodS!far collecting and analyzing data, and frequency of data collection. The 
monitoring should include site specific monitoring to understand the impact of stormwater 
infrastructure upgrades and the effectiveness of fertilizer reduction strategies. 

To maintain 208 Plan Update consistency, the Town should share building permit data with the 
Commission on an annual basis. Such data shall include but not be limited to: new residential 
units and non-residential units, and all new development likely to result in an increase in 
wastewater disposal. This data should be provided to the Commission electronically either by 
providing the Commission with access to vendor-managed assessing data or directly from the 
Town Assessing Department. 

8 



The Town should enter into a data sharing agreement with the Commission including, but not 
limited to: building permit data (as discussed above), water supply pumping (annual statistical 
reports, or ASRs) and water quality results, parcel based water use, data relative to the 
monitoring of technologies deployed under the AMP, and data relative to the monitoring of 
water quality and environmental conditions to demonstrate TMDL compliance. 

The Town's monitoring and reporting should include CECs, and the relative percent of nitrogen 
removed for each major watershed for phases of the CWMP. 

g. Growth Management 

The Town should develop its vision for desired growth in thetoWn as relates to the CWMP, and 
establish appropriate growth neutral management strategies ,decordinigl3'r. Management 
strategies could include flow neutral, zoning or other land Ilse regulations, 'development of open 
space policies, and further acquisition of open space,. 

Where sewering creates additional growth or delkilopment potential in or proxinuite to historic 
districts or areas with a significant number of histdric properties, the Town should' consider 
creating additional historic districts or implementing'otlicr measures to protect historic 
resources that may be threatened by greater developmeilt pressure. 

1 1:  

REGIONAL POLICY PLAN ISSUE AREA FINDINGS  
As detailed in the following sections dealing with issue, 'areas appfid4ble and material to the 
CWMP, the CWMP is consistent with the Regional irolfry Plan . (RPP), subject to the conditions 
in this decision. The RPP eUrrcntlkin effect and applicable to the CWMP is the 2009 RPP, as 
amended August 17, 2012,' 

Land Use Findings 
LUF1. The build out conditions the SEIRindicale the potential for targeted growth in the 
East Harwich Harwic1 h Ceiiter and Harwich Port 'Oommercial center villages. The Commission 

1  

encouraW ppprotqi4e, plEihridd growth with supporting infrastructure that maintains the 
econoinie,vitality of the twin, balanced with other concerns of the Commission Act. 

LUF2 in.inrder to manage oew growth that might accompany sewer service, the SEIR identifies 
the potential for down-zoning and acquiring land for permanent protection. The SEIR identifies 
East Harwich Village Center, as one area where the town would like to focus additional 'smart' 
growth; and rehitedly, the CWMP identifies parcels throughout town where additional 
development may. oecur (under a `buildouf scenario). However, the CWMP would benefit, under 
adaptive management, froin a more comprehensive and detailed statement about the Town's 
perspective and vision for future growth in the town. 

• If higher densities are desired in certain areas, the Town should discuss strategies to 
remain 'flow neutral' with this increased development potential. 

• The CWMP has a general statement about the opportunity to purchase open space to 
reduce nitrogen-generation potential, but there are no strategic or priority lands 
acquisitions identified. The CWMP should discuss such strategies, including with 
reference to relevant provisions in the Town's Open Space and Recreation Plan (or a 
draft OSRP, under development) and its capital planning documents. 

9 



• The CWMP should also discuss in greater specificity the costs to serve existing 
development versus development projections under the CWMP's build-out assumptions. 

Economic Development Findings 
EDFi. Minimum Performance Standard ED4.1 under Goal ED4, Infrastructure Capacity, 
requires that infrastructure development, such as sewer infrastructure, be proposed in response 
to public need and demand, and will result in service improvements. The Commission 
encourages appropriate, planned growth with supporting infrastructure that maintains the 
economic vitality of the town, balanced with other concerns of the Commission Act. 

EDF2. Public sewer will improve the availability, reliability and qua of septage wastewater 
services in the proposed sewer service area, and is needed for water,quality maintenance and 
improvement, which is central to the economic vitality of the tO, 

Energy Resources Findings ). ...  
ERFI. Though wastewater projects are specifically exenpt from review un .er the Minimum 
Performance Standards of the RPP's Energy issue.,0e .the Commission recOgni?.es that the 
town is proposing or considering energy efficienenioasures associated with the'liWTF on site , 	.. ....... 
HR-12. 

Water Resources Findings 
WRF1. The SEIR includes a needs assegs1Ilent which proVid..es the background and 
interpretation of the water quality condi-06S for drinking water, fresh water ponds, and coastal 
embayments, which are the three major *ter rdsn'Urceareas identified in the RPP and the 208 
Plan Update. The background infortnatidii.,ProvideS:(franiewOrkfor the project and identifies 
the Town's overall wastewatermapagemeONeds,..Tlie-deop..ineludes a process to identify 
wastewater collection areas;; primarily to aclilove.tlie'amounf6f, septic nitrogen removal . 	• 
necessary to restore coa,Sta  i water quality as determined through the MEP studies' critical 
nitrogen loads. The*OCess is one that uses parcel_ specific water use information and accounts 
for the occurrence of 	attenuation and opportunities for enhanced attenuation similar to 
the Commission's 208'PlanTraek(4,-WIO.,Watershed/MVP analysis. Sewer collection is 
prioritized im several areas;: '4408iilt of thiS'PrObesS. The CWMP also includes a process to 
account. W.the'reniov.al of SePti . nitrogen and the return of treated effluent nitrogen to achieve 
the overall goal of balaiicild restoration. 

wR#1!,The CWMP crossrelerence&ater quantity information from cumulative pumping and • 
actual parcel level metered 1. rater use. 'The town-wide water use for the years 2001 to 2007 is 
between 04). and boo million.gallons. The average household water use is 186 gpd and 
commercial ugeis .768 gpd-Aereas the MEP residential flow is 166 gpd. Specific water uses for :•••:::. 
each Marine watershed froini: observed water use and MEP are compared and the differences 
were determined -tdbe•iiiine'r and both appropriate for planning purposes. The CWMP used the 
MEP buildout analySiS:and applied the appropriate water use to project the number of 
residential and commercial properties. The increase in wastewater flow ranges from 14% to32% 
for the five major coastal watersheds, as listed on Table 1, with an average of a 26% increase for 
growth based on 2001-water use. The CWMP evaluated the effect of irrigation water use on 
wastewater projects and found that the long-term irrigation amount is 315,000 gpd for July and 
August, making up 3% of the 10% average non-consumptive water use. Maximum month 
peaking factor for Harwich is 2.2 times the average flow of 1.72 mgd. The buildout assessment 
makes use of the MEP buildout analysis including some modification for economic development 
targeted growth in the East Harwich, Harwich Center and Harwich Port village areas. The 
CWMP uses buildout water volumes for infrastructure design purposes over 6 phases. The 

10 



CWMP's AMP contemplates a process to document how the Town would comply with a flow-
neutral condition for SRF zero-percent loan eligibility. 

WRF3. The Drinking Water Resources Goal in the RPP is "to maintain a sustainable supply of 
high quality drinking water and restore and protect the ecological integrity of fresh and 
marine waters," and the CWMP is consistent with the RPP. Historic water quality data from the 
public water supply wells in the CWMP areas where treatment and effluent is proposed show 
that they have average nitrate-nitrogen concentrations well below the RPP limit of 5 ppm and 
the state drinking water standard of 10 ppm. In addition, none of the wells display any 
significant concentration trends; groundwater nitrate concentrations tend to fluctuate in a fairly 
constrained range below 1.5 ppm. Drinking water supplies in the CWMP areas where treatment 
and effluent is proposed do not have any significant impacts from wastewater-derived nitrogen 
given the long range efforts of the Town in acquiring lands within t1eZone Ifs and to establish 

q-lf:tv local regulatory means to protect them. 

WRF4. The CWMP reports that approximately 9,81=w; a4biints in the tow-n ai'e  serviced by 
drinking water from 14 gravel packed wells that collectively pump approxirmit6ly 2 MGD. The 
drinking water quality is excellent with the exception of naturally occurring iron '..The Town 
Water Department recently completed a new 6.5'.MG,D treatmenti plant to remove ii-on and 
manganese. The average nitrate concentration fronithe wells is .i..i ppm, which is substantially 
below drinking water health limits. The Wellhead ProteetiOn Areas (WPAs) that provide 
recharge to the public supply are not identified as a wastewater management need, however, 
limited sewering in overlapping Marine Water Recharge Areas (MWRAs) will provide potential 
benefits to drinking water quality. The Pleasant,Bay drinking Water well recharge area that is 
proposed for sewering for Pleasant Bay has.  111 average.nitrogen 'concentration of 2 ppm, which 
is below the state and federal standard of 16; lipin, andtbe Coininigsion's nitrogen loading 
standard of 5 ppm. The Town :lias,,qpiaducted monitoring under the Unregulated Contaminant 
Monitoring Rule for Compounds Of Emerging.Concern (CFCs). 

WRF5. There are 220najor ponds inklarwich. T p:Water Quality Task Force has taken 
advantage of the Cape Cod Ponds and,Lake Stewardship (PALS) program to obtain important 
long term water quality data.,, The CWMP iitiliZed prior reports, including those prepared 
through the Commission, and developed a pond. program to protect and, where necessary, 
restore. pend Water quality. The program proposes continued monitoring, evaluation of 
stormwater treatment oPportunities,and further investigation, particularly to determine 
whether phosphorous loads'are internal (sediments) or external (from the watershed). Three 
areas were,identified aroun4 John Joseph, Bucks and Sand Ponds, Hinckleys, Seymour and 
Long Pond, and Paddocks Pond, The CWMP indicates that continued monitoring and study are 
required to determine the best:hverall approach to protect and restore pond water quality. An 
alum treatment of HinckleyS pond is recommended in a detailed study by Water Resources 
Services dated March 2012'4nd an unscheduled associated CWMP project, 

WRF6. The CWMP reports on the findings of the Massachusetts Estuary Project (MEP) which 
includes critical nitrogen loads referred to as thresholds. The next step is for the MA 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) is to establish Total Maximum Daily Loads 
(TMDLs) from the thresholds in the MEP report and to work with the Town and SMAST to 
prepare and complete the regulatory review necessary to establish the TMDLs. 

WRF7. The MEP critical nitrogen loads are presented as the amount of septic nitrogen that will 
need to be removed from the watersheds. The percent removal for existing and buildout 
conditions is summarized on Table 1 below. 

11 



Table  1 Percent Nitrogen Removal by Watershed  
Watei•shed 	 Present 	Percents  Septic 

Load (kg/.ii) 	Reduction F,xisting 
Condition 

Percent Septic 
Reduction Buildout 

Condition 
Allen Harbor 5.64 74 78 

Wychmere Harbor 3.21 100 100 

Saquatucket Harbor 13.25 6o 58 
Pleasant Bay (Round Cove) 5.18 64 68 
Pleasant Bay (Muddy Creek 13.32 48 58 
Pleasant Bay 16.69 bt 70 

Herring River 38.59 38 58  

Of particular note is the large increase of percent removal that occurs tinder buildout conditions 
in the Herring River Watershed. A majority of this future:load comes frca the West Reservoir 
sub-watersheds where the amount to be removed increases from zero at Present conditions to 
48% at buildout conditions. This results in the largeSt difference between percent removal for 
existing and buildout conditions in the table above. Herring River has the large§i'.residential 
water use (181 gpd) of the Harwich embayments, and the Commission recommends that non-
structural controls on future growth, including open space protection in the Herring River 
watershed be considered as an alternative/complementary istrategy for nitrogen management. 
The CWMP acknowledges the role that Potential non-traditional technology may play in 
reducing potential sewer collection area§ . ,:v-itItin.,the year time frame prior to implementation of 
Phase 4 of the CWMP. 

WRF8. Two areas of identified concern for Title 5 failure art.tlac.: area north of Allen Harbor due 
to high groundwater, and the Campground arc.  due to dense development. Sewering to 
alleviate Title 5 issues is'recommeikled by the CWMP because the areas are also identified for 
nitrogen reduction. 'Wastewater needs for nitrogen reduction using the MEP thresholds was 
summarized above. Waste'ater needs for socio-economic reasons for East Harwich, Harwich 
Port and Harwich Centerwere identified and factored into projected overall wastewater flow 
and management scenarios.  The CWMP acknowledges that the Campground area may be an 
area that receives and interim:;Wastewater solutibn within the 40-year CWMP. The Commission 
notes that the proposed 0,6 million dollar harbor improvement and dredging project for 
Saquatucket Harbor maY emove a Significant source of benthic nitrogen and should be 
acknOviedged in and incorporated into the CWMP as an interim intervention through the AMP. 
The dredging of Allen's Harbor in 2012 also offers an opportunity to evaluate the water quality 
changes that resulted and thei potential to achieve greater improvements with potential future 
dredging designcqnsiderations for the Harbor. Commission staff can assist the Town in this ,. j  
evaluation. 

WRF9. The CWMP used a screening process to eliminate unsuitable parcels for consideration as 
potential facility and effluent disposal sites. Of the 11,600 parcels in town, forty parcels were 
identified for further consideration, ten parcels were selected for further study, and five sites 
were chosen as part of the CWMP management scenarios. The site suitability approach was 
methodical and included reasonable assumptions for the projected and cumulative sub-regional 
volumes of wastewater. The CWMP identified PB-3 as a key site for effluent disposal, noting that 
DEP would not require costly removal for Total Organic Carbon if this site was used. However, 
the Town vote to authorize the purchase of the site for effluent recharge failed in 2015. 
Accordingly, the Town is now moving forward with the Chatham Plant disposal option. The 

12 



draft Intermunicipal Agreement includes language that Chatham will provide a 3-year advance 
notice in the event that it intends not to continue accepting Harwich wastewater. As such the 
Town continues to investigate other options for disposal for the Pleasant Bay effluent. Options 
for ocean outfall and numerous other scenarios have been developed including a single disposal 
scenario (3A) at the HR-12 site near the landfill. 

WRF10. The CWMP developed eight alternative scenarios for wastewater management as 
summarized in the Table 2 below. 

• The baseline case included the nitrogen offset that is anticipated to result from two 
natural attenuation projects for Muddy Creek and Cold Brook:. The parcels and 
wastewater flows reflect the amount needed to offset nitrogen loads from the proposed 
treatment effluent. The CWMP developed a number Of criteria to compare the scenarios 
including capital cost, operation and maintenance, cost efficieliey.  (shown below), a 
variety of technical criteria, institutional criteria and environmental;Criteria. 
Commission staff finds that the criteria ranking process is a thorough and fair method. 
The total criteria score (as weighted) of the scenarios (shown below in Table 2) indicate 
that scenarios 3A, 4A and 5A are the most faVorable. The (7A) scenario including I/A 
systems had the highest cost per nitrogen pound removal. 

• The CWMP, less formally, evaluated the use of Sinaller facilities, sized at 100,000 gpd as 
an alternative. The Town used 1,11e'selected deeision.eriteria to determine that the use of 
more numerous 100,000 gpd facilities was,nol, favorable,ilargely from a bottom line cost 
perspective. Table 3 below shows the numbeil ;of parcels and flow to be captured and 
treated. The amounts for three of the smaller southon embayments range from 26,000 
to 95,000 gpd at build ont; Smaller treatinent facilities, while incurring a cost premium, 
can potentially he deployed over a shorter time frame with more flexibility for siting. 
The identification of sites tu,i.4.eat and dispose of wastewater at these lower volumes 
could also inclUde parcels th4t, are smaller than 5 acres. Similarly, non-traditional 
interventions like the Saquatucket dredging project, in which benthic material with high 
pitifigen I COncentration is, proposed to be removed from the harbor, should be analyzed 

,': ut.o'determine Whether they.could provide faster removal of nitrogen in targeted areas to 
'.produce demonstrable water. - pay improvements, and thus should be incorporated 
Ingre greatly into the.plan. 

• The CWMP used the percent septic nitrogen removal for the buildout condition. 
ComniiSSion staff suggests that the Town identify the extent of potential sewer collection 
areas for the existing-.development condition to prioritize how the system could be 
phased in through ,selected planning horizons as development proceeds from existing 
conditions to buildo-at conditions. Reporting the relative percent of nitrogen removed 
for each major watershed for phases of the plan should be part of the AMP. 

Table 2 Wastewater Scenarios 
Scenario Description Parcels 

Sewered 
Wastewater 

Flow 
Cost $/Pound of 

NO3 removed 
Total 
Score 

i_A 3 Sites (Allen to Saquatucket) 2992 670000 199 270 
2A 3 Sites (Allen to Herring) 	 3092 682000 192 266 

4E.01t0 .. ..iii......1iiiiiiig . ?. ..WVe.t.....:.- 3198 97000. .. 	: :::: : .3,46... 4 

13 



515,700  

Allan Harbor 234 

Herring River 2340 399,300  

Table 3 Sewershed Characteristics 
Sewershed Characteristics for 	Parcels 

Each Watershed 
(Option 5A)  

'Cirrrent Averag6. -
Water Use 

(GPD) 
52,100 

BiiildOtt(Average , : 

(GPD) 
57,000 

Wychmere Harbor 
Saquatucket Harbor 
Pleasant Bay 

26,300 

90,70 
205 ;90 0 

123 

451  
12 05 

29,000 

95,200  

235,900 

A 2 Sites RR  and PB 3184 704000 175 223 
2 Sites .14R and PB (Chatham) 3094 . 680000 :176 204 

6A 4 Sites 2968 667000 215 321 
7A IA Systems & four Sites 1643 417000 447 402 
8A 1 Site and Ocean Outfall 2438  564000 252 366 

• 
WRF11. The CWMP includes a discussion about regional approaches: 

• The CWMP considers sewer collection of.a.section of Dennis Port within the.Herring 
River watershed. This aspect is included in, all scenario's: the towns have also discussed 
the possibility of a shared treatment facility to'be located in Dennis. 

• Another regional aspect is the use;of the Chatham.facility to accommodate the flow from 
the East Harwich and the Pleasant BLIY watershed Treatment at the Chatham facility 
attains a nitrogen treatment efficiency of :-4,Ppih. 'Phis regonal option would make use of 
early capacity at Chatham plant and educe the overall construction cost to both towns 
through a shared facility'.,'; The Harwich effluent would-he retained and disposed of at the 
Chatham facility phtil such time that the, Chatham sewer expansion project would 
require that capacity. The CfMVIP indicates that the Town will continue to seek a site to 
bring treated effluent backto'Harwich for:disposal in the Pleasant Bay watershed in the 
event that Chatham nee& to i0.',.,the,c.,ptire .'disposal capacity. This would require both a 
disposal 's4 and a  

Additionally, t ''-'11/1Lidd ...):ki jfeek habitat restoration/ nitrogen attenuation project is a „... 
,collaborative one.  Originally contemplated during DRI review of the Chatham CWMP, ._,„ 
approved by the Commissionby- decision dated March 29, 2009, Commission staff notes 
thatthe Chatham CI MP DRI decision contains findings and conditions relevant to 
continue.[ Implementation of the Muddy Creek project between the towns, and shared 
use of thdOiathani,14eility. Specifically, under the decision, Commission staff will work 
with the staff,tO44alyze the feasibility of expanding use and capacity of the Chatham 
facility; will review the IMA between the towns; and review the results of the Muddy 
Creek project through adaptive management planning as it bears on the development of 
future sewer footprints in the towns, and ongoing 208 Plan Update consistency review. 

• Finally, the towns of Harwich and Brewster have discussed, and will continue to discuss, 
a collaborative approach to meeting TMDLs in the shared Herring River watershed. The 
towns have previously collaborated on freshwater pond water quality improvement 
projects. 

14 



WRF12. The following is a description and timeframe of the Harwich preferred plan phased 
approach using the CWMP's proposed request for funding. In keeping with the adaptive 
management process described in the SEIR, after the CWMP undergoes DRI review and is 
further implemented, the Commission will continue to review the CWMP for consistency with 
the 208 Plan Update at regular milestones identified during DRI review, as a condition of 
proceeding with subsequent phases or sub-phases of the CWMP. Should the Town be required 
to file Notices of Project Change (NPC) for the CWMP under MEPA (e.g. non-traditional or pilot 
projects), the Town shall provide the Commission a copy of such NPC for review, and a 
determination about whether the NPC requires modification to this decision. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, NPCs shall be incorporated into and reviewed by the Cox unission as part of the 
Town's AMP. 

• Phase 1, 2013: focuses on implementation of two natural nitrogen attenuation programs. 
The first is the completion of the Muddy Creek Bridge under a , Phase 1 Waiver to increase 
the existing opening to 24-feet in order to increase flushing and help restore ecological 
habitat. The second is the evaluation of options In improve the natnial attenuation in 
the Cold Brook former cranberry bog network off Bank Street. (This phase was 
previously proposed to include the purchase.of land for the PB-3 effluent recharge 
facility, but it did not pass 2016 Town Meeting vote). The implementation of a Hinckleys 
Pond restoration project has been deferred until ''alWr time. 

• Phase 2, 2016: design and installatippof sewers in the, Pleasant Bay watershed, which is 
the largest watershed in the Town ,I,;rith the . highest percentage of septic system nitrogen 
removal required. This allows the Town '1-6 'Work with Chiitham, utilize a regional 
approach to wastewater treatment 	recharge, and to praide further protection to 
some of the Harwich drinking water suppliwe' ils. Phase 2 also provides sewer service to 
the East Harwich Village CO Iiiimercial District (discussions and planning have been 
ongoing about rezoning this, 	as a `sniiirt growth' district, the 'East Harwich Village 
Center'). The:i,ecorninendcdPian for thc'CPld Brook natural attenuation would also be 
implemented in 'this. phage: The Cpminission notes that the Round Cove watershed area 
identified.for seweringis located at the inapt upgradient portion of the watershed beyond 
theito-year time of travel. Therefore, the water quality benefits to Round Cove would not 
be manifested prior to 16 :':,years. The Commission recommends that the Town might 
.,consider, through the AMP,expedited sewer construction in areas where attendant, 
beneficial changes tb;.water quality can be quickly expected. The Commission used its 
Watershed/MVP tool to evaluate the downgradient area for sewering to meet the TMDL 
criteria. The CWMP.; through the AMP, might prioritize sewer in the downgradient 
portion of the watershed to provide earlier than currently anticipated water quality 
benefits to R691.14. Cove. 

15 



• Phase 3, 2021: focuses on the Pleasant Bay watershed and installing additional sewers in 
the area north of the Harwich Village Commercial District. A portion of the collection 
system area on the west side of the Pleasant Bay Watershed will be delayed until Phase 8 
to allow for water quality monitoring and evaluation of the impacts from sewering and 
the Muddy Creek bridge project. This phase may also include the implementation of the 
potential Seymour Pond restoration project. The design and construction of the delayed 
Chatham Facility expansion will also be completed in this phase. 

• Phase 4, 2026 and 2029: will be done as two programs. Overall the phase will collect 
wastewater in the Northeast part of the Herring River watershed. The collected 
wastewater will be pumped to the new treatment plant to be constructed at Site HR-12 
(landfill site) where the treated effluent would be recharged. The SBR treatment plant 
would initially be constructed for capacity of about 0.45 mgd which would treat collected 
flows from Phases 4, 5 and 6. Phase 4A will include the construction of the HR-12 
treatment plant and 4B will include the construction of the sewers in the Herring River 
Watershed. 

• Phase 5, 2033: will collect wastewater in the northwest part of the Herring River 
watershed and near site HR-12. The collected wastewater will be pumped to the 
treatment plant at Site HR-12 where the treated effluent would be recharged. 

• Phase 6, 2038: will collect wastewater in the southeast part of the Herring River 
watershed. This phase will also install some of the planned sewers in the Allen and 
Wychmere Harbor watersheds in order to begin meeting TMDLs in those areas. 

16 



Collected wastewater will be pumped to the HR-12 site for treatment and recharge. This 
phase may also include implementation of the potential Bucks and John Joseph Pond 
restoration projects. 

• Phase 7, 2043: focuses on expanding the HR-12 treatment plant and installing the 
remaining required sewers in the Herring River watershed to meet TMDL. The 
treatment plant at Site HR-12 will be expanded to the full 0.9 mgd capacity in this phase. 

• Phase 8, 2048: will install sewers in the Saquatucket watershed and the remaining areas 
of the Pleasant Bay watershed required to meet those TMDLs. Areas to be sewered near 
the Great Sand Lakes and the Campground will also be included in this phase. Sewer 
service areas in Phases 5, 6, 7 and 8 can be adjusted as needed to meet local needs and 
based on feedback from water quality monitoring. 

WRF13. The AMP framework detailed in the SEIR contains the required fundamental aspects. 
The town shall provide for the Commission an AMP basedon the framework in the SEIR as a 
condition of this decision, and re-evaluate and update the AMP at intervals set.out in this 
decision and subsequently through the AMP procesS as determined by the Conunission in 
consultation with the Town. 

WRF14. The 40-year CWMP is estimated to cost $236 	dollars. The CWMP evaluates 
several cost recovery models for just the first 3 Phases Whieli is estimated to cost $47.8 million 
dollars. The first Phase is planned to service 1,205 parcels Merle East Harwich Pleasant Bay 
area. Based on a policy adopted by the Beard' of'Selectmen, the average cost to every Harwich 
homeowner is estimated to be $254. The reconiniericle0 cost polieywill source funds from a 
combination of the Town's Water Infrastructure Investment fund,tax rate and user fees, in no 
set initial percentages such that the, percentages could be adjusted through adaptive 
management and as later phases of the CWMP:are proposed to`be implemented. The CWMP 
includes other models IA ere the cost would be somewhat lessened, though the town 
recommended cost policy and recovery plan factors equity into the analysis. The Commission 
will work with the Towirto further evaluate other co$ models and grants. 

• 
Natural Regiiiiive FindifIgs 

;4; &•, 01 . 	, 

NR_Fi. The Harwich CWMP is a p'liased plan for addressing water quality within the Town, 
meetingnitrogen TMDLS'and addressing wastewater management needs within the Town, 
While the CWMP is designed:to accommodate changing conditions through adaptive 
managethent; the CWMP identifies specific infrastructure projects which, if constructed, will 
have impacts' on natural and Coastal resources protected under the Commission Act. Project 
elements which may have impacts include the installation of sewer mains and pumping stations 
in several phases, construction of a wastewater treatment plant, construction of disposal beds, 
and implementation - of- natural attenuation projects. 

NRF2. Significant wetland impacts associated with construction are not anticipated since the 
installation of sewer mains and pumping stations will be located within existing road rights of 
way. According to the SEIR, the impacts that may result from these installations will occur 
within previously disturbed areas, and construction-related considerations to protect wetlands 
may be addressed during local permitting. The natural attenuation projects, by their nature, are 
located within natural wetland systems. The Muddy Creek restoration has been completed, with 
the grading and seeding of the construction footprint within wetland and buffer resource areas 
complete as well. Monitoring should provide evidence on the extent of water quality and habitat 
improvements resulting from the restoration. Alterations to the Cold Brook to improve natural 

17 



attenuation should be designed to balance this nitrogen management goal with other natural 
resource goals, such as habitat restoration, and to ensure that the ultimate benefits to the 
natural environment outweigh the impacts that may result from work within the retired 
cranberry bog/wetland system. 

The pond restoration projects are discussed in a preliminary fashion in the SEIR and appear to 
involve chemical treatments to the ponds' waters rather than physical alterations such as 
dredging. 

NRF3. Significant impacts to wildlife and plant habitat associated with ..construction of the sewer 
mains are not anticipated since these installations will be located v.vithin'existing road rights of 
way. Additional habitat evaluations may be warranted in the undisturbed wooded portion of site 
HR-12 to ensure that there are no vernal pools present. PortionS: 9-fiHR-12 are mapped rare 
species habitat, and to the extent these areas may be consider4fordfOposal fields, the Town 
should coordinate project planning, design and implementation with NHESP. This site is not 
mapped as BioMap2 Core Habitat. As noted, the Muddy cieek project haS:been completed. 
Alterations to the Cold Brook bog system should aiintObalance the Town's goo..: of improved 
natural attenuation with the potential impacts to existing wildlife and plant habitat resources, 
and the benefits that may accrue from habitat restoration at this., Sit.e. 

.Ju 
NRF4. There are not significant impacts to coastal resodrces anticipated from the planned 
projects. Impacts within coastal resource areas will occurwithin road rights of way, minimizing 
new impacts. The Town should ensure !hat,Punaping stationSlocated within land subject to 
coastal storm flowage are designed to withstandthe,impacts of, flooding and sea level 'rise. 

I 

Heritage Preservation/Community ClItaraeter-, Findings 
HPCCF1. The Harwich CWMP proposes seWering within several historic neighborhoods and 
along historic roadways., The SE1Ridentifies the location of historic properties that have been 
inventoried or designkted within hiSioric districts in Figure 14-12 of the SEIR. In addition to 
these identified prep6.'ties, Harwich Alas numerous historic buildings that have not yet been 
inventoried. Because the,proposed 'sewer work will occur primarily within road layouts, it is not 
expected to impact histdric propertieS 'directly.. There is potential for increased development 
pressure 9n some h  istoric properties where sewer installation could encourage greater 
development. The Town of Harwich has only one historic district covering a portion of Harwich 
Centq,',  and should consider creating additional districts or implementing other measures to 
proteCt historic resources'  that. may bejhreatened by greater development pressure. 

HFCCF2. The SEIR defines the process where Massachusetts Historical Commission (MHC) will 
review each phase of develOnient as it is designed so that impacts to historic/archaeological 
resources can be- Consideredat a more detailed level. This phased review will allow additional 
historic inventory-work completed in the interim period to be considered, and would address 
RPP standards for prote6tion of historic and archaeological resources. Siting above-ground 
structures related to the project, such as pumping stations, in historic areas should be 
avoided. If siting in historic or cultural landscapes is necessary, then the appropriate design, 
materials and landscaping should be chosen to minimize impacts on heritage resources. 

HPCCF2. Any permanent exterior fixtures proposed related to the CWMP shall be consistent 
with MPS HPCC2.11 and Technical Bulletin 95-001 (as amended), i.e. full cut-off at go degrees 
from vertical. 

Transportation Findings 

18 



TF1. The CWMP proposes approximately 92 miles of new sewer mains to be installed within 
existing roadways. The CWMP is not anticipated to generate additional traffic other than trips 
relating to construction activities, and will not permanently impact public rights-of-way. The 
CWMP recognizes the Commission's recommendations regarding the coordination of sewer 
installation work, that is, that potential impacts on the transportation network related to 
construction or expansion of any treatment facilities be considered by the Town at the 
appropriate stage in the design process. The Commission also recommends that the Town 
coordinate sewer construction activities with planned roadway improvement projects to 
minimize traffic disruptions and reduce overall costs. The CWMP states that potential traffic 
impacts and mitigation methods will be looked at in greater detail during the design of the 
individual CWMP components, including coordinating other neededroadway improvements 
with the sewer project where such coordination is logical and cost-reffective for the Town. 

TF2. MPS TR1.1 (No Degradation of Public Safety) states that, 'i.egardless of project traffic 
generation, DRis shall not degrade safety for pedestrians,, bicyclists, or motor vehicle 
operators or passengers." MPS TR1.8 (Sight Distance Requirements) further requires that 
"acceptable sight distances shall be met and maintained at all access and/Or.  egress locations 
for DRIB regardless of project traffic generation.7As'the CWMP is implemented, the Town 
shall maintain safe sight lines and distances for access points onthyoadways relateclito the 
CWMP by appropriately maintaining vegetation and/nr installing signage as part of 
construction traffic management planning. 

ChUSION 

Based on the Findings and determinations above, the. CpmmissiPii,bereby approves the DRI 
application of the Town of Harwich for its (1 _ 	P s l lject to 	f011owing conditions: 

Conditions 
Pursuant to Section 3.3(b) of the. commission Act, this DRI decision shall be valid and 

effective, upon its recOrding by the Commission at.the Barnstable Registry of Deeds, and local 
permits, licenses and approvals maybe issued in accordance with this Decision for a period 
allowing for full implemeritation'.4 the CWMP; subject to other conditions and requirements of 
this decision. The'ComniliOn:dli all record this Decision at the Barnstable Registry of Deeds 
after its ap peal period 'has el aPsed, or if an appeal is taken, after it is dismissed, settled or 
decided in favor of the•E'..toinmis§ion :and the Town. 

C2. Failin'e, to comply or rem ain in compliance with Commission regulations and this Decision, 
including `all conditions stated herein, shall be deemed cause to revoke or require modification 
to this DeciSio after notice tothe Town and opportunity to be heard. P.. 

C3. The Town shall 'OW -0 b necessary federal, state, and local permits, licenses and approvals 
for the CWMP. Obtaining all required local permits, licenses and approvals for the CWMP and 
components thereof shall confirm the CWMP's consistency with municipal development by-laws 
in effect, as the CWMP is implemented. The Town shall provide the Commission copies of such 
permits, licenses and approvals when received. 

C4. Except as may be modified pursuant to the terms and conditions herein, the CWMP shall be 
constructed and implemented in accordance with the findings and conditions in this Decision, 
the Final Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan/Single Environmental Impact Report, 
dated March 29, 2016, prepared by CDM Smith, and the Secretary's Certificate of Adequacy on 
the SEIR. 

19 



C5. Prior to and as a condition to proceeding with the commencement of phases 2 through 8 of 
the CWMP, the town shall request and obtain a Certificate of Compliance (COC) from the 
Commission for each phase, which Certificate will, as and when issued, authorize 
commencement of such phase and evidence the phase's compliance with this Decision. At its 
discretion, the Commission may issue Certificates for portions, constituent projects or 
subphases of the particular phases of the CWMP. As part of the Town's request for a COC, the 
Town shall submit the plans and information supporting and associated with the work to which 
the request relates, including but not limited to site and layout, stormwater, O&M, architectural, 
construction traffic management, landscape/ revegetation, lighting etosion control and 
construction detail/ specification plans, for review and approval byCOmnussion staff to 
determine their consistency with the Decision, the RPP and other:PPlicable Commission 
regulations or technical bulletins. The Commission may undertkkiAite visits after reasonable 
notice to and coordination with the Town as part of its revi* 

C5A. Commission staff's review associated wit,11,0'issuance of Ceraficates of 
Compliance will consider potential impacts,a000Ciated with CWMP114lementation on 
resources protected under the Commissio4:A4.1: and the Regional Policy Plan. 
Consideration of potential resource area iUta.cts includebA are not limite4..Sto the • •: 
following: 

• The Town shall utilize existing,cliSturbed areas wilbifi.road rights-of-way and utility 
easements to the greatest extent ;feaSiblefor the sewer 	installation. As the Town 
moves forward with more detaild:O:plaUST00 . permittifii.  for sewer construction, the 
Town shall minimize fragmentation gerieiiii..144t and wildlife habitat at locations 
disturbed due to development of neWiufratlilsitiv0. ', )tylle.i'6 construction associated with 
the CWMP is prop00ed ,.•Witbin mapped ..rare•,0pecies habitat, the Town shall submit the 
proposal to theNattii.al Heritage and EiOahgered Species Program (NHESP), with a 
copy to the COMiliission, and:,Provide the Commission return correspondence received 
from NHESP'..;If the NHESPdetermines that the project will result in a take of state listed 
species and requn cc preparatioy,pf a conkr!Otion and Management permit, the Town 
shall submit the prOject:•,pliiii0 ',..iii&prilib090 .•initigation plan to NHESP, with a copy to 
the .((Aii[ii0Sion. 

terations to (4, Cold Wool( retired cranberry bog/wetland system should be designed 
o balance nitrokefilnaUEigeii;?.ent goals with other natural resource goals, such as habitat 
estoration, including meastires:to minimize or avoid adverse impacts to natural 

resources interests associated with Cold Brook . 
• The !l'Own shall subniit:to the Commission for review and approval plans for any 

propOsea.above-groUr4 structures associated with sewer construction, such as lift 
stations. These plafi0 shall also be accompanied by a map of any identified historic 
resources or resource areas, as applicable. Any above ground structures shall be designed 
consistent with Cbinmission design standards in the RPP and architectural design 
technical bulletin, and acknowledge design features in the surrounding neighborhood. 

• The Town shall retain existing vegetation and provide vegetated buffers to limit visual 
impacts from new above-ground structures, including but not limited to lift stations, as 
appropriate to the area in which construction is proposed. 

• The SEIR defines the process where Massachusetts Historical Commission (MHC) will 
review each phase of development as it is designed so that impacts to 
historic/archaeological resources can be considered at a more detailed level. If deemed 
necessary by MHC, the Town shall conduct an archaeological survey during the 
preliminary design phase of the CWMP phase where ground disturbance is proposed, 

20 



with a permit from the office of the State Archaeologist/Massachusetts Historical 
Commission (MHC), at any sites where MHC staff identifies archaeological sensitivity. If 
any archaeological sites are identified during survey work, the Applicant shall meet with 
MHC staff and Commission staff to demonstrate how the proposed development has 
been configured to maintain and/or enhance such resources. In addition, any 
archaeological sites determined eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic 
Places shall be preserved and protected from disturbance through a conservation 
restriction or similar means to be approved by Commission staff and MHC staff. 

C6. If the Town is required to file an NPC under MEPA for the CVVMP,,it shall submit a copy of 
the filing to the Commission for review and comment. Upon review ,the` Commission may 
require the Town to seek a modification of this Decision in accordanee with the Modification 
section of the Commission's DRI Enabling Regulations in effect;at the time the modification is 
sought. Whether or not the Commission determines that a D13:I modifiCation is necessary, NPCs 
shall be incorporated into the CWMP's AMP. The CommisiOn may also; requirethat the Town 
seek a modification to this Decision for significant changes to the proposed Scope, nature, 
purpose or implementation of the CWMP not otherWise anticipated or accommodated under the 
AMP, and not contemplated in the CWMP. 

C7. The Town shall implement and undertake the CWMP in a .erdance with an AMP process, 
for which a preliminary scope is outlined in the SEIR, and consistent with the Section 208 
Update as more specifically set out in Finding GF9 hereinr  

CAA. A preliminary scope of the AMP (Exhibit A)  is atiliclied to and incorporated into 
this Decision by reference. A draft AMP shall4ioprovided for Commission staff review 
and approval prior to ;the commeneOrient ofTiluise,2 the'CWMP. Thereafter, the AMP 
shall be reviewed and updated as neeesary:When the TOwn seeks Certificates of 
Compliance from the Cominission for subsequent phases of the CWMP. The Town shall 
provide the CoMinission animal written reports on the status, progress, funding and 
implementatiOn of the CVVIVIP,Under the AMP process, and in addition, at the 
Commission's request and alfter coordinatiOn with the Town, the Town may meet with 
the Commission's Cm:unit-tee on Planning and Regulation in a public meeting to provide 
updaterS , on the cwmp liriider the AMP iiroCess, including reports on status, progress 
funding and implemetiiiition. 

,: c713. The validity nfliis Dedision, and rights granted hereunder, is conditioned on the 
T(iwn maintaining 208. Plan Update certification for the CWMP. The Town is also 
required to maintain', continued 208 Plan Update certification for the CWMP for State 
Revolving Fund (SRO eligibility the Town shall obtain 208 Plan Update re-certification 
for the 'CWMP prior . to and as a condition to implementing Phase 4. Thereafter, the 
Commission Shall:determine periods to obtain 208 Plan Update re-certification, as a 
condition to proceeding with subsequent phases of the CWMP. 

C7C. As the CWMP is implemented and progresses, the Commission will coordinate 
with the Town a process to align the Certificate of Compliance, AMP update and 208 
Plan Update certification processes referenced herein. 

21 



, 2016 Barnstable, ss 

Signature 

Print Name and Title 

COMMONWEALTH MASSACMISETTS 

HARWICH CWMP DRI DECISION 

Executed this 	day of 

Before me, the undersigned notary pub le 	pally appeid§: 	 

in his/her capacity as 	'Of the Cape Cod Commission, 
whose name is signed on the preceding doCnnlent„ 	such person 'acknowledged to me that . 
he/she signed such documont*Oluntarily for.its stated purpose.'...The identity of such person was 
proved to me through §ati4.tctorY 'Oldence ofidentification, which was [ photographic 
identification with signature issued*, a federal :Ostate governmental agency, [ oath or 
affirmation of a crechhlq witness, or .  personal 	wledge of the undersigned. 

2016 

 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

22 



Exhibit A- Harwich CWMP DRI Decision 
	2016 

Adaptive Management Plan Scope- Proposed Components 

The SEIR summarizes the following as the principal components of the AMP to be developed 
under the framework in the SEIR: 

1. Technical Review Committee: A technical review committee (TRC) will be established to 
review the progress of the CWMP Recommended Program. This task could be performed by the 
existing Wastewater Implementation Committee. The TRC shall include CCC and DEP staff. 
2. Water Quality Monitoring: Now that the MEP water quality mon4Oing program is complete, 
the Town plans to continue monitoring water quality at the sentineland check stations. 
3. Habitat Monitoring: The Town anticipates that MassDEP will continue eelgrass mapping, to 
assess the results of the Recommended Program's implementation. ' 
4. Wastewater Treatment Plant/Groundwater Discharge. gpiSrting: ThO7owns of 
Harwich and Chatham will be required through their, groOdwater discharge permits from 
MassDEP to develop regular compliance reports, which shall be shared concurrently with the 
Commission. 

lE 

5. CWMP Implementation and Funding Status: The,, TRC will hOiii:ovided an annha, 
implementation progress report following each calendar year. 
6. Community Growth Status: Each year, a written update viii be prepared and submitted to the 
TRC describing community growth bothin the community at-large and within the sewered 
areas. 
7. CWMP Recommended Program Modificption:'pased 

0 

 n thg information provided, the TRC 
may recommend updates or modifications to die CWMP Reconniidnded Program. 

The AMP shall also address 'e Matters discos cd Vindinki 9 of the Decision related to 
Section 208 Plan Update'cOnsistcnO., 

AO' 

23 



The Commonwealth of fMassachusetts 
TIcecutive Office of Energy and EnvironmentafAffairs 

100 Cambridge Street, Suite 900 
Boston, WO 02114 

 

Charles D. Baker 
GOVERNOR 

Karyn E. Polito 
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR 

Matthew A. Beaton 
SECRETARY 

 

Tel: (617) 626-1000 
Fax: (617) 626-1081 

http://www.mass.govieca  

May 13, 2016 

CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARY OF ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS 
ON THE 

SINGLE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 

PROJECT NAME 
PROJECT MUNICIPALITY 
PROJECT WATERSHED 
EEA NUMBER 
PROJECT PROPONENT 
DATE NOTICED IN MONITOR 

: Harwich Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan 
: Harwich 
: Cape Cod 
: 15022 
: Town of Harwich 
: April 6, 2016 

Pursuant to the Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA) (M.G. L. c. 30, ss. 61-621) and 
Section 11.08 of the MEPA regulations (301 CMR 11.00), I have reviewed the Single Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR) and hereby determine that it adequately and properly complies with MEPA and 
its implementing regulations. 

The CWMP was filed concurrently with the Cape Cod Commission (CCC) for joint review 
pursuant to the November 1991 Memorandum of Understanding regarding joint MEPA/CCC review for 
Developments of Regional Impact (DRI). 

Project Description 

As described in the Single EIR, the Town of Harwich is pursuing a long term, multi-phased 
wastewater management program with regional and centralized treatment to reduce nutrient loading to 
coastal waters and meet total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) for estuaries and embayments along 
Nantucket Sound and Pleasant Bay. The Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP) 
proposes a town-wide wastewater collection and treatment system, continued use of on-site septic 
systems and non-structural alternatives including stormwater management, restoration projects, fertilizer 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

education, and review of town-wide land use regulations. Consistent with goals of the 208 Plan, the 
CWMP proposes to increase inter-municipal cooperation with Chatham, Dennis and Brewster. 

The CWMP has been developed through the Town's Water Quality Management Task Force 
(WQMTF) Wastewater Management Subcommittee (WMS) and in consultation with the University of 
Massachusetts (UMass) - Dartmouth School of Marine Science and Technology and the Massachusetts 
Estuaries Project (MEP). The Town initiated developing a Comprehensive Wastewater Management 
Plan (CWMP) process in 2007. Planning was organized around several town-wide goals: 

• Achieve levels of wastewater nitrogen removal required to restore local aquatic ecosystems, 
according to the goals established through the MEP; 

• Reduce nitrogen inputs to the Town's drinking water supplies; 
• Achieve phosphorus removal where needed to restore or stabilize ecological health of freshwater 

ponds; 
• Provide alternative wastewater management strategies to areas of town where achievement of 

Title 5 standards has been difficult; and, 
• Provide infrastructure to support growth forecasted in the Town's Local Comprehensive Plan. 

The CWMP proposes targeted sewering, using a hybrid system of gravity and low pressure 
sewers. It will include approximately 92 miles of sewer pipes, 34 pumping stations and two centralized 
treatment facilities. Sewer mains will be installed in existing paved roads. The Plan includes the 
treatment of a portion of the town's wastewater flow from the Pleasant Bay watershed to Chatham's 
WWTF which discharges to infiltration beds at a gravel pit. A new WWTF (HR-12) is proposed to treat 
wastewater flows from the remaining watersheds (Aliens Harbor, Wychmere Harbor, Saquatucket 
Harbor and the Herring River). It will be located at the Harwich Department of Highways and 
Maintenance property (a former landfill) in the Herring River watershed and consist of a sequencing 
batch reactor (SBR) and infiltration beds. 

Conventional on-site sewage treatment and disposal will continue in areas that are not proposed 
for sewering. The CWMP includes non-structural alternatives including two restoration projects to 
increase natural attenuation of nitrogen. The Muddy Creek inlet widening project is underway in the 
Pleasant Bay watershed and a project is proposed in the Cold Brook area in the Saquatucket Harbor 
watershed. The CWMP identifies a permeable reactive barrier (PRB) pilot program. 

In addition, the CWMP incorporates a number of non-structural elements designed to reduce 
nutrient loading including: growth management regulations; public outreach and education programs for 
controlling the use of fertilizer products on lawns, gardens and agricultural areas; low impact 
landscaping; stormwater management; enhancement of embayment flushing rates; and water 
conservation. 

The CWMP will be implemented in eight phases over a 40-year period. Implementation will be 
guided through an Adaptive Management Strategy to assess and target attainment of water quality goals 
and standards. Adaptive management acknowledges the uncertainties in design and implementation of 
projects, carefully monitors outcomes, assesses progress in a transparent fashion and requires 
recalibration of plans and projects as necessary. The Town will revisit the Recommended Plan and 
modify the phasing, timing, or the specific areas to be sewered based on the results of the earlier 

2 



EEA4 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

implementation and results of monitoring. Each phase will be reassessed prior to design and 
construction. The phases are summarized below. 

• Phase 1(started in 2013): Widening of the Muddy Creek Bridge to 24-feet to increase flushing, 
improve water quality and restore habitat and evaluation of alternatives to improve the natural 
attenuation in the Cold Brook former cranberry bog network off Bank Street. 

• Phase 2 (2016): Design and installation of sewers in the Pleasant Bay watershed, which is the 
largest watershed in the Town with the highest percentage of septic system nitrogen removal 
required. Wastewater will be discharged to Chatham's WWTF. Sewer service will be provided to 
the East Harwich Village Commercial District to reduce impacts to drinking water wells. This 
phase includes implementation of the Cold Brook project. 

• Phase 3 (2021): Additional sewers will be installed in the area north of the Harwich Village 
Commercial District. This phase may include improvements to Seymour Pond. 

• Phase 4 (2026 and 2029): Phase 4A will include the construction of the Harwich WWTF and 4B 
will include the construction of the sewers in the northeast area of the Herring River Watershed. 
The WWTF will be constructed to treat and discharge approximately 40-45 mgd which would 
provide sufficient capacity to treat flows from Phases 4, 5 and 6. The design includes the ability 
to increase capacity (Phase 7). 

• Phase 5 (2033): Design and installation of sewers in the Northwest part of the Herring River 
watershed near the WWTF which will discharge to the Harwich WWTF. 

• Phase 6 (2038): Design and installation of sewers in the southeast area of the Herring River 
watershed. This phase will include design and installation of sewers in the Allen and Wychmere 
Harbor watersheds. Wastewater will discharge to the Harwich WWTF. This phase may also 
include implementation of the Bucks and John Joseph Pond restoration projects. 

• Phase 7 (2043): Expansion of the WWTF design and installation of sewers in the remaining 
areas of the Herring River. The WWTF will be expanded to treat up to 0.9 mgd. 

• Phase 8 (2048): Design and installation of sewers in the Saquatucket watershed and the 
remaining areas of the Pleasant Bay watershed. Areas to be sewered near the Great Sand Lakes 
and the Campground will also be included in this phase. Sewer service areas in Phases 5, 6, 7 
and 8 can be adjusted as needed to meet local needs and in response to water quality monitoring 
data. 

The total cost to implement the CWMP is estimated at $230 million dollars; the first three phases 
are estimated to cost $47.8 million dollars. 

3 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Project Area 

The planning area for the CWMP encompasses the entire Town of Harwich, which is 
approximately 21 square miles. The Town of Harwich has approximately 11 miles of tidal shoreline, 
four harbors, 22 freshwater ponds, two reservoirs and two scenic river corridors (Herring River and 
Muddy Creek). 

The Town of Harwich does not own or operate any large scale wastewater treatment facilities. 
Residents and businesses rely on on-site wastewater management systems regulated by the 
Massachusetts State Environmental Code, or Title 5. Traditional Title 5 systems provide an adequate 
level of treatment for pathogens originating from wastewater, however, minimal nutrient (nitrogen) 
removal is achieved. As the Town's population has increased and has transitioned to a year-round 
community for many of its residents, continued reliance on Title 5 systems has become problematic and 
affects the ability to grow and growth patterns. 

MEPA Jurisdiction and Permitting 

The project is undergoing review and requires the preparation of a Mandatory EIR pursuant to 
Section 11.03(5)(a)(3) of the MEPA regulations because it requires State Agency Action and it will 
involve the construction of one or more new sewer mains of ten or miles in length. The project is also 
undergoing MEPA review pursuant to Sections 11.03(5)(6)(1), 11.03(11)(b) and 11.03(3)(b)(1)(f) 
because it will involve the construction of a new wastewater treatment facility with a capacity of more 
than 100,000 gallons per day, is located in an Area of Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC) and will 
alter 1/2  or more acres of other wetlands. 

The project will require a Sewer Connection/Extension Permit and a Groundwater Discharge 
Permit from the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) and a Vehicular 
Access Permit from the Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT). The project also 
requires review under the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act (MESA) by the Natural Heritage 
Endangered Species Program (NHESP). The project is also subject to the MEPA Greenhouse Gas 
(GHG) Emissions Policy and Protocol. 

The project will require an Order of Conditions from the Harwich Conservation Commission 
(and on appeal only, a Superseding Order of Conditions from the MassDEP). 

The project requires a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Construction 
General Permit from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The project may also require Federal 
Consistency Review by the Massachusetts Coastal Zone Management Office and a Section 404 Permit 
from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

The Town anticipates applying for State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans for subsequent planning 
and construction of each phase of the proposed project. Because the Town is seeking State Financial 
Assistance, MEPA jurisdiction is broad and extends to all aspects of the project that may cause Damage 
to the Environment, as defined in the MEPA regulations. 

4 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Review of the Single EIR 

Degradation of Cape Cod's water resources stemming from excessive nutrient contamination is 
not only one of the most significant environmental challenges facing the Cape, but also presents serious 
potential economic impacts, including a decline in fishing, shellfishing, tourism and property values. 
Increased population and development in areas surrounding Cape Cod's estuaries have resulted in 
excessive amounts of nutrients being discharged into these sensitive resources, causing serious impacts 
to water quality. The Town, MassDEP and CCC identify the importance of regional wastewater 
planning to tackle these issues. They note the ongoing effort, through the Section 208 Plan Update, to 
evaluate the cost and effectiveness of regional wastewater management efforts and to build capacity and 
support for inter-municipal cooperation. This effort has the potential to improve water quality on Cape 
Cod more efficiently, with lower costs and less physical infrastructure, than the typical CWMP process 
implemented by an individual municipality. I recognize and commend the inter-municipal approach and 
cooperative agreement between the Towns of Harwich and Chatham to advance wastewater 
management efforts in both communities. 

The development and review of the both the Expanded Environmental Notification Form 
(EENF) and the Single EIR have provided a comprehensive evaluation of wastewater and nitrogen 
management planning evaluations, evaluations of traditional and non-traditional wastewater 
management technologies, a summary of environmental impacts associated with the Town's 
recommended CWMP, and discussion of the Town's CWMP planning process completed to date. The 
Single EIR includes a discussion of the Town's public participation program and its consistency with 
SRF requirements. 

The Single EIR was responsive to the comments raised during the review of the EENF. 
Comments on the Single EIR from the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection 
MassDEP and CCC express strong support for the Town's planning efforts, recommend that the Single 
EIR be found adequate and identify subsequent review permitting processes that will guide 
implementation. MassDEP and the CCC concur that the CWMP has been developed consistent with 
current water quality regulations and the 208 Plan Update. CCC will make a formal determination 
regarding the consistency with the 208 Plan in conjunction with its DRI review. Over the course of the 
40-year implementation, progress will be monitored and the Plan should be updated accordingly. Over 
time, projects will change in response to monitoring, funding, regional alternatives and changes to 
regulatory standards. The Town will continue to analyze the cost and effectiveness of alternatives, 
develop targeted analysis of alternatives for each watershed, and evaluate regional solutions to meet 
short-term and long-term water quality goals and standards. The Town of Harwich is encouraged to 
work with MassDEP's State Revolving Fund (SRF) section to develop funding alternatives as the 
project development proceeds. 

Comments from the Division of Marine Fisheries (DMF) highlight the importance of protecting 
and improving aquatic health of coastal salt ponds which are critical nursery areas for many marine 
species including winter flounder, anadromous fish, horseshoe crabs, and shellfish. Both winter flounder 
and blue crab are sensitive to eutrophication. There are several areas in Harwich where shellfishing is 
prohibited due to bacterial contamination, including Bass River, Allen's Harbor, Saquatucket Harbor, 
Wychmere Harbor, and Muddy Creek. DMF supports the Town's efforts to reduce nitrogen loading in 
coastal salt ponds. 

5 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Needs Areas and Growth 

The Town conducted a wastewater needs assessment and prioritized each area of Harwich. The 
Single EIR describes a significant number of parcels in the Town of Harwich that are currently 
undeveloped but could be developed under build-out conditions if a sewer system is installed. The 
Single EIR describes how build-out conditions are consistent with the MEP in-watershed nitrogen 
thresholds and, if not, what methods of growth limitation the Town will employ. 

MEP has developed three technical reports that establish the in-stream total nitrogen thresholds 
necessary to restore estuarine water bodies in Harwich including the Herring River, Allen Harbor, 
Wychmere Harbor, Saquatucket Harbor, and Muddy Creek. The Single EIR describes how the CWMP 
and total nitrogen loads are consistent with the total nitrogen thresholds in these reports. 

The MEP reports existing and projected nitrogen loads based on build-out conditions. The 
analysis is based on maximum nitrogen loading that can be generated in that watershed under current or 
proposed zoning, rather than on a timeline. The CWMP proposes sufficient nitrogen removal at build-
out to meet the proposed TMDL for each embayment. Because each watershed requires nitrogen 
removal under present conditions, any nitrogen associated with future growth must be removed. The 
following summarizes the MEP reports for each estuary. 

• Allen Harbor estuary is a moderate-to-significantly impaired system beyond its natural capacity 
to process additional nutrients without further degrading ecological health. While eelgrass is 
typically an indicator species of overall health, there is no evidence that the basin has ever 
supported it in this man-made harbor. Total septic system nitrogen loading to Allen Harbor must 
be reduced by 78 percent in order to restore ecological conditions in the harbor and meet the 
MEP established threshold of 0.50 mg/1 total nitrogen to support healthy infaunal habitat. 

• Wychmere Harbor is a moderate-to-significantly impaired system beyond its natural capacity to 
process additional nutrients without further degrading ecological health. While eelgrass is 
typically used as an indicator species of overall health, there is no evidence it ever existed 
historically in Wychmere Harbor since this is a man-made harbor. Total septic system nitrogen 
loading to Wychmere Harbor must be reduced by 100 percent in order to restore ecological 
conditions in the harbor and meet the MEP established threshold of 0.50 mg/1 total nitrogen to 
support healthy infaunal habitat. 

• Saquatucket Harbor estuary is a moderate-to-significantly impaired system beyond its natural 
capacity to process additional nutrients without further degrading ecological health. While 
eelgrass is typically an indicator species of overall health, there is no evidence that the basin has 
ever supported it in this man-made harbor. The Saquatucket system was modeled with the 
understanding that the Cold Brook would be modified to increase natural nitrogen attenuation 
(reduction) through possible flora and physical restructuring of this system to maximize the 
residence time of groundwater in the system. With the enhanced attenuation, total septic system 
nitrogen loading to the Saquatucket Harbor must be reduced by 58 percent to restore ecological 
conditions in the harbor and meet the MEP established threshold of 0.50 mg/1 total nitrogen to 
support healthy infaunal habitat. Without the increase in natural nitrogen attenuation the total 
septic nitrogen reduction at buildout would be around 65 percent. 

6 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

• Pleasant Bay varies from healthy to degraded depending on particular locations. For the purposes 
of assessing water quality indicators, Upper Muddy Creek and Round Cove were classified as 
small enclosed basins and received similar results for key habitat indicators, while Lower Muddy 
Creek was categorized as a moderate sized tributary sub-embayment. The Pleasant Bay system 
modeling included benefits associated with the Muddy Creek project. Total septic system 
nitrogen loading to the Pleasant Bay subwatersheds in Harwich must be reduced by 65 percent in 
order to meet the MEP established threshold of 0.21 mg/1 (Lower Muddy Creek) for total 
nitrogen to support a healthy habitat. 

• The Herring River system is one of the largest tidal wetland systems on Cape Cod and functions 
more as two systems. North of Route 28 it is a wetland-dominated habitat of salt marsh and tidal 
channels which is considered to be a healthy ecosystem. South of Route 28 it has historic 
eelgrass habitat supporting benthic animal community's characteristic of more open water 
basins. This lower tidal reach is significantly impaired. The ecological difference between the 
two systems results in a greater sensitivity to nitrogen in the lower tidal river area. That greater 
sensitivity impacts the whole watershed. Total septic system nitrogen loading to the Herring 
River watershed must be reduced by 58 percent in order to restore ecological conditions in the 
estuary and meet the MEP established threshold of 0.48 mg/1 total nitrogen in the lower tidal 
basin to support healthy infaunal habitat and eelgrass. 

The CWMP provides collection and conveyance, treatment, and effluent recharge for about 1.26 
mgd of annual average day wastewater flow from the MEP Watersheds and other selected needs areas of 
Harwich. This is an approximate 25 percent increase over the current wastewater flow. 

Title 5 

Areas along the southern coast and south of Route 28 represent significant challenges for long-
term wastewater management. Dense development on small size lots and shallow depth-to-groundwater 
limit the ability to design and construct onsite system upgrades in compliance with Title 5 and local 
Board of Health regulations. One of these areas is located east of Allen Harbor along Nantucket Sound 
and is known locally as "the Campgrounds." It generally consists of small lots with a significant 
percentage of seasonal occupancy. The other area is located along Route 28 north of Allen Harbor and 
was flagged primarily due to high groundwater conditions and the presence of mounded septic systems. 
Both of these areas were incorporated into the CWMP. 

The Town of Harwich declined to adopt a nutrient management bylaw as authorized by the 
Cape-wide Fertilizer District of Critical Planning Concern in 2013. The Town should consider 
developing a detailed plan, including proposed actions and budgets for fertilizer management to support 
the credit taken for fertilizer reductions in the CWMP. In addition, 1 note comments from the 
Association for the Preservation of Cape Cod (APCC) which recommend the Town consider land use 
planning strategies to limit potential impacts associated with growth. 

7 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Regional Cooperation 

The Single EIR describes the discussions to date and consultation to develop an Inter-Municipal 
Agreement (IMA) for that purpose with the Town of Chatham. In addition, the two Towns are 
implementing the Muddy Creek inlet widening project. It is currently under construction with an 
expected completion date in summer 2016. 

Harwich has had preliminary discussions with the Town of Dennis who is in the process of 
developing its CWMP. The two towns share small portions on the Herring River watershed and Swan 
Pond watershed. However, both communities are considering constructing wastewater treatment plants 
at DPW sites which are less than 3 miles from one another. Thus, discussions about constructing a joint 
facility to gain an economy of scale cost savings are ongoing and Harwich will continue that discussion. 
1 note that the WWTF is proposed in a later phase of the CWMP such that significant time is available to 
consult with Dennis regarding a regional facility. 

Harwich and Brewster share portions of the Herring River watershed and Pleasant Bay 
watershed. Portions of Brewster contribute nitrogen into Harwich at the headwaters of the Herring River 
watershed. Further discussions between the two communities will need to occur to determine how 
Brewster might contribute to the Harwich solution for meeting that watershed TMDL in the future. 
Currently, the Harwich CWMP demonstrates it can meet the TMDL. At this time, each community will 
implement their own solution for removing their share on nitrogen contribution to Pleasant Bay. The two 
communities have worked together previously to address phosphorus loadings in Long Pond and further 
discussions in this regard may occur for other freshwater ponds in the upper Herring River watershed. 

The Town of Harwich should continue to work with neighboring towns to pursue shared 
infrastructure to reduce nitrogen in watersheds. The Town of Harwich should undertake an analysis of 
options to provide capacity for wastewater treatment and disposal by the Town of Dennis. In the event 
Dennis wastewater is not treated in Harwich the CCC has indicated that the Town of Harwich should 
conduct and present a fiscal analysis of potential additional costs associated with constructing 
infrastructure limited to town boundaries. I strongly encourage the Town of Harwich to consider the 
potential for adopting a Nutrient Trading Program with abutting towns to achieve TMDL compliance. 

Alternatives Analysis 

The Single EIR included a broad alternative analysis which included the No-Build Alternative, 
Regional Alternatives, and the Construct a Smaller or Larger Sewer Service Area Alternative. The No-
Build Alternative involves the continued use of onsite Title 5 septic systems and innovative and 
alternative (I/A) systems where needed to meet the wastewater needs of the community. The Single E1R 
indicates that on-site treatment technologies cannot reliably meet the stringent nitrogen reduction 
standards on thousands of individual lots that are possible with more centralized, municipally-run 
treatment systems. While some I/A systems exist which provide better nutrient reduction than a typical 
Title 5 system, they still fall short of the requirements since they do not remove the 50 to 100 percent of 
the septic nitrogen load that is required in the MEP reports for Harwich. The Town decided not to 
pursue the I/A scenario because the cost was the highest among all options considered. As such, 
continued use of on-site systems town-wide would not be cost effective to achieve the nitrogen levels 
required to restore the local embayments to the highest and best use water quality goals described in the 

8 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

MEP documents. The No-Build alternative will not maintain surface water quality. In addition, the 
slightly elevated levels of nitrogen found in the Town's drinking water supply suggest that nitrates in 
drinking water in Harwich could potentially become elevated over the long-term, particularly in areas 
where higher density development is desired. The No-Build alternative also presents land use 
limitations, specifically in the East Harwich Village Center, the Campground area, the Route 28 corridor 
including Harwich Port and other areas of desired growth throughout town. Without off-site wastewater 
management options, desired land uses are expected to be severely restricted by Title 5. 

The Town also explored the feasibility of a Regional Alternatives to address the wastewater 
needs identified in the Herring River and Pleasant Bay watersheds. The first is a regional treatment 
solution with the Town of Dennis for the western portion of the proposed sewer area that falls within the 
Town of Dennis limits. The recommended wastewater plan presented in the Single EIR assumes that the 
Town of Dennis will collect wastewater in the Dennis Port area and will recharge the treated effluent in 
a watershed outside of the Herring River. This assumption is only preliminary and further discussions 
with the Town of Dennis will be required as the Town moves forward with development of their 
CWMP. Harwich is also communicating with Dennis and Yarmouth about a potential regional treatment 
facility located at the Dennis DPW site. These discussions are also in the preliminary stages. 
The second is a Regional Alternative involves discussions with the Town of Chatham for areas within 
the Pleasant Bay watershed, which is shared among Brewster, Chatham, Harwich and Orleans. The 
recommended wastewater plan presented in the Single EIR assumes that the Town will collect 
wastewater from the Pleasant Bay watershed and will send it to Chatham for treatment to a total nitrogen 
concentration of 3 mg/l. The treated effluent will then be recharged in Chatham for the early phases of 
the project if timing and phasing of the projects permit. For the later phases of the project, the treated 
effluent may be required to be recharged back in the Pleasant Bay watershed to ensure that the TMDL 
limits are not exceeded. According to the Single EIR discussions with the Town of Chatham are in 
process. 

The Construct a Smaller or Larger Sewer Service Area Alternative involves analysis that the 
Town developed over the course of the CWMP process. The Town explored many alternatives to the 
two wastewater treatment plant program ultimately recommended. Smaller, decentralized service areas 
with smaller treatment facilities were explored where the Town looked at the scenario of having four 
different wastewater treatment plants and four different effluent recharge sites. An option with one 
centralized facility with an ocean outfall was also explored. In addition, hundreds of treatment and 
effluent recharge locations were considered under the highly decentralized on-site I/A scenario. The 
Town indicated that these decentralized approaches were cost prohibitive and, therefore, eliminated 
them. The Town also felt that the selected effluent recharge sites were ideal compared with the other 
sites. Other effluent recharge sites were more limited in terms of land use, land area redundancy and 
their potential to accept effluent flow. 

On the other end of the spectrum, the Construct a Smaller or Larger Sewer Service Area 
Alternative examined the possibility of sewering the entire town. Based on the analyses performed as 
part of the Single EIR, sewering areas beyond those necessary to protect the local embayments, to allow 
for additional growth in East Harwich Village Center, the Route 28 corridor including Harwich Port and 
to address limited Title 5 or pond water quality issues, is considered cost-prohibitive and would provide 
no apparent benefit at this time to the Town. Based on several years of analysis, the CWMP Preferred 

9 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Alternative provides sewers in the areas where they are needed and maintains septic system use in the 
areas where lower cost and lower technology strategies remain appropriate. 

Natural Attenuation 

The Allen, Saquatucket, Pleasant Bay and Herring River watershed systems all have some 
degree of natural attenuation associated with them. In the Allen Harbor watershed, the Allen Harbor 
stream is estimated to have approximately 30 percent nitrogen attenuation. In the Saquatucket Harbor 
watershed, attenuation occurs in several ponds and streams including the Cold Brook. Both the Pleasant 
Bay and Herring River systems have natural attenuation in several ponds. The existing natural 
attenuation factors are already accounted for in the MEP nitrogen models as existing conditions. 

The Scope for the Single EIR required additional analysis of projects to increase natural 
attenuation of nitrogen. The first project increases flushing through replacement of the Muddy Creek 
culverts located under Route 28. Modeling has shown that a 24-foot wide culvert will provide benefit to 
water quality in the Muddy Creek subwatershed. This may result in a reduction of the amount of 
conventional infrastructure that would ordinarily be needed to meet target thresholds within the 
subwatershed. In its comments, MassDEP has stated that it is working with the Town to develop an 
appropriate monitoring plan to assess the benefits of the project and, specifically, its contribution to 
nitrogen reduction. Monitoring will include upgradient and downgradient nitrogen loads. This project is 
almost completed and will be functional by June 2016. 

The second approach is proposed in the event that the project cannot meet the target thresholds. 
It consists of modifying or manipulating flow through the Bank Street cranberry bogs to increase 
nitrogen attenuation from 35% to a projected 50%. Modifications to Cold Brook and associated 
wetlands to maximize residence time of groundwater are proposed to achieve 15% of the total nitrogen 
attenuation required in the Saquatucket Harbor estuary. 

The Cold Brook project would be proposed as a demonstration project. It would require review 
and permitting under the Wetlands Protection Act (WPA) and the Wetlands Regulations (310 CMR 
10.00). The Town and MassDEP should discuss permitting requirements at the earliest opportunity. 
Should the project be permitted, the Town will need to develop a design and monitoring protocol with 
MassDEP so that the effectiveness of the modifications is adequately documented in order to secure 
credit for the anticipated additional nitrogen removal. The Single EIR provides a discussion of alternate 
mitigation strategies if the enhanced attenuation does not meet expectations. Because this proposal is 
conceptual in nature and the impacts cannot be adequately reviewed at this time, the Town should file an 
NPC with the MEPA Office if the project exceeds environmental review thresholds. 

The Town should consider MassDEP comments regarding the potential need for a Variance from 
the WPA and consideration of (e.g., natural succession, different restoration techniques and wetland 
creation) that would reduce wetlands alteration while meeting water quality restoration goals. There 
appear to be a number of upland areas that may allow for successful wetland creation in and around 
these abandoned cranberry bogs that should be investigated further. 

The CWMP summarizes water quality data and the health of freshwater ponds in Harwich for 
which data were available. An overabundance of phosphorus is the main concern in most freshwater 

10 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

systems, as phosphorus is typically the nutrient in limited supply. Therefore, an increase in phosphorus 
can result in significant plant and algae growth, which can degrade water quality. The Single EIR 
identifies three developed areas around John Joseph, Bucks and Sand Ponds, Hinckleys, Seymour and 
Long Pond, and Paddocks Pond as areas of potential concern which warrant additional study. Long Pond 
was recently effectively treated for phosphorous. The Single EIR states that Hinkleys Pond, Seymour 
Pond, Bucks Pond and John Joseph Pond may also be restored and may include phosphorous controls; 
however, no plans are proposed at this time. As projects are proposed, the Town should consult with the 
MEPA Office regarding the filing of a NPC. 

Permeable Reactive Barrier 

The Town wants to evaluate further treatment optimization at the WWTF by piloting a 
permeable reactive barrier (PRB) around one of the infiltration basins. In limited studies to date, PRBs 
have provided additional denitrification removing additional nitrogen from wastewater effluent. The 
PRB consists of a trench excavated deep enough into the groundwater and filled with a woodchip/ 
sawdust/compost/sand mixture to provide a carbon source for the denitrification process to occur. Once 
the applied effluent reaches the groundwater table, it flows through this barrier and reduces the nitrate 
levels from the 3 to 5 mg/1 level. This could increase capacity of the recharge site in a cost-effective 
manner by allowing more flow to be recharged while maintaining nitrogen levels. If successful, a PRB 
would become part of the overall future wastewater treatment process to reduce effluent nitrogen at the 
treatment facility. 

DMF has requested that the Town examine monitoring studies for any PRB study sites that 
include other contaminants from wastewater, not just nitrogen. For example, ecosystem quality will still 
be impaired if the barriers remove nitrogen but not endocrine disrupting compounds. 

Shellfish Program 

The Town of Harwich has an active shellfish laboratory and a nursery facility that has been 
operating since 1994. More than 31 million shellfish have been seeded in Harwich's waterways, 
including the Allen, Wychmere and Saquatucket Harbors, Pleasant Bay and Herring River. The Town is 
assessing the benefits of this program in terms of nitrogen reduction and evaluating significance to the 
overall wastewater plan. Regular sampling of each nitrogen-sensitive embayment through the adaptive 
management plan will help to determine if the amount of sewering can be scaled back as a result of 
these and other non-traditional nitrogen reduction strategies. 

Build-out Flows 

The Single EIR contains cross referenced water quantity information from cumulative pumping 
and actual parcel level metered water use. The average household water use is 186 gpd and commercial 
use is 768 gpd whereas the MEP residential flow is 166 gpd. The CWMP used the MEP build-out 
analysis and applied the appropriate water use to project the number of residential and commercial 
properties. The increase in wastewater flow ranges from 14 to 32% for the five major coastal watersheds 
with an average of a 26% increase for growth. The CWMP evaluated the effect of irrigation water use 
on wastewater projects and found that the long-term irrigation amount is 315,000 gallons per day (gpd) 
for July and August, making up 3 of the 10% average non-consumptive water use. The maximum month 

11 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

peaking factor for Harwich is 2.2 times the average flow of 1.72 mgd. The CWMP uses build-out water 
volumes for infrastructure design purposes. The CWMP's Adaptive Management Planning 
contemplates a process to document how the Town would comply with a flow-neutral condition for SRF 
zero percent loan eligibility. 

Wastewater Treatment 

The Single EIR provides a hydrogeological report for the proposed infiltration sites (HR-12, SH-
2 and PB-3). Only sites HR-12 and PB-3 were carried forward. Site PB-3 was dismissed because it 
required the purchase of several privately owned properties. A warrant article to purchase the properties 
passed at the 2015 Annual Town Meeting but was subsequently defeated on a town-wide ballot vote. 
The Single EIR evaluates project impacts on groundwater hydrology, surface water and wetlands 
resources, wildlife habitat and other sensitive resources in the project area. The Town should continue to 
work with the CCC on watershed analysis and other aspects of the CWMP developed during preparation 
of the SEIR. The Town should also coordinate closely with MassDEP regarding permitting issues and 
allowable removal rates. 

Source Reduction 

I have received letters of support for the Town of Harwich in its efforts to develop a CWMP that 
serves as a water resources management strategy to meet TMDL requirements. Development of a 
CWMP is an important step toward meeting TMDLs and restoring impaired waters. However, the plans 
to meet TMDL requirements for nutrient loading must always consider source reduction as the primary 
means of long-term nutrient control. Source reduction usually focuses on controlling watershed land use 
loads generated from human activity and can include eliminating fertilizers, constructing on-site systems 
with enhanced nutrient removal capability, reducing runoff from impervious surfaces, reducing 
impervious surfaces, and tightening standards for new and upgraded septic systems. In addition to 
source controls, successful nutrient management plans may include alternative nutrient control strategies 
to achieve the desired nitrogen concentrations specified in the TMDL and MEP reports. 

Drinking Water 

The CWMP reports that approximately 9,800 accounts in the town are serviced by drinking 
water from 14 gravel packed wells that collectively pump approximately 2 million gallons per day 
(mgd). The drinking water quality is excellent with the exception of naturally occurring iron. The Town 
Water Department recently completed construction of a 6.5 mgd treatment plant to remove iron and 
manganese. 

The CWMP reports that drinking water protection is not a factor in the town's sewering plans. 
However, public water wells located in the Pleasant Bay watershed show an increase in nitrate 
concentrations, although still below the threshold for safe levels. This recent elevation in nitrate levels 
does indicate that development and wastewater is impacting the town's water supply. It also increases 
concerns over other wastewater-borne contaminants, including contaminants of emerging concern 
(CEC). Plans to schedule sewering of this area of the Pleasant Bay watershed in the early phases of the 
sewering program should also be a benefit to the water supply, according to the CWMP. 

12 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Land Use and Alteration 

The Single EIR proposes approximately 92 miles of new sewer mains to be installed within 
existing roadways. The Single EIR quantifies the total amount of alteration associated with the 
proposed project (including areas to be altered for sewer mains, wastewater treatment and disposal, and 
other project components) and the amount of alteration associated with different project elements. The 
Single EIR also clarifies the location, type and amount of alteration in previously undisturbed areas. 

The construction period impacts on traffic and the transportation network should be considered 
by the Town at the appropriate stage in the design process. The Town should coordinate sewer 
construction activities with planned roadway improvement projects to minimize traffic disruptions and 
reduce overall costs. The CWMP states that potential traffic impacts and mitigation methods will be 
looked at in greater detail during the design of the individual CWMP components, including 
coordinating other needed roadway improvements with the sewer project where such coordination is 
logical and cost- effective for the Town. 

Coastal Hazards 

The availability of sewer infrastructure in coastal areas subject to storm damage, flooding, and 
erosion could allow new or expanded development in these hazard-prone areas. This development may 
also adversely impact natural buffers to storm waves and erosion, and compromise the storm protection 
provided to landward development, infrastructure, natural resources, and upland areas. The resulting 
impacts of development in these coastal areas could include loss of life and property, increased public 
expenditures for storm recovery activities, taxpayer subsidies for flood insurance and disaster relief, and 
risks to emergency personnel. CZM Coastal Hazards Policy #3 states that federally funded public works 
projects shall not promote growth and development in hazard-prone or buffer areas. In addition, State 
Executive Order 181 states that state and federal grants for construction projects shall not be used to 
encourage growth and development in hazard prone barrier beach areas. Executive Order 181 also seeks 
to minimize and mitigate potential storm damage by prohibiting development within flood velocity 
zones. Furthermore, Executive Order 149 directs State Agencies responsible for programs that affect 
land use planning to take flood hazards into account when evaluating plans. 

The Single EIR has identified certain areas of town with shallow depth-to-groundwater south of 
Route 28 along the southern coast. Due to Title 5 and board of health compliance issues based on high 
groundwater and small lot sizes, the Town has included these low-lying areas in the sewering plan. The 
CWMP states that sewer lines and pumping stations built within existing flood zones will be designed to 
withstand flood conditions. However, the Final CWMP does not explain how or if infrastructure design 
for these locations will account for predicted sea level rise and the impact it will have on the extent of 
future surface flooding. The Town should focus on developing design plans that address future flood 
risk, not just current flood risk. 

As phases of the project are further developed, the Town's sewering design should also consider 
anticipated changes to the water table as a result of sea level rise. A groundwater modeling study of the 
mid-Cape Cod region conducted over the past two years by the U.S. Geological Survey and 
commissioned by the Association to Preserve Cape Cod (APCC) predicts significant impacts to in-
ground infrastructure and the function of natural systems due to changes in the interface between salt 

13 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

water and the water table, based on expected sea level rise. It is possible that in low-lying coastal areas 
of Harwich, predicted sea level rise will increase the number of properties experiencing Title 5 
compliance issues due to a high water table compared to the number of properties currently experiencing 
such problems. 

Historical/Archaeological Resources 

The Town will provide the Massachusetts Historical Commission (MHC) with a U.S. Geological 
Survey topographical map that clearly locates the project areas by phase and scaled project plans 
showing existing and proposed conditions. These plans should be submitted to MHC as early as possible 
during the design of each of the project phases and the Town must coordinate with MHC to address 
potential historic impacts from the project and measures to avoid, minimize or mitigate impacts. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

The project is subject to the MEPA Greenhouse Gas Emissions Policy and Protocol ("the 
Policy"). The Policy requires projects to quantify carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions and identify measures 
to avoid, minimize or mitigate such emissions. Unlike many projects reviewed under the Policy, 
wastewater treatment process energy loads and subsequent CO2  emissions play a large role in the overall 
project's GHG emissions rather than the buildings that contain the facilities themselves. As outlined 
below, the Department of Energy Resources (DOER) has provided guidance to assist the Town in 
quantifying project-related GHG emissions and the effectiveness of mitigation measures. 

The Single EIR contained descriptions of project alternatives that include either modification of 
existing wastewater management systems, pump stations and discharge facilities and the construction of 
the new WWTF. As noted above, these systems and facilities represent potential direct and indirect 
sources of GHG emissions due to related electrical and thermal loads. The Policy directs proponents to 
use applicable building codes to establish a project emissions baseline that is "code-compliant." 
However, there is no building energy code equivalent that applies specifically to WWTFs. Because 
there is not a readily available energy use model (such as eQUEST) to estimate the projected energy use 
of the WWTF processing energy loads and requiring Towns to estimate energy consumption, 
particularly by process equipment, would involve a detailed design and selection of systems and 
equipment that is not available at this conceptual level of design, DOER recommended an alternative 
method to estimate GHG emissions. 

The Town used the EPA's Energy Star Portfolio Manager (ESPM) computer modeling program 
to quantify the energy usage associated with the wastewater treatment technologies included in its Final 
CWMP. The Town's GHG analysis established a baseline case and a mitigated case of the project using 
the EPA's ESPM for Wastewater Treatment Facilities. The EENF established that the baseline case 
would have an ESPM Energy Performance Rank of 50. It is important to note that there is no design at 
this time for this facility, the baseline case in the Single EIR was based on a similar WWTF designed by 
the consultants for another Cape Cod community. The estimated energy use at the plant was scaled 
from this design based on the difference in the two plants' annual flow. The power consumption for both 
plants, the oxidation ditches, and SBRs are similar for a facility of the size proposed for the Town of 
Harwich. The mitigated case was ranked 11 in the EPSM. I note that the ESPM rank of 11 for proposed 
flows is below the national mean for WWTFs with the same input characteristics and climate zone and 

14 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

likely indicates an issue with the accuracy of the modeling. DOER strongly recommends that the Town 
incorporate measures including energy recovery, system monitoring, optimized lighting, reduced 
ventilation and heating requirements, use of variable frequency drives in motors, and process 
optimization in design of the facility improvements. Implementation of these measures could result in 
significant reductions in GHG emissions and will support the Town's goal of improving its ranking. To 
the extent that the Town prioritizes energy efficiency early in the design, it will be more effective. 

The Town has committed to obtain a minimum of 51 in the EPSM (email dated May 10, 2016) 
and to incorporate cost-effective energy efficient building systems and process systems. Because the 
WWTF will not be designed or constructed for 10 — 15 years, I advise the Town to consult with MEPA, 
DOER and MassDEP prior to project design because assessment and modeling of GHG emissions, as 
well as technology, will likely improve during that time period. 

The Town plans to incorporate the following energy efficiency measures into the design of the 
WWTF including: 

• Minimizing energy use from building orientation and strategic landscaping and minimizing the 
building footprint may (up to 6% percent reduction). 

• Heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) measures (up to 20%). 
• Lighting efficiencies and light bulb selection (up to 75% reduction). 
• Particular wastewater processes equipment selection (up to 35% reduction). 
• At least three percent of the energy use will be provided through on-site renewable generation 

and purchase of green energy or renewable energy credits. 

The Single EIR also supports the use of alternative technologies and the use of high efficiency 
systems. Those criteria were used in selecting the type of collection, treatment and effluent recharge 
systems proposed for the recommended wastewater program. The Town has also recently installed a 
solar photovoltaic (PV) array at the former municipal landfill site which is adjacent to the proposed 
WWTF site (HR-12). This PV array will be used to help offset the power needs of the Town for that 
facility. 

The Town should review EPA's BMP guidance document to identify additional GHG and 
energy reduction strategies that the Town should explore. Going forward, the Town may benefit from 
committing to minimum equipment performance standards as a method to meet GHG reduction goals at 
this stage of the project design. I also encourage the Town to consider the use of energy audits to assist 
in the identification of potential energy reduction measures that could be implemented into the existing 
portions of the wastewater treatment system. 

The draft Section 61 Findings in the Single EIR did not include a self-certification specific to 
GHG emissions; however, the Town is required to provide a certification to the MEPA Office indicating 
that the mitigation measures identified in the MEPA process have been incorporated into the project or 
similar measures to provide equivalent benefits. 

15 



EEA# 15022 	 Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

Monitoring 

The Town has committed to provide a detailed monitoring plan that includes, at a minimum, an 
assessment of downgradient resources of sensitive receptors, placement of monitoring stations, 
parameters of evaluation, methods for collecting and analyzing data, and frequency of data collection. 
The monitoring should include site specific monitoring to understand the impact of stormwater 
infrastructure upgrades and the effectiveness of fertilizer reduction strategies. In addition, it should 
include monitoring within Pleasant Bay and Saquatucket Harbor to assess the effectiveness of the 
projects to increase natural attenuation of nitrogen in those watersheds. I encourage the Town of 
Harwich to share ambient water quality monitoring results and performance monitoring results with the 
CCC and with the Towns of Chatham, Brewster, and Dennis. 

Hazardous Materials 

MassDEP has indicated that the Town should consider the potential for encountering 
contamination during excavation. The Single EIR identifies known hazardous waste sites governed by 
the Massachusetts Oil and Hazardous Material Release Prevention and Response Act (M.G.L. c. 21E) in 
the vicinity of the project area and provides an updated summary on the status of these sites consistent 
with the Massachusetts Contingency Plan (MCP, 310 CMR 40.0000). The Town is advised that, if oil 
and/or hazardous material (OHM) is identified during the implementation of the project, notification 
pursuant to the MCP must be made to MassDEP, if necessary. A Licensed Site Professional (LSP) may 
be retained to determine if notification is required and, if need be, to render appropriate opinions. 
Construction protocols and procedures should reflect the potential for discovery of OHM during the 
construction period. I refer the Town to the comments from MassDEP for additional guidance on the 
prevention and management of potential releases of OHM. 

Construction Period Impacts 

The Single EIR includes a draft Construction Management Plan (CMP) describing project 
activities and their schedule and sequencing, and BMPs that will be used to avoid and minimize adverse 
environmental impacts. The final CMP should address potential demolition and construction period 
impacts (including but not limited to land disturbance, noise, vibration, dust, odor, nuisance, vehicle 
emissions, construction and demolition debris, impacts on trees and other vegetation, and construction-
related traffic) and analyze and outline feasible measures that can be implemented to eliminate or 
minimize these impacts. The CMP discusses plans for reuse and recycling of construction materials 
including asphalt, brick and concrete (ABC). The CMP should include an erosion control component to 
address protection of water quality and wetlands resources. The project must comply with MassDEP's 
Solid Waste and Air Quality Control regulations during construction. 

I ask that the Town participate in MassDEP's Clean Air Construction Initiative (CACI) and the 
MassDEP Diesel Retrofit Program to mitigate the construction-period impacts of diesel emissions to the 
maximum extent feasible. The Town should consult with MassDEP to develop appropriate construction-
period diesel emission mitigation, which could include the installation of after-engine emission controls 
such as diesel oxidation catalysts (DOCs) or diesel particulate filters (DPFs). Project contractors are 
required to use ultra low sulfur diesel (ULSD) fuel (15 parts per million sulfur) in off-road engines and 
MassDEP can provide additional resources to assist with implementation of this program. 

16 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

According to the Final CWMP, stormwater contributes approximately five to nine percent of the 
controllable nitrogen entering Harwich's coastal waters. It is also a source for phosphorus in freshwater 
ponds. The Town is required to prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which must 
clearly and reasonably delineate all areas to be 'altered', and describe the practices that will be 
implemented to protect the resources during construction as well as upon completion of the project. This 
includes Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans and design calculations to assess all drainage leaving 
the construction areas. The SWPPP must also include designation of areas where stockpiling of material 
and operations are to occur. The Town should consult with MassDEP and others to ensure that the 
Project will meet any performance standards associated with a federal NPDES permit for all proposed 
project construction activities. The APCC recommends in its comments that the Town review its bylaws 
and regulations to determine where improvements can be made to increase the effectiveness of 
stormwater management to further reduce nutrients and other pollutants from entering water bodies. 

Mitigation/Section 61 Findings  

The Single EIR included a separate chapter on mitigation measures and draft Section 61 Findings 
for each State Agency Action. The Single EIR identified each mitigation measure arid the responsible 
party for implementation. Draft Section 61 Findings should be revised in response to this Certificate 
and provided to State Agencies as part of permitting to support the issuance of Final Section 61 
Findings. 

The Single EIR identifies the following measures to avoid, minimize and mitigate impacts: 

• Avoid wetlands impacts through installation of sewer in existing roadways; 
• Design and construction of sewers and associated infrastructure (e.g. pumping stations, pipes, 

etc.) to withstand coastal flood hazards; 
• Pumping stations will be located outside of flood zones wherever possible, will be designed 

to withstand a 100-year storm and will be protected with a system of check valves in critical 
areas; 

• Design and implement a comprehensive water quality management plan to monitor water 
quality of coastal embayments and to identify reductions in nitrogen loading from the 
construction of the CWMP projects; 

• Provide annual water quality reports to MassDEP, CCC, DMF and the Towns of Dennis, 
Brewster and Chatham; 

• Following the completion of project phases, adjustments to the CWMP will be made to 
address those aspects accordingly, while working MassDEP and the CCC; 

• Continue consultation with NHESP regarding specific conditions to minimize potential rare 
species impacts associated with the installation of groundwater discharge; 

• Consult with DOER regarding feasibility and effectiveness of GHG reduction measures at 
the WWTF to achieve a ESPM high rating index of 51 or greater; 

• Continue to evaluate recommendations developed by the WQMTF and Wastewater 
Management Subcommittee (WMS), to protect the Town's beaches and coastal wetlands 
from detrimental impacts associated with climate change. 

• Continue consultation with MHC on historic and archaeological issues. As required, conduct 
an intensive (location) archaeological survey and submit results to MHC. 

17 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

• Design and construct stormwater management systems consistent with the WPA Stormwater 
Management Standards, including operating and management plans. 

• Prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 
• Conduct all dewatering in accordance with applicable regulatory discharge permits. 
• Comply with MassDEP's Solid Waste and Air Quality Control regulations, pursuant to 

M.G.L. Chapter 40, Section 54; 
• Implement measures to avoid, minimize and mitigate construction period impacts (FEIR, 

Section 8.3.1); and, 
• Provide a Construction Management Plan to manage construction-related traffic, erosion, 

dust, noise and wetlands impacts. 

Conclusion 

Based on a review of the EENF, Single EIR, comment letters and consultation with State 
Agencies, I find that the Single EIR adequately and properly complies with MEPA and its implementing 
regulations. The project may proceed to permitting. State Agencies and the Proponent should forward 
copies of the Final Section 61 Findings to the MEPA Office for publication in accordance with 301 
CMR 11.12. 

To ensure consistency with the 208 Plan Update, the CCC has indicated that implementation of 
the CWMP should be conducted consistent with the process outlined in the 208 Plan Update which 
includes creation of a Technical Review Panel that includes local, regional and state representation. The 
purpose of the Review Panel is to provide input on the review and refinement of each five-year planning 
and implementation increment. The Town should consider discussion of recommendations with the 
watershed community through a facilitated process to gain consensus for recommendations prior to 
adoption and implementation. 

To support the Town's adaptive management approach to developing long-term solutions and in 
acknowledgement of the Town and its residents concrete support for projects that will reduce nitrogen 
levels in the short-term, I have determined that the Single EIR adequately and properly complies with 
MEPA and its implementing regulations. This determination is conditioned upon potential filing of a 
Notice of Project Change (NPC) or NPC's for the purpose of evaluating impacts associated with discrete 
elements of non-structural alternatives that were not fully analyzed in the Single EIR (e.g. the Cold 
Brook Project, pond restoration projects). 

The purpose of the NPC is twofold: 1) identify the project's potential contribution towards 
attaining water quality standards within the watershed; and, 2) identify potential environmental impacts, 
summarize alternatives considered to avoid, minimize and mitigate impacts, and identify measures that 
will be incorporated to avoid, minimize and mitigate impacts. Filing of an NPC also would offer an 
opportunity to provide an update on design and construction of sewering and documentation of progress 
towards achieving TMDL's for each watershed. I strongly encourage the Town to consult with the 
MEPA Office regarding the scope of any NPC prior to filing. 

In general, the NPC should identify the project area/site; include maps and plans at a reasonable 
scale that clearly locate and delineate project elements and environmental resources; identify 
environmental impacts; identify associated Agency Actions and discuss the consistency of the project 

18 



EEA# 15022 
	

Single EIR Certificate 	May 13, 2016 

with regulatory standards and requirements. To the extent that agency comments on the Single EIR 
identified issues, concerns and/or provided recommendations associated with the project (e.g. MassDEP 
comments regarding wetlands impacts associated with Cold Brook) they should be addressed in the 
NPC. The NPC can also provide updates on design and construction of the sewering and document 
progress towards achieving TMDL's for each watershed. 

May 13, 2016 

 

Date 	Matthew A. Beaton 

Comments received: 

05/06/2015 Cape Cod Commission 
05/06/2015 Association to Preserve Cape Cod 
05/06/2015 	Massachusetts Division of Marine Fisheries 
05/06/2015 Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection — SERO 
05/10/2016 Department of Energy Resources 

MAB/ACC/acc 

19 



Smi th 
75 State Street 

Boston, Massachusetts 02109 

tel: 617 452-6000 

fax: 617452-8000 

June 22, 2016 

Mr. Chris Clark 

Town Administrator 

Harwich Town Hall 

732 Main Street 

Harwich, MA 02643 

Subject: 	Letter Agreement for Professional Services Related to Harwich CWMP - 

Implementation Services 

Dear Mr. Clark: 

CDM Smith Inc. (CDM Smith) appreciates the opportunity to submit this Letter Agreement to assist 

the Town of Harwich (OWNER) with wastewater related services regarding implementation of the 

town's Comprehensive Wastewater Management Plan (CWMP). On May 13, 2016, the town received 

an approval Certificate for their CWMP from the Massachusetts Secretary of Energy and 

Environmental Affairs — Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA) office. The next step is to 

pursue approval via the Cape Cod Commission Development of Regional Impact (DRI) process which 

has begun. The intent of these professional services is to provide the town with services as needed 

related to the DRI process and other CWMP implementation items as described below. 

1.0 	Scope of Services 

Services are outlined below: 

Task 1.1— Development of Regional Impact (DRI) 
1.1 	Attend meetings with the Cape Cod Commission (CCC) to address questions and issues that 

may arise as they process the Harwich CWMP through their DRI process. 

1.2 	Develop in conjunction with town representatives and the Wastewater Implementation 
Committee (WIC) written responses to questions and issues raised by the CCC during the DRI 
process. 

Task 12 Inter-Municipal Agreement (IMA) Negotiations with Chatham 

1.3 	Meet with OWNER representatives to assist with development and negotiation of am IMA with 

Chatham for use of the Chatham wastewater treatment facility to treat and recharge 

wastewater collected from the Pleasant Bay watershed area of Harwich. 

1.4 	Attend meetings and review documents as requested by OWNER. 

FINAL Harwich CWMP Implementation 062216 WATER + ENVIRONMENT +TRANSPORTATION + ENERGY 1:rACILITIES 



Smi th 

Mr. Chris Clark 

June 22, 2016 

Page 2 

Task 1.3 — Sewer Use Regulations 

	

1.5 	Work with OWNER representatives to review and revise Chatham Sewer Use Regulations for 

implementation in Harwich as part of the IMA requirement. Also provide guidance on means 

for Harwich to implement the regulations. 

Task 1.4— Watershed Templates for CCC 

	

1.6 	Using information from the Massachusetts Estuaries Project (MEP) reports and the Harwich 

CWMP fill-out the 208 Plan watershed templates due to CCC in June 2016 for the Herring River 

Watershed, Allen Harbor, Wychmere Harbor and Saquatucket Harbor watersheds, and the 

Pleasant Bay watershed. 

	

1.7 	Meet with OWNER to review information contained in the watershed templates and help 

obtain approval of the Wastewater Treatment Management Agency (Selectmen) for submitting 

the completed watershed templates. 

Task 1.5 — Community Partnership Discussions 

	

1.8 	Meet with OWNER representatives to review potential cost savings related to a community 

partnership option with the towns of Dennis and Yarmouth. Scenario would potentially 

include a three town treatment plant located in Dennis instead of Harwich constructing their 

own separate facility. 

	

1.9 	Help facilitate the community partnership discussions among the three towns and keep 

Harwich representatives up to date on all technical and cost related issues. 

Task 1.6 —WIC Meetings and Public Outreach 

1.10 Meet with the Wastewater Implementation Committee on a periodic basis to review current 

CWMP implementation issues, address items related to tasks noted above, and assist in 

scheduling future implementation steps. 

1.11 As requested, attend meetings with OWNER and assist in making wastewater related 

presentations or developing educational documents. 

	

2.0 	Period of Service 
CDM Smith is available to begin work immediately upon acceptance by OWNER. It is envisioned that 

these tasks would be conducted over the next 180 days from the date of this Agreement. This Agreement 

may be extended beyond the time period to provide additional services by mutual consent. 

FINAL Harwich CWIVIP Implementation o62216 WATER + ENVIRONMENT +TRANSPORTATION + ENERGY+ FACILITIES 



Smith 
Mr. Chris Clark 
June 22, 2016 

Page 3 

3.0 Payment 

	

3.1 	For services under this agreement, CDM Smith will be paid a not to exceed amount of $ 25,000 

for performance of services as described above. 

▪ The OWNER agrees to pay the ENGINEER for work done of its personnel on the basis of 

direct labor cost times a factor of 3.0. Direct labor cost is defined as chargeable salaries 

without fringe benefits as incurred by CDM Smith personnel for the time directly utilized 

on the work covered by this Agreement. 

▪ Actual out-of-pocket expense costs are all costs other than direct labor costs that are 

incurred during the progress of the work. The actual out-of-pocket expense costs include: 

automobile rental if required, mileage charges, parking, tolls, taxi, meals, lodging, 

telephone, printing and reproduction costs, and other miscellaneous costs incurred 

specifically for this project. The charges for rental of field equipment will be at the 

ENGINEER's regular rates. 

For work done by subcontract or consultants, at the actual cost to the ENGINEER of such 

services. 

	

3.2 	If additional work is requested by OWNER, CDM Smith will propose a budget for task requested 

and receive written authorization from OWNER prior to proceeding. 

	

3.3 	CDM Smith shall submit monthly statements for services rendered and provide a summary of 

authorized budget expended. OWNER shall pay within 30 days of invoice receipt. 

	

3.4 	OWNER is a tax exempt organization. 

4.0 Miscellaneous 

	

4.1 	This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

	

4.2 	Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than 

OWNER and CDM Smith. 

	

4.3 	At any time during the life of this Agreement should a substance be uncovered or encountered 

at the project site that would void or otherwise adversely impact CDM Smith's professional 

liability insurance, CDM Smith reserves the right to renegotiate the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, the fees for CDM Smith's services, and CDM Smith's continued involvement in the 

project. 

FINAL Harwich CWMP Implementation 0622,16 WATER ± ENVIRONMENT 4- TRANSPORTATION +ENERGY + AMITIES 



CUM 
Smi 

Mr. Chris Clark 

June 22, 2016 

Page 4 

4.4 	CDM Smith shall procure and continue to maintain during the performance of this Agreement 

the minimum insurance coverage required by Massachusetts law for protection from claims 

under workers' compensation acts, claims for damages because of bodily injury including 

personal injury, sickness or disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other 

than such employees, and from claims or damages, because of injury to or destruction of 

property related to this Project. 

4.5 	CDM Smith's Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability Insurance policies 

shall cover liabilities arising out of CDM Smith's performance of the work under this Agreement 

and shall be primary insurance with respect to the interest of CDM Smith. 

4.6 	CDM Smith agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER and OWNER's officers and 

employees from and against damages; costs, liabilities, and expenses, including reasonable 

attorneys' fees, to the extent caused by CDM Smith's negligence in the performance of its 

services under this Agreement. 

4.7 	The OWNER agrees that CDM Smith's services are on behalf of, and for the exclusive use of, the 

OWNER for this Project and that all documents furnished to the OWNER are instruments of 

service and shall be utilized solely for this Project. Any reuse without written verification or 

adaptation by CDM Smith for other than the specific purpose intended will be at OWNER's sole 

risk and without liability or legal exposure to CDM Smith. OWNER shall hold harmless CDM 

Smith and CDM Smith's independent consultants from, all claims, damages, losses and expenses 

including all attorneys' fees arising from such reuse. 

4.8 	Notwithstanding any language to the contrary contained in this Agreement, neither party shall 

be liable to the other for lost profits or any consequential, special, or indirect damages in any 

way arising out of this Agreement however caused under a claim of any type or nature based on 

any theory of liability (including but not limited to contract, tort, or warranty) even if the 

possibility of such damages has been communicated. 

4.9 	CDM Smith is an independent contractor and is responsible for the means and methods used in 

performing its services under this Agreement. 

4.10 The standard of care applicable to CDM Smith services-will be the degree of skill and diligence 

normally employed by professional engineers or consultants performing similar services at the 

same time, in the same locale, and under similar circumstances. The OWNER agrees that 

services provided will be rendered without any other warranty, expressed or implied. 

4.11 The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated with or 

without cause (a) by OWNER upon 7days written notice to CDM Smith or (b) by CDM Smith 

0 

FINAL Harwich CWMP Implementation 062216 WATER+ENVIRONMENT+TRANSPORTATION+ENERGY+FACILITIES  



smith 
Mr. Chris Clark 

June 22, 2016 
Page 5 

upon 7 days written notice to OWNER. In the event of any termination, CDM Smith will be paid 

for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses and termination 

expenses. 

4.12 Any provision of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable shall be deemed stricken. All 

remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding. The parties agree that this 

Agreement may be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and 

enforceable provision which comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 

stricken provision. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between OWNER and CDM Smith, and supersedes 

all prior written or oral understandings between them in respect to the subject matters covered 

hereby. Please contact me at 617-452-6544 with any questions or issues relative to this Agreement. 

If this Agreement meets with your approval, please indicate your acceptance by signing and returning 

one original copy of the executed Agreement to my attention. 

Very truly yours, 

David F. Young, P.E. 

Vice President 

CDM Smith Inc. 

ACCEPTED BY CDM Smith Inc.: 
	

ACCEPTED BY OWNER: 

David F. Young, Vice President Name and Title: Christopher Clark 
Town Administrator, Town of Harwich 

Date: 	June 22, 2016 Date: 	July 8, 2016_ 

   

49, 

FINAL Harwich CWMP Implementation o62216 WATER + ENVIRONMENT +TRANSPORTATION + ENERGY + FACILITIES 



Phone (508) 430-7513 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
	

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 	732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

Charleen L. Greenhalgh, Assistant Town Administrator 

August 31, 2016 

To: 	Board of Selectmen 
Cc: 	Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 
From: Charleen G-reenhalgh, Assistant Town Administrator are 
Re: 	Community Rating System Annual Recertification 

It is that time of year again for Harwich to prepare and submit the Community Rating System 
(CRS) Annual Recertification. Former Planner David Spitz served at the CRS Coordinator for the 
Town for many years. With his retirement, I was named the interim CRS Coordinator. On August 
29th , Shannon Jarbeau, CRS & Floodplain Coordinator with Barnstable County, met with staff 
(Amy Usowski, Elaine Banta, David Riquinha, Jay Briggs and myself) to review the attached CC-
213 Recertification Form ("Form"). Staff is working together to gather the necessary information 
that must be submitted with the Form. We are not sure how long this will take, so I am respectfully 
requesting that the Board of Selectmen vote to authorize the Chair to sign the CC-213 
Recertification Form as the Chief Executive Officer when it is completed. 

The Form must be submitted by September 15, 2016 and no later than October 1, 2016. 
Failure to provide this recertification material will cause Harwich to revert to a CRS Classification 
of 10 (we are currently Classified as an 8), and flood insurance policy holders in Harwich will lose 
their 10% discount they currently enjoy as a result of Harwich's participation in the CRS program. 

We certainly do not want to miss the submittal deadline. 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich State MA 	CID 250008 

    

County 	Barnstable  

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

CC-213 Recertification 
Recertification Date: October 1, 2016 

If there are any changes or corrections to the information below, please cross out the old item and write 
in the correction. 

Chief Executive Officer CRS Coordinator 

Name 
Michael D. MacAskill Charleen Greenhalgh 

Title 
Chair, Board of Selectman Assistant Town Administrator 

Address 732 Main Street 732 Main Street 

Harwich, Massachusetts 02645 Harwich, Massachusetts 02645 

Phone 
508-430-7513 

E-mail 
cgreenhalgh@townharwich.ma.us  

I hereby certify that Town of Harwich is continuing to implement the activities on the attached 
pages as credited under the Community Rating System and described in our original application 
to the CRS and subsequent modifications. 

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, we are maintaining in force all 
flood insurance policies that have been required of us as a condition of federal financial assis-
tance for insurable buildings owned by us and located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) 
shown on our Flood Insurance Rate Map. I further understand that disaster assistance for any 
community-owned building located in the SFHA is reduced by the amount of National Flood In-
surance Program (NFIP) flood insurance coverage (structure and contents) that a community 
should be carrying on the building, regardless of whether the community is carrying a policy. 

Signed 	 (Chief Executive Officer) 

CC-213-1 	Edition: 2013 Community Certifications 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich State MA 	CID 250008 

    

County 	Barnstable 

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

Your community has been verified as receiving CRS credit for the following activities. If 
your community is still implementing these activities the CRS coordinator is required to put 
his or her initials in the blank and attach the appropriate items. The numbers refer to the ac-
tivity number which is found in the CRS Coordinator's Manual. If the word "attached" is 
used you must provide documentation material for that activity. If no material has been ac-
quired for that activity please explain why there is no material from the past year. 

310 We are maintaining Elevation Certificates on all new and substantially improved buildings 
in our Special Flood Hazard Area. 

310 Attached is the permit list for new or substantially improved structures that have been com-
pleted in the last year. 

310 Attached are the Elevation Certificates for new or substantially improved structures that 
have been completed in the last year. 

310 We continue to make copies of Elevation Certificates on newer properties available at our 
present office location. { 	] Initial here if your office address has changed in the past year. 
Please provide new address with this form. 

320 We are providing basic flood infou 	iation, additional FIRM information, and natural flood- 
plain functions to inquirers. [ 	] Initial here if the office address or the manner in which 
requests may be submitted has changed in the last year. Please provide the new office address 
or manner of submittal with this form. 

320 Attached is a copy of the (describe credited outreach) that publicized the credited elements 
of this service this year. 

320 Attached is a copy of one page of the log, a letter, or other record that we kept on this ser-
vice this year. 

320 We are continuing to keep our FIRM updated and maintain old copies of our FIRM. 

330 Attached are copies of all outreach projects conducted this year. 

350 Our public library continues to maintain flood protection materials. 

350 We continue to conduct an annual review and update of the information and links in our 
flood protection website. 

420 We continue to preserve our open space in the floodplain. 

CC-213-2 	Edition: 2013 Community Certifications 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich State MA 	CID 250008 

    

County 	Barnstable 

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

430 We continue to enforce the following regulations in our floodplain: local drainage protec- 
tion. [ 	j Initial here if you have amended your floodplain regulations. Attach a copy of 
the amendment. 

430 We continue to enforce our current building code. [ 	1 Initial here if you have amended 
your building code. Attach a copy of the amendment. 

440 We continue to use and update our flood data maintenance system on an annual basis as 
needed. 

450 We continue to enforce the provisions of our zoning, subdivision and building codes as 
they pertain to erosion and sediment control. 

502 We currently have 	repetitive loss properties and send our notice to 	properties in 
the repetitive loss areas. 

502 Attached is a copy of this year's notice on property protection, flood insurance and financial 
assistance that we sent to our repetitive loss areas. 

NOTE: Please do not mail or ship packages that need a signature. 

Additional Comments: 

Attachments: 

CC-213-3 	Edition: 2013 Community Certifications 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich State MA. 	CID 250008 

    

County 	Barnstable 

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

CRS Program Data Table 
A. In the 

SFHA 

B. In a regulated 
floodplain out 
side the SFHA 

C. In the rest 
of the com- 

munity 

I. Last report's number of buildings in the SFHA (bSF) (line 6, last report) A 
2. Number of new buildings constructed since last report + r 3. Number of buildings removed/demolished since last report — 

4. Number of buildings affected by map revisions since last report (+ or---) 

5. Number of buildings affected by corporate limits changes (+ or ) 

6. Current total number of buildings in the SFHA (bSF) (total lines 1-5) 7:, 

7. Number of substantial improvement/damage projects since last report A 
8. Number of repetitive loss properties mitigated since last report 

, 
9. Number of LOMRs and map revisions (not LOMAs) since last report 

, 10. Acreage of the SFHA (aSFHA) as of the last report (line 13, last report) 

11. Acreage of area(s) affected by map revisions since last report (+ or —) 

12. Acreage of area(s) affected by corporate limits changes (+ or ) 

A 13. Current acreage of the SFHA (aSFHA) (total lines 10-12) 

14. Primary source for building data: 

15. Primary source for area data: 

16. Period covered: Current FIRM date 

If available, the following data would be useful.
,  

A.  

17. Number of new manufactured homes installed since last report 

18. Number of other new 1-4 family buildings constructed since last report 

19. Number of all other buildings constructed/installed since last report 

Comments: 

(Please note the number of the line to which the comment refers.) 

CC-213-4 	Edition: 2013 Community Certifications 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich State MA 	CID 250008 

    

County 	Barnstable 

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

Instructions for CRS Program Data Table 

At the first verification visit after the 2013 CRS Coordinator's Manual takes effect, ONLY LINES 6 AND 13 NEED TO 
BE COMPLETED. These lines form the baseline data about the number of buildings and area of the SFHA for 
when the table is completed as part of the next annual recertification. The "period covered" entered in line 16 
is the date that lines 6 and 13 are first completed. 

The entire table is completed at all subsequent annual recertifications and cycle verification visits. The infor-
mation in lines 6 and 13 from the last report is transferred to lines 1 and 10 in the next report. 

Instructions for the Columns 

Column A numbers are for the SFHA (the A and V Zones shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map) (FIRM)). Use the 
FIRM currently in effect, not a draft or pending revision. 

Column B is completed only if the community receives CRS credit for regulating floodplain development out-
side the SFHA under Activity 410 (Floodplain Mapping) or Activity 430 (Higher Regulatory Standards). 

Column C numbers help relate what happens in the floodplain to what is happening in the rest of the commu-
nity. 

Enter "0" if there are no numbers to report for this period. Do not leave a cell blank. Do not fill in the shaded boxes. 

Instructions for the Lines 

Lines 1-7 deal with buildings. 

o Section 301.a of the CRS Coordinator's Manual defines what constitutes a "building" and lists exam-
ples of structures that are not counted as "buildings" by the CRS. 

o Section 302.a of the CRS Coordinator's Manual describes how the CRS counts buildings. For exam-
ple, accessory structures are not counted. 

o As noted in Section 302.a, to determine building counts, communities may use any method that yields 
reasonably good estimates of the number of buildings. Examples of acceptable methods are listed in 
Section 302.a. Precision is less important for large numbers. For example, the impact of the numbers 
will not change much if there are 10,000 buildings or 10,100 buildings. 

o If a building is out of the SFHA, but in a parcel that is partly in the SFHA, it is not counted in column 
A 	In the SFHA. 

o In line 14, note how the building counts were obtained or estimated. Use the comments area, if needed. 

Line 4 refers to map revisions. These include physical map revisions, Letters of Map Revision (LOMR), and 
Letters of Map Amendment (LOMA). If a building is removed from the SFHA by FEMA through a LOMA, but 
the community still administers its floodplain management regulations on the property, the building should not 
be included in the line 4 count in column A—In the SFHA. However, communities that still regulate areas re-
moved by LOMAs can receive credit under Activities 410 or 430. If the community is receiving such credit, the 
building should be counted under column B 	In a regulated floodplain outside the SFHA. 

Line 7 is for the total number of buildings that were substantially improved plus the number of buildings that 
were substantially damaged during the period covered. 

Lines 10-13 deal with areas. 

o Section 403.e of the CRS Coordinator's Manual discusses calculating areas for CRS purposes. 

CC-213-5 	Edition: 2013 Community Certifications 



OMB No. 1660-0022 
Expires: December 31, 2016 

Community  Town of Harwich  State MA 	CID 250008 

County 	Barnstable 

COMMUNITY RATING SYSTEM ANNUAL RECERTIFICATION 

o Section 403.e notes that communities "should not spend an inordinate amount of time measuring ar-
eas." As with buildings, communities may use any method that yields reasonably good estimates. Ex-
amples of acceptable approaches are listed in Section 403.e. 

o Line 13 asks for the current acreage of the SFHA. The best source for this number is a GIS layer that 
shows the SFHA. If the community does not have GIS, the county, regional agency, or state NFIP 

o mapping office may have SFHA layers and may be able to provide the data. If the community has a 
relatively recent FIRM, the study contractor or consulting engineer may have the data. 

o In line 15, note how the area calculations were obtained or estimated. Use the comments area, if 
needed. 

Lines 17-19 are voluntary, if the numbers are readily available. 

o Line 17 includes replacing an existing manufactured home with a new one. The newly placed manufac-
tured home is counted as a new, post-FIRM, building. 

o The total of lines 17-19 should equal the value entered in line 2. 

Community Certifications CC-213-6 	Edition: 2013 



Tele: 508-430-7513 	 Office of the Town Administrator 
Fax: 508-432-5039 	732 Main Street 

Town Of Harwich 
Harwich, MASSACHUSETTS 02645 

Name: 

Job Title: 

Administrator: 

Department: 

Anniversary Date: 

Christopher Clark 

  

Town Administrator 
	

Classsification: 
	

Contract 

  

Christopher Clark 

Town Administrator 

12/27/2013 
	

Evaluation date: 

**Town Manager Evaluation** 

     

Key for Performance evaluations: 

EX: Exceptional 

Performance far exceeds expectations due to exceptionally high quality of work performed in all essential areas of responsibility. 

EE: Exceeds Expectations 

Performance consistently exceeded expectations in all essential areas of responsibility and the quality of work overall was excellent. 

resulting in an overall quality of work that was superior. 

ME: Meets Expectations 

Performance consistently met expectations in all essential areas of responsibility at times possibly exceeding expectations and the 

quality of work overall was very good. 

IN: Improvement Needed 

Performance did not consistently meet expectations or performance failed to meet expectations in one or more essential areas of 

responsibility. 

UN: Unsatisfactory 

Performance was consistently below expectations in the most essential areas of responsibility and/or reasonable progress towards 

critical goals was not made. Significant improvement is needed in one or more important areas. 

A. Last Evaluation's Goals: (if applicable) 40 points total 
Goal: 	Rating: 

Available points per section: 	1 	2 	3 	4 	5 

Points: Comments: 

UN IN ME LE EX 

UN IN ME EL EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 

UN IN ME EE EX 



B. Job Success Factors: 

(45 points total) 

1. Problem Solving/Decision Making: (5 points) 

Anticipates, Identifies, & prevents problems, involves 

others in seeking solutions. Makes clear and consistent 

decisions, acts with integrity in all decision making 

and makes timely decisions. 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

2. Strategic planning and organizing: (5 points) 

Aligns priorities with broader goals, 

measures outcomes, uses feedback to change as 

needed, evaluates alternatives, solutions oriented, 

develops realistic plans, meets deadlines & follows through 

3. Communication: (5 points) 

Connects with peers, subordinates and public, actively 

listens, clearly and effectively shares information, 

demonstrates effective oral and written communication 

skills. Seeks to clarify and confirm the accuracy 

of understanding of vague terms and instructions 

4. Leadership: (5 points) 

Accepts responsibility for own work, develops 

trust and credibility, demonstrates honest and 

ethical behavior, engages the talents, experiences, 

and capabilities of others. Results-oriented and 

desire to excel in job 

5. Teamwork: (5 points) 

Successfully works with others to achieve desired results, 

contributes to team projects, exchane ideas and opionions, 

helps prevent, resolve conflicts, develops positive working 

relationships and is flexible, open-minded promoting 

mutual respect for all 

6. Customer Orientation: (5 points) 

Listens, identifies, and responnds quickly and effectively 

to internal and external customers' needs and sets work 

activities accordingly; goes beyond what is expected and 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN fN ME EE EX 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 



follows up to ensure customer satisfaction 

7. Productivity: (5 Points) 

Maintains fair workload; takes on additional 

responsibilities as needed; manages priorites; develops 

and follows work procedures; completes assignments 

on time and to specifications 

8. Quality: (5 Points) 

Demonstrates accuracy, thoroughness, and reliability; 

manages time and priorities; develops and follows work 

procedures 

9. Department specific competency: (5 Points) 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 

Points: 

4 	5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

1 2 

Rating: 

3 4 

Points: 

5 

Comments: 

UN IN ME EE EX 

Rating: 	Points: Comments: 

UN IN ME 	EE EX 

1 	2 	3 	4 	5 

Complaint Letters: 0 letters: (1 point) # of inc Points Points Average 

1 letter: (-1 point) Dept Avg: (1 point) 

2 letters: (-2 points) (0 point) Points: 

More than 2 letters: (-3 points) (-1 point) 

Future Goals and Objectives: (9 points} Please list 9 goals & objectives for the following year, 6 attainable goals, 2 possible goals & 1"if time permits" goal 

  

Points: 

 

C: Miscellaneous: 

(4 points total) 

Has the Town Administrator come up with any cost saving ideas/solutions? (1 point) Points: 

  

   

 

Has the Town Administrator obtained any grants/Gifts? (1 point) 	Points: 

  

    



Has the Town Administrator been able to "turn back" any funds? (1 point) 	 Points: 

Has the Town Administrator obtained letters of commendation? (1 point) 	Points: 

UN 	IN 	ME 
	

EE 
	

EX Total points: 
	

0 

Signatures: 

Town Administrator Name: 	Christopher Clark 

Town Administrator Signature : 	 Date: 

My signature also indicates that I have received a copy of this evaluation 

I would like to include comments regarding my evaluation. 

Overall rating: 

(100 total possible points) 

Professional Development Plan/Comments: 

Selectperson: 	Date: 	 

Chair: 

 

Date: 

 

    



Phone (508) 430-7513 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 
	

Fax (508) 432-5039 

Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 	732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

Charleen L. Greenhalgh, Assistant Town Administrator 

August 31, 2016 

To: 	Board of Selectmen 
Cc: 	Christopher Clark, Town Administrator 
From: Charleen Greenhalgh, Assistant Town Administrator 
Re: 	Action Action Item Register 

Attached is a draft example and a bland copy of the Action Item Register. It was my understanding 
that the Board would either vote on or come to a consensus on what items would be included on the 
Register. The examples that I provided where topics/items that I came up with by reviewing my 
notes of past meetings. 

As outlined on the Register the following items would need to be identified by the Board: 

1) Action Item 
2) Criticality (1, 2, or 3) 
3) Lead Responsibility (BoS Member, TA, etc.) 
4) Date Assigned (I assume that would be the date the item was placed on the Register.) 
5) Due Date 

The "Status" and "Comments" would be filled in weekly, bi-weekly, monthly? The Board should 
decide how often they would like a status report. 

Thank you. 



Harwich BOS / TA Action Item Report 

DRAFT 

Item Number Action Item 	 Criticality (1,2 or 3) Lead Responsibility 1 Date Assigned Due Date Status Comments 

15-001 Disability Access to Brook Park Bandstand 7/11/2016 

16-002 Lighting at Brook Park Bandstand/Parking 

TA, ATA, Town Eng., Rec. 

Dir. 7/11/2016 

Spoke with Town Engineer. Came up with concept 

for 2 lights in keeping with the Historic Dist. Cost 

$2500/ea. 

No funding available at this time to 

cover costs of lights. Path behind 

ballfield fence is not formal to make 

more accessible and add lighting 

would require a fence along the bank, 

t-base walkway 5' wide, electricity, etc. 

16-003 	West Harwich Plume TA, ATA, Health Dir. 7/11/2016 

Paula completed review week of August 15; 

meeting with Chair, TA and Asst. TA on 8/24/16. 

Paula Champagne asked to research ail 

applicable reports and to report back 

her findings/recommendations/plan. 

16-004 

Committees: Vacancies; Charge Updates: 

Members being Sworn-in. Selectmen 7/25/2016 

16-005 Track Additional Costs at Middle School Selectman LaMantia, TA 7/25/2016 

16-006 Embers: Outside Bar Status ATA 8/8/2016 Completed 8/10/16- Status OK 

Consulted Licensing Secretary; Building 

Comm; Health Agent. Mr. Nickerson 

contacted. 

16-007 

Dedicated Turn Signal North on Rte 124 at 

Queen Anne Road DPW Director 8/8/2016 Completed 8/10/16- Status OK 

DPW Director contacted consulting 

Engineer. The trip counts do not 

warrant a dedicated signal. Mr. 

Nickerson Contacted. 

16-008 

Perk- Public Nearing for Entertainment License 

potential violation(s) TA; Licensing Secretary 8/22/2016 Hearing to be scheduled for 9/19/16 

16-009 

16-010 

16-011 

16-012 

16-013 

16-014 

15-015 



Harwich BOS / TA Action Item Report 

Item Number Action Item Criticality ( 1,2 or 3) Lead Responsibility Date Assigned Due Date Status Comments 

16-001 

16-002 

16.003 

16-004 

16-005 

16-006 

16-007 

16-008 

16-009 

16-010 

16-011 

16-012 

16-013 

16-014 

16-015 



TOWN OF HARWICH 
NOTICE OF VACANCIES ON VARIOUS TOWN BOARDS, COMMISSIONS 

AND COMMITTEES 

The Board of Selectmen will give consideration to the appointment of members to the 
following Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

Agricultural Commission 	 1 

Appeals Board (Alternate) 	1 

Architectural Advisory Committee 	1 

Bikeways 	1 

Board of Health 	1 

Brooks Academy Museum 	1 

Building Code Board of Appeals 	5 

Community Preservation Committee (Housing Rep) 	1 

Conservation Commission (1 Full; 2 Alternate) 	3 

Council on Aging 	2 

Cultural Council 	3 

Disability Rights Committee 	5 

Forest Committee 	1 

Historic District/Historical Commission (Alternate) 	2 

Housing Committee 	1  

Real Estate and Open Space 	1 

Saquatucket Development Committee 	1 

Traffic Safety Committee 	2 

Trails Committee 	2 

Treasure Chest Committee (1 Full — 1 Alternate) 	2 

Utility and Energy Conservation 	1 

Waterways Committee (Alternate) 	1 

A description of Committee duties and Citizens Activity Record Forms are available at 
the Selectmen's Office, 732 Main Street, Harwich 

August, 2016 


	01 Agenda.pdf
	02 July 25, 2016 Minutes.pdf
	03 August 8, 2016 Minutes.pdf
	04 Sampson Fund Fee Waiver.pdf
	05 Eversource Petition.pdf
	06 DTC Election Workers.pdf
	07 RTC Election Workers.pdf
	08 Cranberry Festival Liquor.pdf
	09 One-Day Entertainment.pdf
	10 Chapter 90 Request.pdf
	11 Engineering Move to Albro.pdf
	12 Community Center Fees.pdf
	13 Library Historic Restoration.pdf
	14 Road Safety Audit.pdf
	15 CC Commission on CWMP.pdf
	16 DEP on CWMP.pdf
	17 CDM Smith Contract.pdf
	18 Community Rating System.pdf
	19 Town Administrator Evaluation Form.pdf
	20 Action Item Register.pdf
	21 Committee Vacancies.pdf

